
 

 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor Cynllunio Dyddiad: 

 
4 Rhagfyr 2014 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712568 

 ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO, DYDD MERCHER, 10 
RHAGFYR 2014 am 9.30 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 

 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 

 Dylai’r Aelodau ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu gysylltiad sy'n 
rhagfarnu mewn unrhyw fater a nodwyd i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn. 

 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Rhybudd o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B (4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol, 1972. 

 

4 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 13 - 20) 

 Cadarnhau cywirdeb cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a gynhaliwyd 12 
Tachwedd 2014 (copi ynghlwm). 

 

CEISIADAU AM GANIATÂD I DDATBLYGU (EITEMAU 5 - 18) - 
 
5 RHIF CAIS: 01/2013/1599/PF – THE FORUM, 27-29 STRYD FAWR, 

DINBYCH  (Tudalennau 21 - 38) 

 Ystyried cais i drosi llawr cyntaf ac ail lawr yr adeilad i greu dau fflat 
hunangynhwysol yn The Forum, 27-29 Stryd Fawr, Dinbych (copi ynghlwm). 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

6 RHIF CAIS: 01/2013/1601/PF – THE FORUM, 27-29 STRYD FAWR, 
DINBYCH  (Tudalennau 39 - 54) 

 Ystyried cais adeilad rhestredig i drosi llawr cyntaf ac ail lawr yr adeilad i greu 
dau fflat hunangynhwysol yn The Forum, 27-29 Stryd Fawr, Dinbych (copi 
ynghlwm). 

 

7 RHIF CAIS: 08/2014/1139/PF -  TIR GER TRELARS IFOR WILLIAMS CYF, 
CYNWYD, CORWEN  (Tudalennau 55 - 68) 

 Ystyried cais i ddymchwel yr annedd bresennol ac adeiladu maes parcio i 
wasanaethu ffatri gyfagos, sy'n cynnwys gwneud newidiadau i'r fynedfa 
bresennol, newidiadau i lefelau, tirlunio a gwaith cysylltiedig ar dir ger Trelars 
Ifor Williams Cyf, Cynwyd, Corwen (copi ynghlwm). 

 

8 RHIF CAIS: 18/2014/1133/PS - TIR Y TU ÔL I’R GOLDEN LION INN, 
LLANDYRNOG, DINBYCH  (Tudalennau 69 - 78) 

 Ystyried cais i ddileu amodau 6, 7 ac 8 caniatâd cynllunio amlinellol rhif 
18/2010/1503 yn ymwneud â chod ar gyfer gofynion cartrefi cynaliadwy ar dir 
y tu cefn i’r Golden Lion Inn, Llandyrnog, Dinbych (copi ynghlwm). 

 

9 RHIF CAIS: 31/2013/1079/PFHY  - TIR YN ELWY MEADOWS, FFORDD 
ISAF DINBYCH, LLANELWY  (Tudalennau 79 - 106) 

 Ystyried cais i osod cynllun hydro-drydan micro ar dir yn Elwy Meadows, 
Ffordd Isaf Dinbych, Llanelwy (copi  ynghlwm). 

 

10 RHIF CAIS: 41/2014/0757/PF - YEW TREE, BODFARI, DINBYCH  
(Tudalennau 107 - 122) 

 Ystyried cais ar gyfer codi annedd ddeulawr a garej (diwygio’r cynllun a 
gymeradwywyd yn flaenorol dan gais rhif 41/2013/1498/PF - Yew Tree, 
Bodfari, Dinbych (copi ynghlwm). 

 

11 RHIF CAIS: 43/2014/0905/PF - ICELAND FOODS A BEVANS 
HOMEWARES, FFORDD LLYS NANT, PRESTATYN  (Tudalennau 123 - 
144) 

 Ystyried cais ar gyfer dymchwel unedau manwerthu presennol, adeiladu teras 
o 4 uned manwerthu newydd, ail-gyflunio’r maes parcio presennol i 
gwsmeriaid, gwneud estyniad i'r maes parcio presennol i staff i’r gogledd-
ddwyrain o’r safle a gwneud gwaith tirweddu cysylltiedig a gwaith i ganiatáu 
mynediad i gerddwyr / seiclwyr / cerbydau (Cam 2 Parc Siopa Prestatyn) yn 
Iceland Foods a Bevans Homewares, Ffordd Llys Nant, Prestatyn (copi 
ynghlwm). 

 

12 RHIF CAIS: 44/2014/0830/PC -  CIET (UK) LTD., YR HEN WAITH DŴR, 
FFORDD ABERGELE, RHUDDLAN, Y RHYL  (Tudalennau 145 - 160) 

 Ystyried cais ar gyfer parhad yn nefnydd tir ac adeiladau i dderbyn, storio a 
dosbarthu deunyddiau, offer a cherbydau ysgafn sy’n ymwneud â gwifrau 
pŵer trydanol (cais ôl-weithredol) yn CIET (UK) LTD., Yr Hen Waith Dŵr, 
Ffordd Abergele, Rhuddlan, y Rhyl. 

 



 

13 RHIF CAIS: 44/2014/0953/PF - 6, GROVE TERRACE, FFORDD Y 
TYWYSOG, RHUDDLAN, Y RHYL  (Tudalennau 161 - 170) 

 Ystyried cais ar gyfer creu mynedfa newydd i gerbydau yn cynnwys cael 
gwared ar wal derfyn ym mlaen yr eiddo i greu gofod parcio ar gyfer un 
cerbyd yn 6, Grove Terrace, Ffordd y Tywysog, Rhuddlan, y Rhyl (copi 
ynghlwm).  

 

14 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0388/PF - SAFLE’R GRANGE HOTEL, 41-42 EAST 
PARADE, Y RHYL  (Tudalennau 171 - 204) 

 Ystyried cais i ddymchwel y fila ddwyreiniol ac ailddatblygu’r tir drwy adeiladu 
44 o fflatiau sydd i gynnwys 21 o fannau parcio ar y safle, adfer a newid y 
waliau terfyn presennol a gwneud gwaith cysylltiedig ar Safle’r Grange Hotel 
41-42 East Parade, y Rhyl (copi ynghlwm).  

 

15 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0389/LB - SAFLE’R GRANGE HOTEL, 41-42 EAST 
PARADE, Y RHYL  (Tudalennau 205 - 232) 

 Ystyried cais adeilad rhestredig  i ddymchwel y fila ddwyreiniol a'r anecs 
orllewinol ac ailddatblygu’r tir drwy adeiladu 44 o fflatiau sydd i gynnwys 21 o 
fannau parcio ar y safle, adfer a newid y waliau terfyn presennol a gwneud 
gwaith cysylltiedig ar Safle’r Grange Hotel 41-42 East Parade, y Rhyl (copi 
ynghlwm).  

 

16 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0875/PF - 56 ST. MARGARETS DRIVE, Y RHYL  
(Tudalennau 233 - 246) 

 Ystyried cais i godi ystafell haul ar ochr yr annedd yn 6 St. Margarets Drive, y 
Rhyl (copi ynghlwm). 

 

17 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0908/PF – LLE CHWARAE ODDI AR FFORDD 
CILGANT/GORDON AVENUE, Y RHYL  (Tudalennau 247 - 258) 

 Ystyried cais i newid defnydd yr hen MUGA i brosiect tyfu bwyd cymunedol 
sy'n cynnwys rhandiroedd gwlâu blodau wedi’u codi yn y Lle Chwarae oddi 
Ffordd Cilgant/Gordon Avenue, y Rhyl (copi ynghlwm). 

 

18 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/1132/PF - 11-33 ABBEY STREET, Y RHYL  
(Tudalennau 259 - 286) 

 Ystyried cais i ddymchwel rhifau 11-25 Abbey Street a chodi 7 annedd gyda 
gerddi, parcio a thirlunio cysylltiedig; ac ailwampio 4 fflat a 2 uned siop llawr 
gwaelod yn 27-33 Abbey Street (copi ynghlwm). 

 

19 PROSIECT ISADEILEDD MAWR CYSYLLTIADAU FFERMYDD GWYNT 
GOGLEDD CYMRU - CYMRYD RHAN YN Y BROSES GYNLLUNIO  
(Tudalennau 287 - 290) 

 Ystyried adroddiad (copi ynghlwm) sy’n gofyn am farn aelodau ynghylch a 
ddylai'r Cyngor gymryd rhan yn y broses gynllunio mewn perthynas â 
Phrosiect Isadeiledd Mawr Cysylltiadau Ffermydd Gwynt Gogledd Cymru. 

 

20 PROTOCOL AR GYFER PANELI ARCHWILIO SAFLE  (Tudalennau 291 - 
296) 



 

 Ystyried adroddiad (copi ynghlwm) sy’n cyflwyno protocol diwygiedig i’w 
mabwysiadu ar gyfer llwyfannu Paneli Archwilio Safle. 
 

 

 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Ray Bartley (Cadeirydd) 
 

 Win Mullen-James (Is-Gadeirydd) 
 
 

Ian Armstrong 
Joan Butterfield 
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones 
William Cowie 
Ann Davies 
Meirick Davies 
Richard Davies 
Stuart Davies 
Peter Arnold Evans 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Rhys Hughes 
Alice Jones 
Pat Jones 
Margaret McCarroll 
 

Barry Mellor 
Bob Murray 
Peter Owen 
Dewi Owens 
Merfyn Parry 
Paul Penlington 
Arwel Roberts 
David Simmons 
Bill Tasker 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Joe Welch 
Cefyn Williams 
Cheryl Williams 
Huw Williams 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



CROESO I BWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO  
CYNGOR SIR DDINBYCH   

 

SUT GAIFF Y CYFARFOD EI GYNNAL  
 
Oni bai bod Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor yn nodi i’r gwrthwyneb, bydd trefn y prif eitemau yn dilyn yr agenda a 
nodwyd ar flaen yr adroddiad hwn.  
 

Cyflwyniad cyffredinol 
 
Bydd y Cadeirydd yn agor y cyfarfod am 9.30yb ac yn croesawu pawb i’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio.   
 
Bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn a oes unrhyw ymddiheuriadau dros absenoldeb a datganiadau o fuddiannau.   
 
Bydd y Cadeirydd yn gwahodd Swyddogion i roi cyflwyniadau byr i’r eitemau ar yr agenda.   
 
Bydd Swyddogion yn amlinellau (fel ag sy’n briodol) eitemau a fydd yn cynnwys siarad cyhoeddus,  
ceisiadau ar gyfer gohirio, eitemau sydd wedi’u tynnu’n ôl, ac unrhyw eitemau Rhan 2 lle bydd y wasg a’r 
cyhoedd yn cael eu gwahardd. Bydd cyfeiriadau at unrhyw wybodaeth ychwanegol a ddosbarthwyd yn 
Siambr y Cyngor cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod, gan gynnwys y taflenni sy’n crynhoi cyflwyniadau/newidiadau hwyr 
(taflenni glas) ac unrhyw gynlluniau atodol neu ddiwygiedig sy’n ymwneud ag eitemau i’w trafod. 
 
Mae’r ‘Taflenni Glas’ yn cynnwys gwybodaeth bwysig, gan gynnwys crynodeb o ddeunydd a dderbyniwyd 
mewn perthynas ag eitemau ar yr agenda rhwng cwblhau’r prif adroddiad a’r diwrnod cyn y cyfarfod. Mae’r 
taflenni hefyd yn nodi trefn arfaethedig y ceisiadau cynllunio, sy’n cymryd i ystyriaeth unrhyw geisiadau i 
siarad yn gyhoeddus. 
 
Mewn perthynas â threfn yr eitemau, bydd disgwyl i unrhyw Aelodau sydd am ddwyn eitem i’w thrafod wneud 
cais yn union ar ôl cyflwyniad y Swyddogion. Rhaid i unrhyw gais o’r fath fod yn gynnig ffurfiol a bydd 
pleidlais ar y cais.    
 
Mae’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio yn cynnwys 30 o Aelodau Etholedig. Yn unol â phrotocol, mae’n rhaid i  50% o 
Aelodau’r Pwyllgor fod yn bresennol i sefydlu cworwm ac i sicrhau bod modd ystyried eitem a phleidleisio ar 
eitem.  
 
Caiff Cynghorwyr Sir sydd ddim yn aelodau o’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio fynychu a siarad ar eitem, ond ni allant 
wneud cynnig, na phleidleisio. 
 

YSTYRIED CEISIADAU CYNLLUNIO   
 

Y drefn i’w dilyn 
 
Bydd y Cadeirydd yn cyhoeddi’r eitem sydd i’w thrafod nesaf.  Mewn perthynas â cheisiadau cynllunio, 
cyhoeddir rhif y cais, sail y cynnig a’r lleoliad, yr Aelodau lleol perthnasol ar gyfer yr ardal, ac argymhelliad y 
Swyddog. 
 
Os oes yna siaradwyr cyhoeddus ar eitem, bydd y Cadeirydd yn eu gwahodd i annerch y Pwyllgor. Os oes 
siaradwyr yn erbyn ac o blaid cynnig, gofynnir i’r siaradwr sydd yn erbyn i siarad yn gyntaf. Bydd y Cadeirydd 
yn atgoffa siaradwyr bod ganddynt hyd at 3 munud i annerch y Pwyllgor. Mae gan siarad cyhoeddus ei 
brotocol ei hunan. 
 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 1



Lle bo hynny’n berthnasol, bydd y Cadeirydd yn cynnig cyfle i’r Aelodau ddarllen unrhyw wybodaeth hwyr ar 
yr eitem ar y ‘Taflenni Glas’ cyn parhau.  
 
Os oes unrhyw Aelod am gynnig y dylid gohirio eitem, gan gynnwys ceisiadau i Banel Archwilio Safle 
ymweld â’r safle, dylid gwneud y cais ynghyd â’r rheswm cynllunio, cyn unrhyw siarad cyhoeddus neu 
drafodaeth am yr eitem honno. 
 
Cyn unrhyw drafodaeth, bydd y Cadeirydd yn gwahodd swyddogion i roi cyflwyniad cryno i’r eitem lle credir 
bod hyn yn werth chweil yng ngolau natur y cais.   
 
Mae sgriniau arddangos yn Siambr y Cyngor a ddefnyddir i ddangos ffotograffau neu gynlluniau a gyflwynir 
gyda cheisiadau. Cymerir y ffotograffau gan Swyddogion i roi argraff gyffredinol i Aelodau o safle a’i 
amgylchedd, ac nid eu bwriad yw cyflwyno achos o blaid neu yn erbyn cynnig. 
 
Bydd y Cadeirydd yn cyhoeddi  bod yr eitem yn agored am drafodaeth ac yn rhoi cyfle i Aelodau siarad a rhoi 
sylwadau am yr eitem. 
 
Os oes unrhyw gais wedi bod yn destun Panel Archwilio Safle cyn y Pwyllgor, bydd y Cadeirydd fel rheol yn 
gwahodd yr Aelodau hynny a fynychodd, gan gynnwys yr aelod lleol, i siarad yn gyntaf.   
 
Yn achos yr holl geisiadau eraill, bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn i’r aelod(au) lleol siarad yn gyntaf, os yw ef/nhw 
yn dymuno gwneud hynny.   
 
Fel rheol, rhoddir hyd at bum munud i Aelodau siarad, a bydd y Cadeirydd yn llywio’r drafodaeth yn unol â 
Rheolau Sefydlog.   
 
Unwaith bod aelod wedi siarad, ni ddylai ef/hi siarad eto oni bai ei fod ef/hi am esboniad o bwyntiau a 
gododd yn y drafodaeth, a rhaid i hynny hefyd ddigwydd ar ôl i’r holl Aelodau eraill gael cyfle i siarad, a gyda 
chaniatâd y Cadeirydd. 
 
Ar derfyn trafodaeth yr Aelodau, bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn i Swyddogion ymateb yn ôl yr angen i 
gwestiynau a phwyntiau a godwyd, gan gynnwys cyngor ar unrhyw benderfyniad sy’n mynd yn groes i’r 
argymhelliad.   
 
Cyn symud ymlaen at y bleidlais, bydd y Cadeirydd yn gwahodd neu’n gofyn am eglurhad o gynigion ac 
eilyddion i’r cynigion o blaid neu yn erbyn argymhelliad y Swyddog, neu unrhyw benderfyniadau eraill sy’n 
gofyn am ddiwygiadau i gynigion. Pan gaiff cynnig ei wneud yn groes i argymhelliad y Swyddog, bydd y 
Cadeirydd yn gofyn am eglurhad o’r rheswm/rhesymau cynllunio dros y cynnig hwnnw, er mwyn i hyn gael ei 
gofnodi yng Nghofnodion y cyfarfod. Mae’n bosibl y bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn am sylwadau gan y Swyddog 
Cyfreithiol a Chynllunio am ddilysrwydd y rheswm/rhesymau a nodwyd. 
 
Bydd y Cadeirydd yn gwneud cyhoeddiad i nodi bod y drafodaeth ar ben, a bod y pleidleisio i ddilyn.   
 

Y drefn bleidleisio 
 
Cyn gofyn i Aelodau bleidleisio, bydd y Cadeirydd yn cyhoeddi pa benderfyniadau a wnaed a sut fydd y 
bleidlais yn cael ei chynnal. Gellir gofyn am esboniad pellach ynghylch newidiadau, amodau newydd ac 
ychwanegol a rhesymau dros wrthod er mwyn sicrhau nad oes unrhyw amwysedd yn yr hyn y mae’r Pwyllgor 
yn pleidleisio o’i blaid neu yn ei erbyn.   
 
Os yw unrhyw aelod yn gwneud cais am Bleidlais wedi’i Chofnodi, mae’n rhaid ymdrin â hyn yn gyntaf yn 
unol â’r Rheolau Sefydlog.  Bydd y Cadeirydd a Swyddogion yn egluro’r drefn i’w dilyn.  Bydd enwau bob un 
o’r Aelodau pleidleisio sy’n bresennol yn cael eu galw allan, a bydd gofyn i’r Aelod nodi a yw eu pleidlais o 
blaid neu yn erbyn rhoi caniatâd neu ymwrthod. Bydd Swyddogion yn cyhoeddi canlyniad y bleidlais ar yr 
eitem. 

Tudalen 6



 
Os yw pleidlais arferol i ddigwydd trwy gyfrwng y system bleidleisio electronig, bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn i’r 
Swyddogion weithredu’r sgrin bleidleisio yn y Siambr, a phan ofynnir iddynt wneud hynny, mae’n rhaid i’r 
Aelodau gofnodi eu pleidlais drwy bwyso’r botwm priodol.   
 
Mae gan Aelodau 10 eiliad i gofnodi eu pleidleisiau unwaith bo’r sgrin wedi ymddangos.   
 
Os yw’r system bleidleisio electronig yn methu, gellir cynnal y bleidlais drwy ddangos dwylo. Bydd y 
Cadeirydd yn esbonio’r drefn sydd i’w dilyn.   
 
Ar derfyn y bleidlais, bydd y Cadeirydd yn cyhoeddi’r penderfyniad ar yr eitem.   
 
Pan fydd penderfyniad ffurfiol y Pwyllgor yn groes i argymhelliad y Swyddog, bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn i 
Aelodau gytuno’r broses a ddefnyddir i ddrafftio amodau cynllunio neu resymau dros wrthod, er mwyn 
rhyddhau’r Tystysgrif Penderfyniad (e.e. dirprwyo awdurdod i’r Swyddog Cynllunio, i’r Swyddog Cynllunio 
mewn cysylltiad ag Aelodau Lleol, neu drwy gyfeirio’n ôl i’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio ar gyfer cadarnhad).  

Tudalen 7



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
 

TREFN BLEIDLEISIO 
 

Atgoffir yr aelodau o’r drefn i’w dilyn wrth bleidleisio i roddi neu i 
wrthod caniatâd cynllunio. Bydd y Cadeirydd neu’r Swyddogion yn 
esbonio’r drefn i’w dilyn fel y  bo angen. 
 
Unwaith y bydd y sgriniau arddangos yn y Siambr wedi eu clirio yn 
barod ar gyfer y pleidleisio a phan fydd y sgrîn bleidleisio yn 
ymddangos, bydd gan y Cynghorwyr 10 eiliad i gofnodi eu pleidlais 
fel a ganlyn: 
 
Ar y bysellfwrdd pleidleisio, pwyswch y 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Neu yn achos eitemau Gorfodi: 
 

+        i AWDURDODI Camau Gorfodi  
-      i WRTHOD AWDURDODI Camau Gorfodi 

0            i BEIDIO â phleidleisio 

+ i RODDI caniatâd 
- i WRTHOD caniatâd 

0 i BEIDIO â phleidleisio 
 

Tudalen 9



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais 
ar gyfer caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y 
cwmni sydd wedi gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol'. 

Tudalen 11

Eitem Agenda 2



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio a gynhaliwyd yn Siambr y Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, 
Rhuthun, Dydd Mercher, 12 Tachwedd 2014 am 9.30 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Ian Armstrong, Raymond Bartley (Cadeirydd), Joan Butterfield, Bill Cowie, 
Ann Davies, Meirick Davies, Richard Davies, Stuart Davies, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, 
Rhys Hughes, Alice Jones, Pat Jones, Margaret McCarroll, Barry Mellor, Win Mullen-
James (Is-Gadeirydd), Bob Murray, Peter Owen, Dewi Owens, Merfyn Parry, 
Paul Penlington, Arwel Roberts, David Simmons, Joe Welch, Cefyn Williams a 
Huw Williams 
 
Aelodau Lleol – roedd y Cynghorydd Martyn Holland yn bresennol ar gyfer eitem 10 ar y 
rhaglen 
 
Roedd y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus, yn bresennol ar 
gyfer eitemau 5 - 8.  
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
Pennaeth Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd (GB); Prif Gyfreithiwr – Cynllunio a Phriffyrdd 
(SC); Rheolwr Datblygu (PM); Prif Swyddog Cynllunio (IW); Rheolwr Polisi a Chynllunio 
Datblygu (AL); Swyddog Prosiect Cadwraeth (KH); Swyddog Polisi Cynllunio (KB) a 
Gweinyddwr Pwyllgorau (KEJ).  
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Cynghorwyr Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones, Bill Tasker a Julian Thompson-Hill 
 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  
 
Ni chafodd unrhyw gysylltiad personol na rhagfarnol ei ddatgan. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Ni chafwyd unrhyw faterion brys.  
 

4 COFNODION  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a gynhaliwyd ar 15 Medi 2014. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid derbyn a chymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 15 Hydref, 2014 fel cofnod cywir.  
 

5 HYSBYSIADAU CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL  - DRAFFT AR GYFER 
YMGYNGHORI  
 

Tudalen 13

Eitem Agenda 4



Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus a’r 
Rheolwr Datblygu Cynllunio a Pholisi (RhDCP) adroddiad yn cyflwyno drafft y 
Canllaw Cynllunio Atodol ar Hysbysesbion (CCA) fel sail i ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus.   Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Smith y gwahanol gamau yn y broses cyn i’r 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio fabwysiadu’r dogfennau CCA terfynol. 
 
Cynghorwyd yr Aelodau o'r angen i ddiweddaru dogfennau CCA yng ngoleuni 
newidiadau deddfwriaethol a mabwysiadu'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (CDLl). Mae'r 
CCA hwn yn rhoi arweiniad ar y gwahanol fathau o hysbysebion sydd angen 
caniatâd ynghyd ag agweddau eraill fel arwyddion dwyieithog a goleuadau priodol.  
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am sicrwydd bod mesurau digonol ar waith i ddelio â 
masnachu blaengwrt, gyda'r RhDCP yn cyfeirio at baragraff 5.6 yn y ddogfen 
ddrafft yn ymwneud ag arwyddion blaengwrt.  Fe atgoffodd yr aelodau y byddai 
cyfle pellach iddynt wneud sylwadau ar y CCA yn ystod y cyfnod ymgynghori 
cyhoeddus cyn i'r mater gael ei ddwyn yn ôl i'r pwyllgor i'w fabwysiadu. 
 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Meirick Davies argymhelliad y swyddog, ac fe’i 
eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Win Mullen-James.   Yn unfrydol felly - 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod yr aelodau’n cytuno i’r  Canllaw Cynllunio Atodol drafft ar 
Hysbysebion ar sail ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.  
 

6 CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL ADEILADAU RHESTREDIG - DRAFFT AR 
GYFER YMGYNGHORI  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus a’r 
Swyddog Prosiect Cadwraeth adroddiad yn cyflwyno dogfen drafft o’r Canllaw 
Cynllunio Atodol ar adeiladau rhestredig ar sail ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.  
 
Mae'r CCA drafft yn rhoi arweiniad clir a chryno yn seiliedig ar y polisi cenedlaethol 
diweddaraf ar adeiladau rhestredig a byddai’n ystyriaeth gynllunio wrth asesu 
ceisiadau am ganiatâd i adeilad rhestredig a cheisiadau cynllunio sy'n effeithio ar 
adeiladau rhestredig a'u lleoliad. 
 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Meirick Davies argymhelliad y swyddog, ac fe’i 
eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Bill Cowie.   Yn unfrydol felly - 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod yr aelodau’n cytuno i’r  Canllaw Cynllunio Atodol drafft ar 
adeiladau rhestredig ar sail ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.  
 

7 CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL ARDALOEDD CADWRAETH - DRAFFT 
AR GYFER YMGYNGHORI  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus a’r 
Swyddog Prosiect Cadwraeth adroddiad yn cyflwyno dogfen drafft o’r Canllaw 
Cynllunio Atodol ar ardaloedd cadwraeth ar sail ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.   
Byddai'r CCA yn cynorthwyo wrth reoli ardaloedd cadwraeth yn rhagweithiol a 
phenderfynu ar geisiadau cynllunio sy'n effeithio ar ardaloedd cadwraeth. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth gyffredinol codwyd y pwyntiau canlynol:  

Tudalen 14



 

 coed mewn ardaloedd cadwraeth yn cael eu diogelu yn gyffredinol a chytunodd 
y swyddogion i ddiwygio paragraff 5.2 o'r ddogfen i egluro bod angen caniatâd i 
dorri coeden neu i wneud gwaith tocio ar goed mewn ardal gadwraeth, hyd yn 
oed os nad oedd y goeden yn destun Gorchymyn Diogelu Coed (GDC) - dylid 
cyfeirio hefyd at y posibilrwydd y gall coeden eisoes fod yn destun Gorchymyn 
Diogelu Coed 

 byddai rheolaethau dros faterion tirlunio yn cael eu cynnwys fel rhan o'r cais 
cynllunio 

 ni fyddai'n bosibl i uno canllawiau sy'n ymdrin ag ardaloedd cadwraeth, 
ardaloedd o harddwch naturiol eithriadol a safleoedd treftadaeth y byd gan fod 
pob un yn destun gwahanol ofynion statudol a pholisiau cenedlaethol -  byddai’r 
awdurdodau gwahanol sy'n gyfrifol am yr ardaloedd hynny yn cydweithio i geisio 
sicrhau bod dyheadau a gwaith rheoli yn cyd-fynd 

 amlygodd y Cynghorydd Cefyn Williams y cyfeiriad at y Teras, Heol Llundain, 
Corwen yn y ddogfen a mynegodd ei siom fod caniatâd wedi’i roi am le parcio y 
tu allan i'r teras sydd o’i farn o ddim yn cydfynd â chymeriad y lle.  cadarnhaodd 
y swyddogion bod caniatâd adeilad rhestredig wedi'i roi yn yr achos hwn a bod 
sylw priodol wedi’i roi i’r statws ardal gadwraeth ochr yn ochr â materion 
cynllunio eraill fel rhan o'r broses honno. 

 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Cefyn Williams argymhelliad y swyddog, ac fe’i 
eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Dewi Owens.  Yn unfrydol felly - 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod yr aelodau’n cytuno i’r  Canllaw Cynllunio Atodol drafft ar 
ardaloedd cadwraeth ar sail ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.  
 

8 BRIFF DATBLYGU SAFLE DRAFFT: TRIONGL RHUDDLAN  
 
Fe gyflwynodd y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y Parth Cyhoeddus a’r 
Swyddog Cynllunio (KB) adroddiad yn argymell aelodau i gytuno ar y Briff Datblygu 
Safle drafft ar gyfer safle ‘Triongl Rhuddlan’ a'r ddogfen sgrinio Asesiad 
Amgylcheddol Strategol (AAS) sy’n dod gydag o ar gyfer ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.  
Byddai arddangosfa yn cael ei chynnal yn Llyfrgell Rhuddlan ar 10 Rhagfyr a 17 
Ionawr fel rhan o'r broses ymgynghori ac anogwyd yr aelodau i fod yn bresennol. 
 
Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Ann Davies (Aelod Lleol) o blaid y BDS i ddenu busnes a 
chyflogaeth posibl i'r ardal ac fe gefnogodd yr arddangosfa fel modd o gynnwys 
pobl leol.  Cynigodd argymhelliad y swyddog fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a gafodd 
ei eilio gan y Cynghorydd Arwel Roberts (Aelod Lleol).  Wrth groesawu’r BDS fe 
roddodd y Cynghorydd Roberts sawl syniad gwahanol gerbron gan gynnwys 
sefydlu canolfan i dwristiaid, siopau manwerthu a chofroddion er mwyn denu 
ymwelwyr i'r dref ynghyd â mesurau tirlunio ger lan yr afon a’r glanfa.  Cwestiynodd 
hefyd y ddarpariaeth preswyl a’r mesurau  lliniaru i reoli perygl llifogydd.  Trafododd 
yr Aelodau y materion hynny ymhellach yn ystod trafodaeth gyffredinol a gofynwyd 
am eglurhad yn hynny o beth.  Mynegodd y Cynghorydd Alice Jones bryder 
ynghylch y cynnydd mewn traffig a gofynnydd am sicrwydd y byddai problemau 
presennol a brofir gan weithwyr amaethyddol yn cael sylw fel rhan o'r broses. 
 
Mewn ymateb i faterion a godwyd dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio - 

Tudalen 15



 

 nad oedd codi lefelau tir unigol ar y safle wedi cael ei ystyried yn opsiwn 
derbyniol i fynd i'r afael â llifogydd oherwydd y potensial i ddisodli dŵr llifogydd 
ac achosi effeithiau andwyol o’r perygl o lifogydd ar dirfeddianwyr cyfagos - 
cytunodd i ymgynghori ymhellach ag Adnoddau Naturiol Cymru ynghylch y 
mater hwn a'r awgrym i godi’r lefel adeiladu i uchder penodol i liniaru'r risg 

 yng ngoleuni cyngor anghyson a ddarparwyd ynghylch y posibilrwydd o lifogydd 
llanw o aber afon Clwyd, fe gytunodd i ymgynghori â'r Swyddog Risg Llifogydd 
er mwyn sicrhau bod paragraff 5.6 o'r BDS yn ffeithiol gywir cyn mynd i 
ymgynghoriad 

 TAN 15 - Datblygiadau a Risg Llifogydd yn nodi rhai agweddau o feini prawf 
datblygu ar gyfer risg llifogydd a'r Asesiad Canlyniadau Llifogydd Strategol a 
gynhaliwyd wedi dangos na fyddai datblygiad preswyl yn opsiwn ar gyfer y safle, 
y farn hon wedi’i gefnogi gan Adnoddau Naturiol Cymru a oedd wedi cynghori y 
byddai'r safle yn addas ar gyfer defnydd diwydiannol ysgafn 

 nid yw’r Cyngor yn berchennog ar unrhyw ddarn o’r tir ar y safle ond byddant yn 
cynorthwyo gyda thrafodaethau cynigion datblygu a chyda’r broses gynllunio.  

 natur datblygiad yn y dyfodol yn dibynnu ar gyflwyniadau gan ddatblygwyr posibl 
a fyddai'n destun profion cyfiawnhad a  derbynioldeb y canlyniadau ar gyfer 
mathau penodol; gellir hefyd trafod mesurau tirlunio, a fyddai o bosib yn gwella 
edrychiad yr ardal, gydag ymgeiswyr yn ystod y broses 

 oherwydd y cyfyngiad pwysau Pont Rhuddlan efallai na fyddai’n addas ar gyfer 
defnydd nwyddau trwm a cherbydau busnes sy'n mynd i Ffordd yr Orsaf o ganol 
y dref - cytunodd i edrych ar y cyd â’r adran Briffyrdd i ddefnydd y ffordd gan 
gerbydau amaethyddol 

 byddai'r wybodaeth angenrheidiol ar gael yn y digwyddiad arddangos a gellir 
hefyd cysylltu â Swyddogion Cynllunio yn y swyddfa ar gyfer ymgynghoriad. 

 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Ann Davies Davies argymhelliad y swyddog, ac 
fe’i eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Arwel Roberts.   Yn unfrydol felly - 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod yr aelodau yn cytuno i’r Briff Datblygu Safle drafft ar gyfer 
safle ‘Triongl Rhuddlan’ a'r ddogfen sgrinio Asesiad Amgylcheddol Strategol  
amgaeedig (sydd ynghlwm â’r adroddiad) ar gyfer ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus. 
 
Ar yr amser hwn (10.25 a.m.) torrodd y cyfarfod ac ailddechreuodd am 11.00 a.m. 
 

9 CAIS RHIF 02/2014/0990 / PF – YSGOL RHUTHUN, FFORDD YR WYDDGRUG, 
RHUTHUN  
 
Cyflwynwyd cais i leoli 1 uned ystafell ddosbarth dros dro (cais ôl-syllol) yn Ysgol 
Rhuthun, Ffordd yr Wyddgrug, Rhuthun. 
 
Siaradwyr Cyhoeddus -  
 
Mr. D. Fitzsimon (O blaid) - cymeradwyo adroddiad ysgrifenedig swyddogion i 
bwyllgor ac ymatebodd i'r pryderon a godwyd yn hysbysu bod gan yr uned symudol 
ôl troed cynnil a byddai'n cael ei lleoli yn agos at y brif ysgol.  Mae lleoliad yr uned 
dros dro hyd nes cwblhau'r gwaith o adnewyddu ysgolion. 
 

Tudalen 16



Trafodaeth Gyffredinol -  Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-Roberts (Aelod 
Lleol) nad oedd wedi derbyn unrhyw wrthwynebiad i'r cais yn bersonol   Ymatebodd 
y Swyddog Cynllunio i gwestiynau yn cadarnhau ei fod yn gais cynllunio ôl-
weithredol ar gyfer uned symudol wedi’i leoli a bod rhoi caniatad i’r cais am gyfnod 
o ddwy flynedd yn cael ei ystyried yn rhesymol. 
 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Huw Hilditch-Roberts argymhelliad y swyddog i 
gymeradwyo’r cais, ac fe’i eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Stuart Davies.  
 
PLEIDLAIS:  
CYMERADWYO - 23 
GWRTHOD - 1 
YMATAL - 0 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid CYMERADWYO’R cais yn unol ag argymhellion y 
swyddog a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad.  
 

10 CAIS RHIF 31/2013/1079 / PFHY - TIR YN ELWY MEADOWS, FFORDD ISAF 
DINBYCH, LLANELWY  
 
Roedd cais wedi’i gyflwyno er mwyn gosod cynllun hydro-drydan micro ar dir yn 
Elwy Meadows, Ffordd Isaf Dinbych, Llanelwy.  
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Dewi Owens at y gŵyn a wnaed i Adnoddau Naturiol 
Cymru gan Gymdeithas Bysgota Y Rhyl a Llanelwy ynghylch eu hymateb i gynigion 
hydro yng Nghored Elwy.  Cynigiodd bod y cais yn cael ei ohirio hyd nes 
ymchwiliad pellach i'r gŵyn.  Wrth eilio'r cynnig mynegodd y Cynghorydd Meirick 
Davies ei ofid ynglŷn â’r oedi wrth benderfynu ar y cais a oedd wedi bod ar y gweill 
ers peth amser. 
 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Dewi Owens, ac fe’i eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd 
Meirick Davies, bod y cais yn cael ei ohirio o ganlyniad i ymchwilio pellach i'r gŵyn. 
 
PLEIDLAIS:  
I OHIRIO - 22 
YN ERBYN GOHIRIO - 2 
YMATAL - 0 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod y cais yn cael ei OHIRIO hyd nes ymchwiliad pellach i'r 
gŵyn gan Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru. 
 

11 CAIS RHIF 45/2013/1510 / PO - SAFLE OCEAN BEACH, FFORDD 
WELLINGTON, Y RHYL  
 
Cais i ddatblygu 5.3 hectar o dir ar gyfer ailddatblygu defnydd cymysg i gynnwys 
darpariaeth siop fwyd (Dosbarth A1), unedau manwerthu mawr sydd ddim at 
ddibenion  bwyd/unedau hamdden (Dosbarthiadau A1, A3, D2), unedau  caffi/bwyty 
(Dosbarth A3), gwesty (Dosbarth C1), tŷ tafarn (Dosbarth A3), gorsaf betrol (sui 
generis), gyda mynediad cysylltiedig, maes parcio, adeiledd (gan gynnwys is-orsaf 

Tudalen 17



newydd) a thirlunio (cais amlinellol yn cynnwys mynediad - pob mater arall a 
gadwyd) yn Safle Ocean Beach, Ffordd Wellington, Y Rhyl. 
 
Siaradwyr Cyhoeddus -  
 
Mr. M. Ralph (O blaid) - ymhelaethodd ar natur gymhleth y cais a mesurau 
diweddar i fynd i'r afael â meysydd sy'n peri pryder.  Roedd yr Ymgeisydd wedi 
ymrwymo i'r cynllun ac wedi cytuno ar yr amodau a gyflwynir gan Swyddogion 
Cynllunio. 
 
Trafodaeth Gyffredinol - Rhoddodd y Swyddog Cynllunio rywfaint o wybodaeth 
gefndirol a chyd-destun i'r cais a manylu ar y rhesymau y tu ôl i'r argymhelliad y 
swyddog i ganiatáu'r cais. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield (Aelod Lleol) i hanes y safle a diffyg 
blaenorol o weithredu gan yr Ymgeisydd yn arwain at golli hyder y byddai'r 
datblygiad yn mynd yn ei flaen.  Teimlai y dylid cael mwy o uchelgais ar gyfer safle 
datblygu allweddol o'r fath a mynegwyd pryder ynghylch yr effaith manwerthu ar 
hyfywedd canol y dref a chynaliadwyedd y cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth.  O ganlyniad, fe 
gynigodd y dylid gwrthod y cais.  Eiliodd y Cynghorydd Peter Owen y cynnig yn 
tynnu sylw at y Rhyl fel cyrchfan wyliau oedd yn gofyn am ddatblygiad er mwyn 
gwella twristiaeth yn hytrach na darpariaeth manwerthu. 
 
Yn ystod trafodaeth fanwl dyma’r aelodau yn ystyried hanes y safle a thrafodwyd 
rhinweddau'r cais presennol, gan nodi caniatâd cynllunio sy'n bodoli ar gyfer 
datblygiad defnydd cymysg tebyg i'r un a gynigir yn awr a’r prif wahaniaethau rhwng 
y ddau.  Er bod y diffyg gweithredu blaenorol yn ofid, nid oedd yr aelodau yn 
dymuno gweld y safle yn parhau i fod yn ddiffaith a heb ei datblygu ac yn gyffredinol 
derbyniwyd y byddai caniatáu'r cais yn arwain at gyfle pellach i ddenu diddordeb a 
buddsoddiad gan ddatblygwr a galluogi mynd i’r afael ag ymddangosiad gwael y 
safle yn gynt.  Er mwyn helpu i hwyluso cyflwyno'r cynllun fe argymhellodd y 
swyddogion y dylid byrhau’r amserlen i ddechrau datblygiad i dair blynedd ond ni 
ellir gorfodi i weithredu'r cynllun.  Gofynnwyd am sicrwydd ynghylch y cyflenwad 
trydan ac fe gadarnhaodd y Swyddog Cynllunio is-orsaf newydd yn rhan o’r cais 
cynllunio a fyddai'n cynhyrchu digon o drydan ar gyfer cam 1 y datblygiad.  
Trafododd yr Aelodau y manteision economaidd o roi caniatad i fwrw ymlaen â’r 
cynllun, yr effaith bosibl ar hyfywedd Canol Tref y Rhyl, ac ystyriwyd os oedd modd 
mynd i'r afael â'r pryderon ynghylch cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth yn fwy effeithiol trwy’r 
amod cynllunio.  Cyfeiriwyd at y Polisi Iaith Gymraeg a chytunwyd bod, pe caniateid 
y cais, amod pellach yn cael ei osod o ran y defnydd o'r iaith Gymraeg a 
dwyieithrwydd ar gyfer enwi strydoedd ac arwyddion. 
 
Cynnig - Cynigiodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield, ac eiliodd y Cynghorydd Peter 
Owen bod y cais yn cael ei wrthod, yn groes i argymhelliad y swyddog, yn seiliedig 
ar effaith manwerthu bosibl y datblygiad ar Ganol Tref y Rhyl a chynaliadwyedd o 
ran cysylltiadau cerbydau, cerddwyr a beicwyr. 
 
PLEIDLAIS:  
CYMERADWYO - 18 
GWRTHOD - 5 

Tudalen 18



YMATAL - 1 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid RHOI caniatad yn unol ag argymhellion y swyddog fel y 
nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a’r papurau ategol ynghyd â gofyniad Strategaeth yr Iaith 
Gymraeg wedi’i gymeradwyo gan y Cyngor. 
 

12 CAIS RHIF 15/2014/0969 / PF - LLYS ARMON, LLANARMON YN IAL, YR 
WYDDGRUG  
 
Cyflwynwyd cais i drosi tŷ teras presennol yn ddau dŷ teras un ystafell wely ar 
wahân a gwaith cysylltiedig yn Llys Armon, Llanarmon Yn Iâl, Yr Wyddgrug. 
 
Trafodaeth Gyffredinol -  Cododd y Cynghorydd Martyn Holland (Aelod Lleol) 
ddim gwrthwynebiad i'r cais gan gredu bod galw am eiddo bychain un ystafell wely 
yn yr ardal, gan ystyried y byddai’n rhaid i’r newidiadau weddu’r eiddo. 
 
Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau dywedodd y Swyddog Cynllunio bod yr amod newydd 
arfaethedig yn pennu y byddai pren wedi’i baentio yn cael ei ddefnyddio yn fframiau 
y ffenestri a drysau newydd.  Byddai’n afresymol mynnu bod yn rhaid defnyddio 
paent o liw penodol o ystyried nad oedd yr adeilad yn rhestredig. 
 
Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Huw Williams argymhelliad y swyddog, ac fe’i 
eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Arwel Roberts.  
 
PLEIDLAIS:  
CYMERADWYO - 22 
GWRTHOD - 0 
YMATAL - 0  
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid CYMERADWYO’R cais yn unol ag argymhellion y 
swyddog fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a’r papurau ategol.  
 

13 CAIS RHIF 45/2014/1079 / PF - 10-24 ABBEY STREET A 3-29 GRONANT 
STREET, Y RHYL  
 
Cyflwynwyd cais i ddymchwel Rhifau 10-24 Abbey Street a 3-29 Gronant Street a 
chodi 11 o dai 2 ystafell wely a 9 tŷ 3 ystafell wely gyda gerddi cysylltiedig, parcio a 
thirlunio. 
 
Trafodaeth Gyffredinol - Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield (Aelod Lleol) o 
blaid y cais gan dynnu sylw at yr uchelgeisiau adfywio ar gyfer Gorllewin y Rhyl o 
ran darparu llety byw o ansawdd gwell.  Cyfeiriodd at amod 9 gan dynnu sylw at 
bryderon a godwyd gan drigolion o rifau 7 ac 8 Gordon Avenue a gofynnodd iddi 
gael cymryd rhan mewn sicrhau bod y pryderon hynny yn derbyn sylw boddhaol.  
Nododd y Swyddog Cynllunio ei fod yn hapus i ymgorffori dymuniadau'r yr Aelod 
Lleol wrth ystyried yr effaith ar y eiddo cyfagos.  Cadarnhaodd hefyd bod amod 
newydd wedi’i gynnig er mwyn diogelu buddiannau cadwraeth natur os bydd 
ystlumod yn bresennol yn ystod y gwaith. 
 

Tudalen 19



Cynnig – Cynigodd y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield argymhelliad y swyddog i 
gymeradwyo’r cais, ac fe’i eiliwyd gan y Cynghorydd Ian Armstrong.  
 
PLEIDLAIS:  
CYMERADWYO - 20 
GWRTHOD - 0 
YMATAL - 1 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid RHOI caniatad yn unol ag argymhellion y swyddog fel y 
nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a’r papurau ategol.  
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12.10 p.m. 
 

Tudalen 20



 

 

WARD: 
 

Canol Dinbych 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

01/2013/1599/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Trawsnewid llawr cyntaf ac ail lawr i ffurfio 2 o fflatiau 
hunangynhwysol 
 

LLEOLIAD: Y Fforwm 27-29 Stryd Fawr Dinbych 
 

 

Tudalen 21

Eitem Agenda 5



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 01/2013/1599/PF & 01/2013/1601/LB
27-29 HIGH STREET
DENBIGH

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 305234 E 366111 N

Tudalen 23



Tudalen 24



Tudalen 25



Tudalen 26



Tudalen 27



Tudalen 28



Tudalen 29



Tudalen 30



Tudalen 31



Tudalen 32



 David Roberts
WARD: 
 

Denbigh Central 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Gwyneth Kensler 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

01/2013/1599/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Conversion of first and second floors to form 2 no. self-contained 
flats 
 

LOCATION: The Forum 27-29  High Street   Denbigh 
 

APPLICANT: MrJohn Felton The Old Palace (Chester) Ltd. 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Article 4 Direction 
Town Heritage Area 
Listed Building 
Conservation Area 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – Yes 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 

• Recommendation to grant – Town Council objection 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL 
“I am instructed to inform you that the council would wish to object to the application.   
 
The objection is based on concerns on the viability of use of the ground floor area for 
café/restaurant/commercial use following conversion of the first and second floors to self-
contained flats. 
 
I would be grateful if you would bring the above objection to the notice of the planning 
committee.” 
 
CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST 
Suggest photographic survey prior to works being undertaken 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
Highways Officer 
No objection  

 
          Conservation Architect 

No objection following submission of amended scheme and submission of additional 
justification of alterations. 
 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   04/03/2014 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

• additional information required from applicant 
• protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 

Tudalen 33



• re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 
information 

 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The proposal is for the conversion of the upper floors of an existing property to form 2 

self-contained flats. 
 

1.1.2 A 4m x 2.5m infill two storey extension is proposed to provide a link corridor for both 
flats. 
 

1.1.3 Both units would be 2 bedroom flats. Both flats would have approximately 95m2 of 
internal floorspace. 

 
1.1.4 Various internal alterations are proposed to facilitate the conversions including 

blocking up of existing openings, forming new door openings and hanging new doors 
within existing openings. 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The application property is a three storey building located on the High Street of 

Denbigh. The ground floor has most recently been used as a tearoom and is currently 
vacant. 
 

1.2.2 The second floor of the flat has previously been used as a residential flat. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The application property is a grade II listed building. 

 
1.3.2 The site is located within the town centre and development boundary of Denbigh as 

defined in the Local Development Plan. 
 
1.3.3 The site is within the Denbigh Conservation Area. 

 
1.4 Relevant planning history 

1.4.1 None. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 The scheme has been altered from 4no. self contained flats to 2no. self contained 

flats. 
 

1.5.2 The link corridor was added to the proposals to facilitate the change from 4 units to 2 
units. 
 

1.5.3 Additional justification for physical alterations has been submitted following 
discussions with the conservation officer. 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 None. 

 
2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 

2.1 None. 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013)  
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy BSC7 – Houses in multiple occupation and self contained flats 
Policy BSC11 – Recreation and open space 
Policy PSE8 – Development within town centres 

Tudalen 34



Policy VOE1 – Key areas of importance 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

SPG7 – Residential Space Standards 
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Open Space 
4.1.5 Highways (including access and parking) 
4.1.6 Affordable Housing 
 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.2.1 Principle 

Policy BSC 7 is the detailed policy relating to Houses in Multiple Occupation & Self-
Contained Flats. The policy states that the sub-division of existing premises to self 
contained flats will be permitted subject to the assessment of detailed criteria. 
 
The Town Council have raised concerns over the impact of the proposals on the 
viability of the commercial use of the ground floor. 
 
The concerns of the Town Council are duly noted; however it is not considered that 
the potential impact on the commercial use of the ground floor would be a sufficient 
reason to resist the proposals. The proposals are therefore not considered to be 
unacceptable in principle. 

 
4.2.2 Visual amenity 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. Local Development Plan Policy 
VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage from development that would adversely 
affect them. Planning Policy Wales (Section 6), stresses the importance of protecting 
the historic environment, and in relation to Conservation Areas, to ensure they are 

Tudalen 35



protected or enhanced, while at the same time remaining alive and prosperous, 
avoiding unnecessarily detailed controls. The basic objective is therefore to preserve 
or enhance the character and appearance of a Conservation Area, or its setting. 
 
Having regard to the above and the detailing of the scheme, it is considered that the 
proposals would have an acceptable visual impact and would not detract from the 
character or appearance of the conservation area. The proposals are therefore in 
accordance with the policy requirements set out above. 
 

4.2.3 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the 
impact of development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property 
users, or characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, 
noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. SPG 7 states that 65m2 will be 
the minimum required floor space for 2 bed residential units.  
 
Policy BSC 7 states that proposals for conversion to self contained flats will be 
acceptable provided that the property is suitable for conversion to the number and 
type of flats proposed without unacceptably affecting the character, appearance and 
amenity standards of the locality (including cumulative effects of such proposals and 
the proposal conforms to the Council’s approved space and amenity standards. The 
reasoned justification in relation to this policy states that self-contained flats can help 
to address the needs of those wanting to purchase or rent small units of 
accommodation, as well as providing a relatively affordable housing option for those 
wishing to purchase their first property. Whilst the creation of such flats helps to meet 
housing need, in some instances their provision can be detrimental to the amenity of 
existing residential areas. In addition, areas with high levels of flats are often 
associated with low levels of owner occupation, which in some instances can lead to 
lower standards of maintenance and associated environmental degradation issues. It 
is therefore important that the development of such dwellings is strictly controlled. 
 
Both of the proposed flats exceed the internal floor space standards set out in SPG 7. 

 
Having regard to the nature of development in the area and the policy issues above it 
is considered that the proposed flats would be acceptable in relation to the residential 
amenity of future occupiers, and would not give rise to an over intensification of such 
development. 
 

4.2.4 Open Space 
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 3 seeks to ensure, where relevant, infrastructure 
contributions from development. Policy BSC 11 requires proposals for all new 
residential development to make a contribution to recreation and open space either 
on site, or by provision of a commuted sum. 
 
The proposal is would lead to the net gain of 1 residential unit. 
 
It is considered that the proposals would be acceptable in relation to open space 
subject to the requisite contributions being secured. It is considered that this could be 
done through an appropriately worded condition. 
 

4.2.5 Highways (including access and parking) 
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material 
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and 
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and 
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of means 
of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. Policy ASA 3 
requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection with 
development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to 
the application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set out in 
Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in support of sustainable 

Tudalen 36



development. SPG 21 sets a maximum requirement for parking to be 1.5 spaces per 
1 bed dwelling. This is a maximum requirement and mitigating circumstances such as 
access to off site parking and provision of public transport will be taken into account. 
 
The Highways Officer has raised no objection. 
 
As the site is in a town centre location with good access to public transport and 
access to on street parking and car parks, it is considered acceptable that no on site 
parking can be provided. 
 

4.2.6 Other Matters 
The detailed impact of the proposals on the character and appearance of the listed 
building are subject of a separate application for listed building consent 
(01/2013/1601/LB). 

 
5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 

It is considered that the proposals would be acceptable in relation to the relevant policy tests 
and are therefore recommended for grant. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration 

of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
2. None of the flats hereby approved shall be occupied until the written approval of the Local 

Planning Authority has been obtained to the arrangements for compliance with the Council's 
policies and Supplementary Planning Guidance in relation to the provision of Open Space 

 
 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. In the interest of compliance with adopted open space policies. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
None 

Tudalen 37



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

WARD: 
 

Canol Dinbych 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Gwyneth Kensler 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

01/2013/1601/ LB 

CYNNIG: 
 

Trawsnewid llawr cyntaf ac ail lawr i ffurfio 2 o fflatiau 
hunangynhwysol (cais Adeilad Rhestredig) 
 

LLEOLIAD: Y Fforwm 27-29 Stryd Fawr Dinbych 
 

 

Tudalen 39

Eitem Agenda 6



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 01/2013/1599/PF & 01/2013/1601/LB
27-29 HIGH STREET
DENBIGH

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 305234 E 366111 N

Tudalen 41



Tudalen 42



Tudalen 43



Tudalen 44



Tudalen 45



Tudalen 46



Tudalen 47



Tudalen 48



Tudalen 49



Tudalen 50



 David Roberts
WARD : 
 

Denbigh Central 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Gwyneth Kensler 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

01/2013/1601/ LB 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Conversion of first and second floors to form 2 no. self-contained 
flats (Listed Building application) 
 

LOCATION: The Forum 27-29  High Street   Denbigh 
 

APPLICANT: MrJohn Felton The Old Palace (Chester) Ltd. 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building 
Town Heritage Area 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – Yes 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL 
“I am instructed to inform you that the council would wish to object to the application.   
 
The objection is based on concerns on the viability of use of the ground floor area for 
café/restaurant/commercial use following conversion of the first and second floors to self-
contained flats. 
 
I would be grateful if you would bring the above objection to the notice of the planning 
committee.” 
 
CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST 
Suggest photographic survey prior to works being undertaken 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
Highways Officer 
No objection  

 
          Conservation Architect 

No objection following submission of amended scheme and submission of additional 
justification of alterations. 
 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   04/03/2014 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  

• additional information required from applicant 
• protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
• re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 

Tudalen 51



1.1.1 The proposal is for the conversion of the upper floors of an existing property to form 
2no. self-contained flats. 
 

1.1.2 A two storey extension is proposed to provide a link corridor for both flats. 
 

1.1.3 Both units would be 2 bedroom flats. Both flats would have approximately 95m2 of 
internal floorspace. 

 
1.1.4 Various internal alterations are proposed to facilitate the conversions including 

blocking up of existing openings, forming new door openings and hanging new doors 
within existing openings. 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The application property is a three storey building located on the High Street of 

Denbigh. The ground floor has most recently been used as tearooms and is currently 
vacant. 
 

1.2.2 The second floor of the flat has previously been used as a residential flat. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The application property is a grade II listed building. 

 
1.3.2 The site is located within the town centre and development boundary of Denbigh as 

defined by the Local Development Plan. 
 
1.3.3 The site is within the Denbigh Conservation Area. 

 
1.4 Relevant planning history 

1.4.1 None. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 The scheme has been altered from 4no. self contained flats to 2no. self contained 

flats. 
 

1.5.2 Link corridor added to the proposals to facilitate change from 4no. units to 2no. units. 
 

1.5.3 Additional justification for physical alterations submitted following discussions with the 
conservation officer. 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 None. 

 
2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 

2.1 None. 
 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

SPG 14 - Listed Buildings 
 
3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 November 2012 
 
Circulars 
Welsh Office Circular 61/96 - Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and 
Conservation Areas 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

Tudalen 52



4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Impact on Listed Building 
 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.2.1 Impact on Listed Building 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a Listed 
Building Consent, Planning Policy Wales Edition 5, 2012 (PPW) confirms that there is 
no statutory requirement to have regard to the Local Development Plan when 
considering applications for listed building consent. The context for assessment of 
applications involving alterations / extensions to a listed building which require 
planning permission is set by Welsh Office Circular 61/ 96 and Planning Policy Wales 
(Section 6), which stress the importance of protecting the historic environment. PPW 
6.1 refers specifically to the need to ensure the character of historic buildings is 
safeguarded from alterations, extensions, or demolition that would compromise their 
special architectural and historic interest.; and 6.5.9 indicates that where a 
development proposal affects a listed building or its setting, the primary material 
consideration is the statutory requirement to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, and any features of special architectural or 
historic interest which it possesses. 
 
The Conservation Officer is satisfied that the proposals would not have an 
unacceptable impact on the Listed Building. 
 
Having regard to the design and materials of the proposed alterations and extension it 
is considered that the proposal would preserve the setting, features of special 
architectural merit and historic interest of the building. The proposals are not therefore 
considered to have an unacceptable impact in relation to the Listed Building and are 
recommended for Grant. 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 It is considered that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact in relation to the 

Listed Building and are recommended for grant and referral to Cadw to determine whether to 
authorise the County Council permission to grant consent. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of 

this consent. 
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT 

Prior to the commencement of development a window repair statement and staircase 
protection method statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and the development shall be completed in accordance with the details 
thereby approved 

3. Prior to the installation of doors or windows details at a scale of 1:20 shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and any installation shall be completed in 
accordance with the details thereby approved 

 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of the 1990 Listed Buildings Act. 
2. In the interest of protecting character and appearance of the listed building 
3. In the interest of protecting character and appearance of the listed building. 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
None 

 

Tudalen 53



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

WARD: 
 

Llandrillo 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Cefyn Williams 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

08/2014/1139/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Dymchwel yr annedd bresennol ac adeiladu maes 
parcio i wasanaethu ffatri gyfagos, sy'n cynnwys 
gwneud newidiadau i'r fynedfa bresennol, newidiadau 
i lefelau, tirlunio a gwaith cysylltiedig 
 

LLEOLIAD: Tir ger Trelars Ifor Williams Cyf, Cynwyd, Corwen 
 

 

Tudalen 55

Eitem Agenda 7



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 08/2014/1139/PF
IFOR WILLIAMS TRAILERS LTD
CYNWYD

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 305495 E 341170 N

Tudalen 57



Tudalen 58



Tudalen 59



Tudalen 60



WARD : 
 

Llandrillo 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Cefyn Williams 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

08/2014/1139/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Demolition of existing dwelling and construction of car parking 
area to serve adjacent factory, involving alterations to existing 
access, changes to levels, landscaping and associated works 

LOCATION: Land adjacent to Ifor Williams Trailers Ltd   Cynwyd  Corwen 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Gordon Burns Ifor Williams Trailers Ltd 
 

CONSTRAINTS: None 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – No 
Press Notice – No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – 4 or more objections received 
• Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

CYNWYD COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
“Our Council recently considered the above: 

We have no objection in principal to this application. 

However, a number of concerns were raised, 

Immediate neighbours are totally against the project (7/8) 

The local Primary School (recently renovated and extended by Denbighshire County Council) 
were not informed of the application. Their only approach road to the School is very near to the 
proposed project. It is anticipated that this proposal could increase the volume of traffic in the 
area. 

The village of Cynwyd will shortly become a 20 mph zone. 

We have had no complaints about parking in Cynwyd for a couple of years. 

There is a possibility that minor works by the Gotel could take the traffic off the road from the 
post Office to the proposed development. 

Our concern is for the safety of the Children as well as others and serious consideration should 
be given to this. 

Our Council also felt that should the application be allowed, the applicant should be asked to 
erect a 20mph flashing light on the road towards the school. This would hopefully slow down 
the traffic and make it safer.” 

 

Tudalen 61



 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
No response at time of preparing report 
 
DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER 
Request inclusion of conditions on any permission to ensure no detriment to existing residents, 
the environment and Dwr Cymru Welsh Water assets. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
- Highways Officer 

Detailed comments awaited, but are supportive of the proposal in principle.  
 
          Pollution Control Officer  

Has no objection in principle to the development but needs information on hours of operation 
during the demolition and construction phases, dust mitigation measures, noise mitigation plans 
for both the demolition, construction and the operational use of the scheme (to cover shift 
change events), the  lighting scheme (showing the levels of overspill light and how they impact 
on nearby residential properties, as the site is in an E2 Environmental Zone and so the lighting 
will need to be designed and cowled / orientated appropriately) Has concerns over the removal 
of the noise attenuating barrier from the scheme, which appears  to have been done in 
response to a request from local residents, so would wish this to be reconsidered.  

         
Biodiversity Officer 
Detailed comments awaited following submission of ecological reports. 
 
 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
Alwenna Joyce, Trefal, Station Road, Cynwyd 
B. Williams, Bod Erw, Station Road, Cynwyd 
L.E. Davies, 4 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
D.R. and D.G. Williams, 7 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
N.L. Willis ,1 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
Owner/ Occupier, 6 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
A.T.Jones, 2 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
P.E. Williams, 3 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
G.E. Wynne, 8 Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
Maeshyfryd, Cynwyd 
 
Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
 
Use of parking area 
Concerns if articulated lorries use the parking area overnight  
 
Highways issues 
Concerns over location of entrance / exit as this on the same road as the school and there may 
be conflicts on Friday afternoons when staff leave the site when the school closes / impact on 
the free flow of traffic for local residents/ suggestion for improvements to parking space close to 
B4401 junction / concerns over pedestrian safety for children and elderly from additional traffic 
 
Visual amenity issues 
No detail of retaining walls or fencing adjacent to Boderw / concern over use of black steel 
fencing on outlook from neighbouring property/ preference for 7’ wooden acoustic panels 
 
Residential amenity issues 
Concerns over additional noise and pollution from concentrating parking in one area/ no 
information on hours of use but late night and early morning use (e.g. overnight shift 
changeovers) would be an invasion of privacy and lead to noise and disturbance  
 

Tudalen 62



 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   15/12/14 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 
N/a 
 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The proposal involves the construction of a new parking area to serve the Ifor 

Williams factory in Cynwyd. 
 

1.1.2 The scheme involves the following elements – 
- The demolition of an existing bungalow, Noswyl, which lies immediately to the east 

of an existing parking / storage area for the factory between the main offices and 
the highway serving the site 

- The alteration of the existing main entrance to the front of the Ifor Williams factory 
- The creation of a parking area with 114 spaces, measuring some 70 metres X 30 

metres, involving the recontouring of the land with retaining walls at the north and 
south ends, hard surfacing, and associated drainage works.   

- A planting belt along the eastern boundary with the property Boderw (shown as a 
yew hedge), and security fencing along the road frontage.  

  
1.1.3 The Application is accompanied by a Planning Statement and a Design and Access 

Statement setting out the details of the development. It explains the proposals are to 
provide improved parking and access arrangements in order to resolve issues with 
existing arrangements at the site, and to support the business. It argues that care has 
been taken in the design to ensure it would not result in harmful impacts to the 
amenity or privacy of residents in particular the occupiers of Boderw, through a good 
standard of soft landscaping. It advises that an acoustic fence was proposed originally 
along the eastern boundary, but this was removed following consultation with 
residents as they preferred a hedgerow and other planting in its place, as they 
considered noise levels to the front of the premises to be low. 
 

1.1.4 The plans at the front of the report illustrate the layout and relationship with adjacent 
property. 

 
1.2 Description of site and surroundings 

1.2.1 The site proposed for the parking area is immediately to the east of an existing 
parking / storage area at the front of the Ifor Williams factory main office, and to the 
immediate north of one of the substantial industrial buildings used in connection with 
the business. 
 

1.2.2 The site is occupied by an old bungalow, Noswyl, which has a vehicular access off a 
private track serving adjacent dwellings, which accesses the public highway further to 
the east, opposite the road serving Maes Hyfryd and the village school. 

 
1.2.3 The area between Noswyl and the main highway dips down from the dwelling and up 

again to the highway, and has been recently cleared of vegetation. 
 

1.2.4 The site boundaries are defined by a mix of walls, remnants of hedges and trees and 
fencing. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary of the village of Cynwyd, as drafted in 

the proposals map accompanying the Local Development Plan. 
 

Tudalen 63



1.3.2 There are no specific designations in the Local Development Plan in the vicinity of the 
site proposed for the parking area. The factory site is shown as an Employment site. 
 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 None of specific relevance to the application. 

 
1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 

1.5.1 The applicants have provided an Ecological Assessment and a Protected Species 
Survey following the original submission. The conclusions are that there is no 
evidence suggesting a bat roost has been found during this survey and no further 
survey work is required.  
 

1.5.2 The applicants have expressed willingness to assist with road safety measures such 
as that suggested by the Community Council, should this be the wish of the local 
community. 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 None. 

 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 None relevant to current application. 

 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy PSE2 – Land for employment uses 
Policy PSE5 – Rural economy 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 
Parking Standards  

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 

 
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 

 
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 

Tudalen 64



4.1.4 Ecology 
4.1.5 Drainage (including flooding) 
4.1.6 Highways (including access and parking) 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
There are no policies in the Local Development Plan which relate directly to the 
construction of parking areas in connection with existing businesses. 
Policy PSE 5 supports development which sustains the rural economy, subject to 
compliance with detailed criteria. The provision of a parking area to improve existing 
arrangements for a major employer would be consistent with the general principles of PSE 
5 and the strategies of the Development Plan. 
The key issues are inevitably the local impacts of a proposal of this nature and are 
reviewed in the following sections of the report. 

 
4.2.2 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, layout, 
form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of land / buildings 
and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the visual impact of 
development; test (vi) requires that development does not unacceptably affect prominent 
public views into, out of, or across any settlement or area of open countryside; test (vi) 
requires the incorporation of existing landscape or other features, takes account of site 
contours, and changes in levels and prominent skylines; and test (xiii) requires the 
incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to protect and enhance development in its 
local context. 
 
The proposals involve the clearance of some established natural features such as trees and 
hedgerows, and the introduction of retaining walls, alternative boundary planting of a yew 
hedge along the eastern boundary, and security fencing along the northern boundary. There 
are concerns expressed over the detailing in relation to the visual impact of black steel 
fencing, in terms of effect on the outlook of a nearby dwelling, and there is uncertainty over 
the impact of the proposed retaining wall in the absence of any detail in the submission. 
 
Officer’s view on this matter is that it is unfortunate that the proposals oblige the removal of 
established vegetation, but most of this is inevitable if the number of parking spaces are to be 
created. The comments of local residents are nonetheless to be respected and it is 
considered that the plans as submitted do not show a suitable degree of sensitivity to the 
location and require reassessing to provide basic mitigation of the visual impact of the 
development. If a permission is to be considered, it is suggested that the detailing all the 
boundary treatment including fencing, walls and planting should be subject to conditions 
requiring the submission of alternative / full details to minimise the effects of the development 
on neighbours and the locality.  It will also be important to oblige submission of lighting details 
given the proximity to residential properties, as the visual impact of lights over an area of this 
size could be significant.  
 
4.2.3 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, layout, 
form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of land / buildings 
and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact on residential amenity; 
test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of development on the amenities of local 
residents, other land and property users, or characteristics of the locality, in terms of 
increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. 
 
There are local concerns expressed over potential for loss of residential amenity from the 
proposed parking area, by way of increased noise and disturbance and loss of privacy. There 
are specific concerns over the potential for disturbance at antisocial hours. A separate 
concern has been noted if the parking area is to be used by articulated lorries. The Pollution 
Control Officer has no objection in principle to the development but has requested further 
details of hours of operation, dust and noise mitigation measures, and the lighting scheme. He 

Tudalen 65



has questioned the removal of a noise attenuating barrier from the scheme and suggests that 
it may be necessary for such a barrier to be installed.  

         
 
 

It is apparent that the proposals raise potential residential amenity impact issues in terms of 
the possibility of noise and disturbance from the use of the parking area, and from any lighting 
of the facility. These are more likely to be of concern to occupiers of nearby property at night, 
bearing in mind the factory operates 24 hours a day, and there would be periods during shift 
changes where use of the parking area may be concentrated. Inappropriate lighting during 
hours of darkness can give rise to issues for occupiers of nearby residential properties in 
terms of effect on sleep patterns, and requires careful assessment. Whilst the Pollution 
Control Officer raises no objection to the basic proposals, it is clear that further details are 
required to show how the parking area may be managed to mitigate impacts outside normal 
daytime working hours / overnight, and how a suitable lighting scheme can be designed to 
minimise light pollution. These are matters which would need to be covered by condition if 
permission were to be granted.  

 
4.2.4 Ecology 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and where 
possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5 requires due 
assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated sites of nature 
conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that permission should not be 
granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm to such interests. This reflects 
policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section 5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 – 
Nature Conservation and Species Protection, which stress the importance of the planning 
system in meeting biodiversity objectives through promoting approaches to development 
which create new opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or 
compensate for losses where damage is unavoidable. 
 
There are no individual objections expressed over the potential impact on ecology as a result 
of development. The Ecological information provided by the applicants has been referred to 
the Biodiversity Officer and comments on the conclusions will be reported in the late 
information sheets. 
4.2.5 Drainage (including flooding) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies physical or 
natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to flooding. Planning 
Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material consideration in planning and 
along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, provides a detailed framework within 
which risks arising from different sources of flooding should be assessed. 
 
The application site is not in a Flood Risk area as it is on land elevated well above the River 
Dee to the west. The application proposes that surface water from the parking area be 
directed to Storm Cells within the site and then through a hydrobrake before discharge to the 
surface water system.  Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has confirmed they have no objections. 
 
On the basis of the proposed arrangements and the responses of the technical consultees, it 
is not considered that the development would give rise to any drainage problems in the 
locality. 
 
4.2.6 Highways (including access and parking) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and 
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and 
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local highway 

Tudalen 66



network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection 
with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to the 
application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set out in Planning Policy 
Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in support of sustainable development. 
 
The plans show the intention to provide a marked out parking area and to improve the existing 
entrance into the site off the main approach road. There are local concerns over the highway 
implications of the development in terms of additional traffic on a road used by the village 
school, a question from an individual as to whether the entrance is in the most appropriate 
location, and a suggestion that there may be conflicts with school traffic on Friday afternoons. 
There is concern if articulated lorries use the parking area. The Community Council have 
requested the developer contributes to a 20mph sign proposed near the school, to assist 
efforts at slowing traffic on the approach road. The Highway Officer has no objections to the 
proposal. 
 
In respecting local concerns over the development, Officers opinion is that the proposals offer 
a positive ‘gain’ in respect of providing employee and visitor parking for the Ifor Williams 
factory in close proximity to the main complex. Currently, employees park in a number of 
locations in the village, giving rise to noise and disturbance for a number of residents 
throughout the day and night. The Highway Officer has no issues with the improvement to the 
existing entrance and in respecting the comments made, does not consider the potential for 
conflict with school traffic would be such that the application could be resisted. It has been 
confirmed by the applicants agents that the parking area is not for use by articulated lorries, 
and a condition can be attached to any permission to that effect. It is understood that a range 
of measures are under consideration to improve the safety of the highway serving the site and 
this part of the village, and the Highways section would need to coordinate with the 
developers here to deliver the improvements. 

 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The proposals are to create a 114 space parking area for use in connection with the existing 

Ifor Williams factory. This is considered an acceptable development in principle, in support of 
the employment use.  Having regard to the responses to consultation, Officers suggest that 
the localised impacts would not be unacceptable, subject to suitable mitigation measures 
which would need to be secured through conditions on any permission. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration f 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 

Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall be permitted to commence on 
the retaining walls, the proposed security fencing , or any other boundary fencing and planting 
until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to the detailing 
thereof. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the detailng 
approved under this condition. 

3. All planting, seeding, or turfing, comprised in the landscaping / planting scheme which is 
required in connection with Condition 2 shall be carried out no later than the first planting and 
seeding season following the bringing into use of the parking area.  Any trees or plants which, 
within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size 
and species, unless the local planning authority gives written approval to any variation. 

4. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the parking area shall not be brought into operation 
until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to the detailing of 
a scheme of noise mitigation / attenuation along the boundary with Bod Erw, and the 
approved scheme has been implemented in its entirety. The scheme shall be retained in 
place as approved at all times. 

5. No development shall be permitted to commence until the written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority has been obtained to a Construction Method statement covering the 

Tudalen 67



proposed hours of operation during the demolition and construction phases, dust mitigation 
measures, and noise mitigation plans for both the demolition and construction phase. The 
development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the Method Statement as 
approved. 

6. The parking area shall not be brought into operation until the written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority has been obtained to the proposed hours of operation and a detailed 
Parking Management Plan to demonstrate steps to mitigate the impacts of the use of the 
parking area outside normal daytime working hours. The operation of the parking area shall 
be undertaken in accordance with the approved Management Plan at all times. 

7. No development shall be permitted to commence until details of the surface water regulation 
system have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  Such 
scheme shall be implemented prior to the construction of any impermeable surfaces draining 
to the system unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 

8. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no external lighting shall be permitted without the 
formal written approval of the local planning authority to the detailing of the proposed lighting 
(including the type, the means and extent of lamination and anticipated spread of light).  The 
scheme shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

9. No articulated lorries shall be permitted to use the parking area at any time. 
10. Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or indirectly, into the 

public sewerage system. 
11. No surface water shall be allowed to connect, either directly or indirectly, to the public 

sewerage system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
12. The developer shall provide suitable oil /grease trap to prevent entry into the public sewerage 

system of matter likely to interfere with the free flow of the sewer contents, or which would 
prejudicially affect the treatment and disposal of such contents. 

 
 
 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
3. In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
4. In the interests of residential amenity. 
5. In the interests of residential amenity. 
6. In the interests of residential amenity. 
7. To ensure the development does not give rise to unacceptable surface water drainage issues. 
8. In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
9. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of residential amenity. 
10. To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the 

environment. 
11. To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 
12. To ensure proper steps are taken to contain any spillage of the materials referred to, to 

prevent pollution of the site and nearby stream. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
In relation to the conditions of this permission requiring the submission and approval of further details, 
you are encouraged to discuss proposals for the boundary treatment of the site with the Planning 
Officer, in particular to improve the detailing along the highway boundary, to soften the impact of 
security fencing; and to engage with the Planning Officer and Pollution Control Officer in respect of 
any lighting and noise attenuation details, given the proximity to residential property. 
 
 

Tudalen 68



 

 

WARD: 
 

Llandyrnog 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Merfyn Parry (c) 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

18/2014/1133/ PS 

CYNNIG: 
 

Dileu amodau 6, 7 ac 8 caniatâd cynllunio amlinellol 
cod rhif 18/2010/1503 yn ymwneud â Gofynion y Cod 
Cartrefi Cynaliadwy 
 

LLEOLIAD: Tir y tu ôl i’r Golden Lion Inn, Llandyrnog, Dinbych 
 

 

Tudalen 69

Eitem Agenda 8



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 18/2014/1133/PS
GOLDEN LION INN
LLANDYRNOG

Application Site

Date 24/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 310835 E 365089 N

Tudalen 71



Tudalen 72



Tudalen 73



Tudalen 74



 Paul Griffin
WARD : 
 

Llandyrnog 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Merfyn Parry (c) 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

18/2014/1133/ PS 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Removal of condition no's 6, 7 and 8 of outline planning 
permission code no. 18/2010/1503 relating to Code for 
Sustainable Homes requirements 

LOCATION: Land rear of Golden Lion Inn   Llandyrnog  Denbigh 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Merfyn Parry 
 

CONSTRAINTS: PROW 
 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – No 
Press Notice – No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Application submitted on behalf of County Councillor  
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

LLANDYRNOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL: awaiting response 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

None received. 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   11/12/14 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 N/A 

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The proposal is to remove planning conditions 6, 7 and 8 attached to planning 

permission 18/2010/1503/PO which related to an outline consent for a single dwelling 
on land to the rear of The Golden Lion in Llandyrnog. 

 
1.1.2 Conditions 6,7,8 required the relevant Code for Sustainable Homes / BREEAM levels 

to be achieved in connection with the development. 
 

1.1.3 The application has been submitted following the publication of Planning Policy Wales 
Edition 7 and the cancellation of TAN 22, which removed the requirement for planning 
consents to incorporate sustainability code standards. 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The site is located on land to the rear of the public house, the Golden Lion. The 

application refers to the existing use of land being a car-park and storage area.  
 
1.2.2 It is a flat site, bounded to the north by a row of Yew Trees in the grounds of the 

adjacent St Turnogs Church. To the west is the rear of the public house and attached 

Tudalen 75



Golden Lion Cottage. South of the application site are the garden areas of the 
adjacent terrace of dwellings.  

 
1.2.3 The site is accessed from a narrow track which runs from the B5429 road at the White 

Horse Inn and links to the Llangwyfan Road adjacent to Brondyffryn Terrace to the 
south.  
 

1.2.4 The development has not yet been started.. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary of Llandyrnog, as defined in the Local 

Development Plan. 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 Outline planning permission was granted in October 2011 for a single dwelling, and 

the subsequent reserved matters were approved in September 2012. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 None 

 
1.6 Other relevant background information 

1.6.1 None 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 18/2010/1503/PO – Development of 0.08ha of land by the erection of a detached two-storey 

dwelling house(outline application including access and layout). GRANTED by  planning 
committee 21/10/11 

 
2.2 18/2012/0885/PR - Details of appearance, landscaping and scale of dwelling submitted in 

accordance with Condition No. 1 of Outline Planning Permission Code No. 18/2010/1503. 
APPROVED 19/9/12 

 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 

 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

None 
 
3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 
 
TAN 12: Design July 2014 
 

3.3 Other material considerations: 
 
Welsh Government Chief Planning Officer Letter 31/07/2014 introducing the changes to 
Planning Policy Wales and guidance on sustainable buildings dated 31 July 2014. 
 
Welsh Government CL-03-14 Planning for Sustainable Buildings – clarification on the national 
Planning for Sustainable Buildings policy letter dated 05 June 2014 
 
The opinion of Max Hampton, Welsh Government Planning Manager on planning applications 
of this nature received 29/10/2014: “I do not believe it is possible to link the Building 
Regulations and Development Management processes as they are two separate regulatory 
functions and, given this, we accept that during this transitional period there may be some 
instances where development proposals will have the CfSH requirement removed and not 
have to comply with the 2014 Building Regulations.” 

Tudalen 76



 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle of sustainable code standards 
 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.2.1 Principle of sustainable code standards 
 
Background: 
Conditions 6, 7 and 8 were imposed at the time in accordance with the guidance contained in 
the now cancelled TAN 22 and in the former section 4.12 of Planning Policy Wales. 

 
Changes to Part L (relating to energy efficiency) of the Building Regulations came into force 
at the end of July 2014. 

 
The national planning policy requirements for sustainable building standards were removed 
from Planning Policy Wales and TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings was cancelled as 
it was considered that the Building Regulations 2014 would adequately address the energy 
and carbon performance of buildings, and therefore this is no longer a planning consideration. 

 
Current policy context: 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 paragraph 4.3.1 clearly states tackling climate change by 
reducing the greenhouse gas emissions that cause climate change and ensuring that places 
are resilient to the consequences of climate change; is one of the key principles which 
underpins the Welsh Government’s approach to planning policy for sustainable development 
which all those involved in the planning system are expect to adhere to. 
 
Para 4.4.3 states planning policy, decisions and proposals should play an appropriate role to 
facilitate sustainable building standards (including zero carbon) that seek to minimise the 
sustainability and environmental impacts of buildings (Section 4.12). 
 
Para 4.12.2 states Development proposals should mitigate the causes of climate change by 
minimising carbon and other greenhouse gas emissions associated with their design, 
construction, use and eventual demolition. The overall aspiration is to secure zero carbon 
buildings while continuing to promote a range of low and zero carbon (LZC) technologies as a 
means to achieve this. 
 
TAN 12 (July 2014) 5.4.7 states the level of carbon reduction expected will be determined by 
the minimum required by Building Regulations (Part L). The contribution and mix that each of 
these low and zero carbon design solutions provides will be dependent on the design 
approach taken. 
 

Tudalen 77



TAN 12 Appendix 3 (Sources and Further Information) lists Welsh Government (2014) 
Building Regulations – Part L (Conservation of Fuel and Power). For the purposes of TAN 12 
5.4.7, Building Regulations (Part L) is taken to mean Building Regulations (Part L) 
 
Assessment: 
With regards to this scheme, a Building Regulations application has not yet been made. 
Therefore the development will have to proceed in line with the Building Regulations 2014. 

 
Building Regulations 2014 Part L extend the energy efficiency requirements for all new 
domestic buildings to have an 8% reduction in greenhouse-gas emissions from 2010 Building 
Regulations levels. 
 
This scheme is therefore required to achieve the higher energy efficiency standards 
prescribed in Building Regulations 2014.  

 
5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 

5.1 The removal of conditions 6, 7 and 8 is considered acceptable as the dwelling will need to be 
built to the Building Regulations 2014 and the updated energy efficiency requirements. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT 

 
No conditions imposed. 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
None 
 
 

Tudalen 78



 

 

WARD: 
 

Trefnant 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Meirick Lloyd Davies 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

31/2013/1079/ PFHY 

CYNNIG: 
 

Gosod cynllun trydan micro-hydro  

LLEOLIAD: Tir yn Elwy Meadows, Ffordd Isaf Dinbych, Llanelwy 
 

 

Tudalen 79

Eitem Agenda 9



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 31/2013/1079/PFHY
LAND AT ELWY MEADOWS
LOWER DENBIGH ROAD, ST ASAPH

Application Site

Date 25/9/2014 Scale 1/2500

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 303891 E 372442 N

Tudalen 81



Tudalen 82



Tudalen 83



Tudalen 84



Tudalen 85



Tudalen 86



Tudalen 87



Tudalen 88



Tudalen 89



Tudalen 90



 Emer O'Connor
WARD: 
 

Trefnant 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Meirick Lloyd Davies 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

31/2013/1079/ PFHY 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Installation of micro hydro electric scheme 

LOCATION: Land at Elwy Meadows  Lower Denbigh Road   St Asaph 
 

APPLICANT: MrRichard ReesNorth Wales Hydro Power Ltd 
 

CONSTRAINTS: C2 Flood Zone 
Main River 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – No 
Press Notice – No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

CEFN MEIRIADOG COMMUNITY COUNCIL –  
“Cefn Meiriadog Community Council have no objections, they fully support this application”   
 
ST ASAPH CITY COUNCIL – 
“ St. Asaph City Council have no objections to the Hydro System per se, we would insist on a 
maintenance programme being included and that the weir be fit for purpose prior to the 
installation of the Hydro System. We ask for assurance from Planning that these conditions are 
in place prior to approval of the planning.” 
 
TREFNANT COMMUNITY COUNCIL - 
No comments received at time of preparing the report 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES (NRW) 
In response to consultation on the planning application, NRW have provided the following 
comments: 
In relation to the amended proposals – 
NRW have no objection to the application. 
- ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING (ABSTRACTION / IMPOUNDMENT LICENSING) 

 NRW confirm they have no objection in principle to the proposals and are able to issue an 
abstraction licence.  

- FLOOD RISK –  
 NRW have reviewed the revised Flood Consequences Assessment and confirm the 
contents are generally commensurate to the type, nature, and scale of the development. 
Welcome proposals to incorporate flood proofing measures within the turbine house. 

- FLOOD DEFENCE CONSENT –  
 In accordance with the Water Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage Byelaws, the 
prior written consent of Natural Resources Wales has been granted for the works and 
structures located in, under, over or within 7 metres of the bank top of the Afon Elwy, 
designated "main river" (Consent NE2013LD125B). Temporary in- channel works require 
separate Flood Defence Consent from NRW. 

- POLLUTION CONTROL AND WASTE MANAGEMENT –  
NRW outline measures required to minimise impacts on the watercourse, to accommodate 
any oil storage facilities and disposal of waste excavation or building materials 

- PROTECTED SPECIES – 
 NRW consider the surveys and assessment in respect of statutory protected species to 
have been completed to a satisfactory standard for the purpose of informing the decision 
making process 

Tudalen 91



 
- NRW had previously commented on the following in response to the original contents of 

the planning application: 
- FISHERIES –  
 NRW have received and approved the Fish Pass Details.  
- ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT –  
 There must be no adverse impact on water quality. The applicant should comply with NRW 

PPG5: Works and maintenance in or near water. Waste should be disposed of in 
accordance with Section 34 of Environmental Protection Act 1990. The activity of importing 
waste into the site must be registered as a permitted activity under the Environmental 
Permitting Regulations 2007. 

 
Developments involving NRW  following the deferral of the application at the November 
2014 Planning Committee are dealt with in Section 1.5 of the report. 
 

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAELOGICAL TRUST (CPAT) 
No objection, according to OS first edition mapping the weir may be connected to the former 
Wigfair Isaf Mill by a long leat heading north from the weir. The weir therefore dates to at least 
1874 and it probably earlier than this in origin. CPAT recommend a survey and archaeological 
watching brief is undertaken prior to the commencement of development.  

 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
BIODIVERSITY OFFICER –  
No additional comments on amended submission. Ecologist had previously expressed 
satisfaction that the ecological surveys undertaken are suitable and commensurate with the 
development and agreed with the conclusions within the report.  
 
TREE CONSULTANT 
Has assessed the submission and is aware of the basis of objections. Advises that 11 trees are 
proposed to be removed; of these, the best specimen is a mature ash which is of very minor 
importance as an amenity feature in the landscape because there are numerous other trees at 
this location. Other trees to be felled are either not particularly good, or poor specimens. 
Confirms there is confusion over reference to Black Poplars – as the specimens in the area are 
not Native Black Poplars, but hybrids which are not rare or important. Suggests any consent 
obliges replanting, details of protective barriers, and work being carried out in accordance with 
the Tree Protection Plan.   

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:  
 
Chris White (by email, no address provided) 
John Lewis, Mill Brook, The Mill Yard, Lavister, Wrexham 
Andrew Kelton, Fish Legal, Leominster, Herefordshire (on behalf of Rhyl and St Asaph Angling 
Association) 
Stephen Barlow, Nefydd House, Llanefydd  
David Jones, Federation of Clwyd Angling Clubs, Panorama, Rhuallt 
John Morris, 39 Orme View Drive, Prestatyn 
David Roberts, 11 Park Drive, Carmel, Holywell  
Paul King, 17 Llys Y Tywysog, Tremeirchion 
Eugene Grube, 28 Rhodfa Glenys, St Asaph 
Robert Hall, 6 Breezehill Park, Neston, Cheshire 
Graham Whalley, 25 Grasmere Close, Prestatyn 
Allan Cuthbert, 25 Ceg y Ffordd, Prestatyn (on behalf of Campaign for the Protection of Welsh 
Fisheries) 
Ian Macdonald, Secretary, Rhyl and St Asaph Angling Association, 20 Y Maes, Denbigh 
John Davidson, Bryn Rhedyn, Windmill, Pentre Halkyn, Holywell, Flintshire 
Tim Mainland, Wigfair Fach, Wigfair Isa, Lower Denbigh Road, St Asaph 
David Gartside, 34 Compton Way, Abergele 
Martyn Hogg, Ysgoboriau, Lower Denbigh Road, St Asaph 
Mr and Mrs Donaghy, Pen Ucha Roe Bach, Lower Denbigh Road, St Asaph 

 

Tudalen 92



In objection to the proposals 
Summary of representations : 
 
Impacts on the river and river environment 
Concerns over effects on migratory fish river (salmon and sea trout up and downstream 
migratory paths, breeding) /  impacts on salmonoids / questions over fish pass suitability at a 
low head hydro scheme/ impact on river Elwy, maintenance/blockage of fish pass, silt and 
build-up of debris likely to occur/ existing schemes at Penmachno and Cefn should be 
monitored and negative impacts considered / concerns over decommissioning and 
reinstatement of weir/ changes to plans of additional concern as they involve relocation of fish 
pass to the north side of the turbine, which would redirect the river to the left hand bank 
around the weir, devastating the fishery on the upstream right hand bank and by passing the 
existing downstream pool; would make it impossible to monitor fish passage and respond to 
problems/ there would be downstream alterations to the bed of the river affecting flow and 
resting conditions for salmonids/ confusing and inadequate level of detail on plans to fully 
understand effects, including reference to ‘ornamental flow’, amount of water to be diverted, 
and impact on fishing pool upstream/ simple alternatives to modify the existing fish pass 
would obviate need for a new one /no mention of the state or structural integrity of the weir, 
heightening concerns over consequences of its disintegration/ additional concerns over 
construction period in dry summer months when migratory fish make their return to the river 
.  
Flood risk- 
Potential impact on river flows/ potential for blockages through build up and release of debris 
and silting are not addressed, along with downstream consequences / document suggesting 
the limited risk from flooding and no increase in risk from the development is disingenuous 
given recent history, as the development will concentrate flow on the northern bank and the 
installation will constitute an additional obstruction to accumulate debris and increase flood 
risk beyond the site / Concerns over adequacy of information on the impact of the installation 
under all states of the river, in terms of impacts on the likelihood of flooding / Proposals will 
further restrict the flow of the river putting property at heightened risk of flooding 
 
Impact on local economy  
Significant impacts arising from degrading of fishing facility, including loss of salmon stock / 
would deprive local community of more money than it would return. 
 
Biodiversity impacts 
Proposal will have negative biodiversity impacts / insufficient number of species surveyed/ 
evidence of otter holt adjacent to site,  voles and badgers are a common sight, mink are 
understood to be present in the area / habitat survey was undertaken in June so could not 
establish if salmon or sea trout spawn in the area / risk of breaches of legislation in relation to 
a range of species must be assessed 
 
Visual amenity  
Concern over loss of trees in particular loss of Black Poplars / no good reason to remove 
trees.  
 
Noise impacts . 
Concern over impact of noise in relation to turbine / potential noise from Archimedean screw 
on migration of salmon and sea trout 
 
Planning policy conflicts 
Conflicts with VOE 10- proposal does not demonstrate that there will be no unacceptable 
impact on  nature conservation and wildlife.  
 
 
Other matters - 
 
Inadequate summary of representations / not all objectors included in original report 
 

Tudalen 93



Ownership issues- NRW do not own the weir, title from the middle of the weir to the right hand 
side of the river bank is unclear/ Riparian rights exist and have not been considered.  
 
Fishing rights affected- impact on viability of long established and well known sea trout and 
salmon fishery/ significant impact on Members of Rhyl & St Asaph Angling Association and 
permit holders.  
 
Carbon reduction figures and efficiency figures queried / actual savings would be minor.   
 
Consideration should be given to securing an undertaking / bond from the applicants in 
relation to the construction, implementation, and maintenance of the development, and to 
cover contingencies if something goes wrong 
 
Concerns over the neutrality of the NRW in the process / independent advice should be 
obtained, including a structural survey of the weir as this has suffered from structural failure 
and could cause a surge in floodwater with downstream impacts/ poor communication by 
NRW with fishing associations 
 
Inadequate awareness /  regard by NRW to impact of hydro scheme at Cefn 
 
Representations received immediately prior to the November Planning Committee 
meeting 
 
Additional emails were received from Ian Macdonald, Secretary of Rhyl and St Asaph Angling 
Association, and from Andrew Kelton, Fish Legal, raising matters on behalf of the Association.  
 
The emails referred to ongoing exchanges between the Angling Association and Natural 
Resources Wales (NRW), and in particular to what NRW had advised they were dealing with 
as a formal complaint from the Association over their responses to issues of concern in 
relation to the Abstraction Licence issued in relation to the hydro proposals at Elwy Weir. The 
Association advised that NRW had confirmed they were due to respond to them by the 20th 
November , hence the Association suggested as the County Council ‘are relying on NRW as 
being their experts’, that the application be deferred to a later meeting.  
 
The Fish Legal email reiterated this point and suggested reliance on NRW is unsatisfactory on 
the basis that NRW’s determination of the abstraction licence has been demonstrably 
inadequate. The email  refered to failure to address the decrepit condition of the weir, and 
suggested that the Council should not be deferring to NRW in relation to all matters to do with 
flow issues (weir sustainability, flood risk, and fish passage). It also suggested  that there may 
be harm to property rights which may infringe the Human Rights Act. It stated that it is 
essential to require a full engineering survey of the weir to ascertain repairs necessary; that 
the pool redesigns required under the Abstraction Licence should be in consultation with the 
angling and any other interests; and that provision should be made for compensation to be 
paid by the developer to angling right holders should there be measurable impact on the 
quality and capital value of the fishery affected by the development. On these grounds, as it 
was contended there was no consideration of such conditions by the Council, deferral was 
considered necessary. 
 
 
Section 1.5 of the report provides detailed comments on developments since the deferral of 
the item at the November Committee and the relevance of matters raised by and on behalf of 
the Angling Association is dealt with in the Planning Assessment section of the report. 
 
 
In support of the application 
 
Edward Sample, Carter Jonas (on behalf of Cefn Estates) 
 
Main points – 

Tudalen 94



Development will complement the fish pass under construction further up the River Elwy and 
would make it more effective in supporting the passage of migratory salmonids through the 
Elwy catchment / the Elwy catchment would benefit greatly from two new fish passes. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   17/10/2013 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

• Additional information sought. 
• Additional consultations  

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 Consideration of the application has been deferred previously at the October and 

November 2014 meetings of the Planning Committee.  
 

1.1.2 The October deferral was to allow additional consultations to be carried out with 
neighbouring Community Councils and private individuals. 

 
 

1.1.3  The November deferral was to allow opportunity for Natural Resources Wales to 
confirm their position following their investigation into a complaint from the Rhyl and 
St Asaph Angling Association over the consideration given to representations on the 
Abstraction licence application, and to enable the Officer report to address the 
relevance of any issues arising from this process and representations by and on 
behalf of the Angling Association to the consideration of the planning application. 
  

1.1.4 The proposal involves the development of  an 81kW micro hydroelectric generating 
scheme on the River Elwy, in a location 150 metres to the south east of the property 
Elwy Meadows, some 2 kilometres south of the A525 bridge over the river in the 
centre of St Asaph.  
 

1.1.5 The main elements of the development are – 
 

- an intake immediately upstream of an existing weir, intercepting the original mill 
leat 

- a new fish pass 
- a debris screen and sluice gate (timber groynes, a finer bar screen, and a sluice 

gate) 
- a  3.8m X 6.3m turbine house building with larch clad external walls and a local 

slate roof, containing a generator linked to an Archimedean Screw 
- a tailrace, walled on the northern bank, directing flow back to the River Elwy 
 
The plans at the front of the report give an indication of the proposed scheme. 
 
 

1.1.6 The planning application is supported by a Design and Access Statement, a Flood 
Consequences Assessment, an Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey, a Tree Survey, a 
Technical Summary, and a Construction Method Statement. 
 
The Design and Access Statement provides an overview of the proposals, including 
commentary on the development of the scheme, its key elements, and general 
environmental and planning issues. Relevant points in the document include –  

Tudalen 95



 
- The applicants are North Wales Hydro Power Ltd. 
- The scheme has been developed taking account of a number of factors, based 

around causing the least environmental impact whilst generating as much 
renewable electricity as possible 

- Relevant Wildlife and Tree surveys and a Flood Consequences Assessment 
have been undertaken. There is a Technical Summary and Construction 
Method Statement in the submission. 

- It is stated that the scheme has been designed to minimise impacts on 
ecological interests with suitable mitigation proposals; pollution risks at 
construction stage would be minimised in accordance with the Construction 
Method Statement ; the consequences of any flooding have been managed 
down to a level which is acceptable for the nature of development proposed, 
including suitable flood protection measures, and there would be no material 
increased flood risk elsewhere; noise mitigation measures will be included in 
the design of the turbine house and there will be no operational noise impact; 
11 trees will need to be removed to facilitate the development, the site area 
having been kept down to a minimum to limit the number of trees to be felled; 

- There is a separate authorisation process in relation to the detailing of Hydro 
electric schemes, administered by Natural Resources Wales. This includes an 
Abstraction Licence for water to be removed from the stream, Flood Defence 
Consent for carrying out works in –river or close to it, and Fish Pass Approval. 
NRW are therefore responsible for control over many elements of the 
proposals, including flow associated with the hydro scheme. 

- There are renewable energy benefits arising from hydro schemes, recognised 
in Planning Policy and guidance at local and Welsh Government level. 

 
1.2 Description of site and surroundings 

1.2.1 The proposed hydro scheme would be within the River Elwy at an existing weir 
approximately 2 kilometers south of St Asaph, in a location to the south east of the 
property Elwy Meadows. The B5381 (Lower Denbigh Road) runs approximately 200 
metres to the west. 
 

1.2.2 It is stated in the Technical Summary that the existing weir was built to provide flow 
for a now defunct mill, and creates an impoundment of the River Elwy.  
 

1.2.3 The area is characterised by a wide river profile with low banks, riverside and field 
boundary trees and hedgerows.  

 
1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 

1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside, and is within a C2 Flood Zone as shown 
on the Development Advice Maps produced in association with TAN 15.  
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 None.  
 

1.5 Developments / changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 In relation to the detailing of the scheme, clarification was sought from the applicant in 

relation to the detail of the fish pass, in relation to comments raised by objectors and 
NRW. Revised details were submitted in mid September 2014, and were the subject 
of a reconsultation exercise. 
 

1.5.2 As noted above, further consultations were carried out in mid October 2014 following 
requests for notification to adjacent Community Councils and private properties. The 
summary of all consultee responses and representations received up to the date of 
drafting this updated version are included at the head of the report. 

 
1.5.3 Following deferral at the November meeting of the Committee, there have been 

further exchanges with Natural Resources Wales, and additional correspondence 

Tudalen 96



from the applicants. The substance of these exchanges are referred to below for 
Members information. 

 
1.5.4 Officers contacted NRW immediately following deferral, requesting confirmation of 

their conclusions on the investigation into the Angling Association’s complaint and 
confirmation as to whether any aspects of that investigation impact on comments 
NRW have made on the planning application for the hydro scheme. NRW were 
forwarded the Fish Legal letter which suggested  that the County Council's reliance 
on NRW as its 'expert' is misplaced and that 'the Council should not just be deferring 
to the judgment of NRW in relation to all matters to do with fishing rights and flow 
issues ‘ (weir sustainability, flood risk and fish passage). Officers also sought 
comment on detailed questions raised over land ownership issues, the need for a 
structural survey of the weir and details of its restoration and maintenance, 
construction of fish pools, and compensation for adverse impact on fish stock. NRW 
were asked to advise whether they remain satisfied that there is sufficient information 
provided with the planning application in relation to assessment of flood risk, that they 
do not consider there is unacceptable additional flood risk as a result of the 
development and finally that there are no conditions they require the County Council 
to impose on any planning consent which may be granted to deal with issues relating 
to flooding.  
 

1.5.5 Natural Resources Wales have confirmed they have responded to the Angling 
Association’s complaint over the processing of the Abstraction Licence application. 
Their advice to the County Council is as follows:  
“Natural Resources Wales is satisfied that the appropriate legislation and guidance 
has been followed and adhered to during the determination of the abstraction licence 
application. Natural Resources Wales has taken full consideration of all aspects of the 
application and comments provided during the advertising period. During the 
representation period, Natural Resources Wales were notified of the concerns 
regarding the impacts upon local fisheries. These impacts were taken into account 
based on the information provided at the time. Natural Resources Wales have 
considered the impact of foreseeable changes to the Afon Elwy might have on local 
fisheries and have concluded there will be no significant impact caused by the grant 
of this abstraction licence. 
The applicant is not the owner of the weir and is therefore not currently responsible 
for any repair work to the weir. The grant of an abstraction licence cannot grant 
access to land or property. If the applicant needs to obtain access to both sides of the 
river for development purposes this will have to be resolved with the relevant land 
owners and is outside of our jurisdiction under the Water Resources Act 1991. 
Natural Resources Wales has no powers to require financial information or to require 
a bond.” 
 
 With respect to questions raised over the imposition of conditions on any planning 
approval, NRW have stated with regard to:  
“a. a survey of the condition of the weir to determine the need for and carrying out of 
repairs;  
We have not requested such a condition when providing our formal response to the 
planning application. 
b. details of the re-design of the fish pool(s) required under the Abstraction Licence, in 
order to involve angling interests in the consultation process;  
We have not requested such a condition when providing our formal response to the 
planning application as the applicant must comply with the conditions of the 
Abstraction Licence 
c. arrangements for compensation payment from the developer to angling rights 
holders if there is a measurable impact on the quality and capital value of the fishery 
affected by the development. 
 We have not requested such a condition when providing our formal response to the 
planning application. We consider that this is an issue that your local authority should 
decide upon, possibly with advice from your legal department to determine whether 
and how such a condition would be enforceable.” 

Tudalen 97



 
1.5.6 The applicants have responded to the latest deferral of the application in the following 

terms –  
“It was most annoying that the committee chose to defer yesterday.  I wish it had 
been made clearer to them that the NRW licences and planning applications are 
standalone consents and that there is no statutory pre-requisite for either to be in 
place before the other and that the complaint to the granting of the abstraction licence 
is totally irrelevant to the planning application and not a material consideration.  There 
appears to be a blurring of lines between the two sets of legislation by Denbighshire 
and we are not happy with the handling of this issue. 
In other LPAs this would never have been a discussion point at all.  For example in 
SNPA the majority of our 20+ planning permissions have all been granted prior to 
determination of other environmental permits such as abstractions licences because 
the LPAs acknowledge that they are standalone consents.  For the avoidance of 
doubt/additional comfort SNPA use the following condition on all our planning 
permissions: 
“The abstraction and impounding of water is to be made in complete accordance with 
any ‘Licence to abstract’ and ‘Licence to Impound’ as issued by Natural Resources 
Wales” 
We would not be adverse to a similar condition being imposed on this site.  Please 
note that Impound Licence is not relevant to this scheme so it may be more 
appropriate to just state “any relevant environmental permit or licence issued by 
NRW” etc) 
We wish your report for the next committee to be clearer in the formal role of the LPA 
and the distinction between the different consents/legislation and we do not want the 
committee to be drawn into a discussion about anything that relates to the 
environmental licencing process ie. water flows, impact on fisheries and river habitats.  
It is not within the remit of the LPA or planning committee to determine the planning 
application based on these issues and we would like you to remind the committee of 
that they must focus only on the material planning considerations. 
In layman’s terms this may be a useful guide worth providing to the committee: 
http://www.rtpi.org.uk/media/686895/Material-Planning-Considerations.pdf  “ 
(a relevant section  is highlighted) 
 
In relation to the late information reported to the November Committee, the applicants 
have advised: 
“Picking up on the summary of these emails in the report (copied below) I would like 
to point out that property rights and property value and compensation are not matters 
that should be taken into consideration by the LPA so again we wish this to be made 
very clear to the committee. “ 
 
 

 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 A briefing was organised in mid October to inform Members on the detailing of the 
proposals and the issues arising. A further briefing is to be held prior to the December 
Planning Committee. 
 

 
2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 

2.1 None.  
 
 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
 
3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy VOE 1 – Key Areas of importance 
Policy VOE5 – Conservation of natural resources 

Tudalen 98



Policy VOE 10 – Renewable energy technologies 
 
3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPG 18 – Nature Conservation and Species Protection 
 
3.3 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 
Technical Advice Notes:  
TAN5 – Nature conservation and planning 
TAN8 – Renewable energy 
TAN15 – Development and Flood Risk 
Circular 60/96 Planning and the Historic Environment 
 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications 
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the 
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned, and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Landscape / visual impact 
4.1.3 Residential Amenity including noise  
4.1.4 Ecology 
4.1.5 Flooding and water quality 
4.1.6 Archaeology 
4.1.7 Other matters 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
Members may be aware that at national level, the UK is subject to the EU Renewable Energy 
Directive, which includes a target of generating 15% of the UK’s total energy demand from 
renewable energy sources by 2020. Para 12.8.1 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) reaffirms 
UK and Welsh Government commitment to playing its part by delivering an energy 
programme which contributes to reducing carbon emissions as part of its proposals to 
tackling climate change. It refers to Welsh Government’s Energy Policy Statement (2010), 
which identifies the sustainable renewable energy potential for a variety of different 
technologies. 
 
For planning purposes, Figure 12.2 of PPW defines the following renewable and low carbon 
energy scales, which is of relevance to the application: 
 

Scale of development Threshold (Electricity and heat) 
Strategic Over 25 MW for onshore wind and 

over 50 MW for all other 
technologies 

Local Authority – Wide Between 5MW and 25 MW for 
onshore wind and between 5 MW 

Tudalen 99



and 50MW for all other 
technologies 

Sub local authority Between 50kW and 5MW 
Micro Below 50kW 

    
This application therefore falls within the ‘sub local authority’ scale of development in PPW, 
which in para 12.9.9 states that such projects are ‘applicable in all parts of Wales’. 
 
TAN 8 supplements PPW and provides technical advice and guidance on renewable energy 
projects. It refers in Section 3.12 to Hydro–Power and the development of ‘run of river’ 
schemes in Wales, that these are generally supported, although there may be occasions 
where account needs to be taken of potential ecological damage, and that there is need for 
close liaison with the NRW as licensing authority for abstraction and impoundment. 
  
Policy VOE 10 offers general support for proposals which promote the provision of renewable 
energy technologies, providing they are located so as to minimise visual, noise, and amenity 
impacts and demonstrate no unacceptable impact on the interests of nature conservation, 
wildlife, natural and cultural heritage, landscape, public health and residential amenity. 
 
Taken together, the contents of Planning Policy Wales, TAN 8, and the policy in the LDP 
provide support in principle for this type of renewable energy development subject to the 
detailed assessment of localised impacts, which includes taking into account the potential 
impacts on landscape, visual and residential amenity, and ecological interests. 
 
Officers’ view is that as the proposal is for a sub local authority scale Hydro project, the 
principle of this development is acceptable in general policy terms. The Council has 
consented to a number of hydro schemes in recent years. The key issues in this instance are 
considered to be the local impacts of the development, which are reviewed in the following 
sections of the report. 
 
4.2.2 Landscape/ visual impact 
The general requirement to consider the impact of development on the landscape specific to 
a hydro scheme development is LDP policy VOE 10 which requires specific assessment / 
explanation of impact on the landscape, and mitigation proposals. 
 
The site is not located in an area with statutory landscape designations. The turbine would be 
sited on a weir on an existing river. The turbine house is the largest above ground element of 
the development and would measure 3.8 metres by 6.3 metres, with an overall height of 3.8 
metres, and would comprise a larch clad building with a slate roof. Concerns have been 
raised that the development would have an impact on the visual amenity of the area, 
including the loss of trees. It is suggested that NRW have shown no awareness of the smaller 
hydro scheme at Cefn and that the impact of the proposed development would be more 
significant than that one. The Council’s Tree Consultant has no objections to the proposals 
and has confirmed there are no Native Black Poplars affected.  

 
In accepting that the turbine house would be visible on the river bank, considering the size 
and detailing of the building, it is not considered that its visual impact and that of the other 
elements of the scheme would be unacceptable when completed, and following the 
reinstatement of the surrounding land. The design of the turbine house would be in keeping 
with traditional buildings in the area. Whilst there are proposals to remove trees as part of the 
scheme, the extent of loss is limited and is of no concern to the Tree Consultant. Officers’ 
opinion is that the proposal would not have unacceptable impact on landscape or visual 
amenity, and is not in conflict with national and local planning policy. 
 
4.2.3 Residential Amenity including noise 
Local Development Plan Policy VOE 10 seeks to ensure development does not have an 
adverse impact on residential amenity, and this would include assessment of the potential 
noise and general amenity impacts on local residents from any renewable energy project. 
 

Tudalen 100



The turbine equipment to be located in the turbine house has the potential to generate noise. 
Information submitted with the application states that this can be minimised via design, and 
given the nearest dwelling would be 130 metres to the north west of the site, there will be no 
operational noise issues.  
 
Having regard to the location of residential properties adjacent to the field where the 
proposed turbine house is to be located, Officers’ opinion is that the imposition of a condition 
to ensure sound attenuation is put in place would provide adequate safeguards for occupiers 
of these properties. In combination with controls over construction phase operations, this 
would ensure the tests in the relevant planning policy, VOE 10 are met. It is not considered 
that the potential for noise arising from the turbine causing disturbance to fishermen would be 
a reasonable basis for opposing the development. 
 
4.2.4 Ecology 
The general requirement to consider the impact of development on biodiversity interests is set 
out in PPW Chapter 5, TAN 5 and LDP policy VOE 5. Specific to a hydro development is LDP 
policy VOE 10 which requires specific assessment / explanation of impact on biodiversity, and 
mitigation proposals. VOE 5 requires proposals which may have an effect on protected 
species or designated sites of nature conservation to be supported by a biodiversity 
statement having regard to the County biodiversity aspiration for conservation, enhancement, 
and restoration of habitats and species. 
 
A Phase 1 Habitat Survey has been undertaken to cover amphibians, badgers, bats, birds 
and reptiles. The survey includes recommendations for mitigation and enhancements. A tree 
survey, tree constraints plan and tree protection plan has been submitted with the application. 
Eleven individual trees have been identified for removal to facilitate the development. 
The Council’s Biodiversity Officer has considered the details and has advised that she is 
satisfied that the ecological surveys undertaken are suitable and commensurate with the 
development, and agrees with the conclusions, offering no objection, provided the 
recommended mitigation and enhancement measures are conditioned and followed. NRW 
have expressed a similar view. A felling licence has been obtained for the tree felling from 
NRW. As noted above, there are no objections from the Council’s Tree Consultant. A number 
of concerns have been raised by private individuals over the adequacy of the ecological 
information with the application, and the potential impact on the fish population from the 
detailing of the proposals, including comments on the potential for noise from the turbine 
mechanism on migrating fish.  
 
Officers’ opinion, informed by the responses of consultees, is that there is adequate 
information on ecological interests to assess the impacts of the development. These indicate 
there are appropriate reasonable avoidance measures and mitigation proposed in relation to 
statutory protected species, which can be secured through the use of planning conditions. 
Providing the development works are undertaken in strict accordance with the 
recommendations, mitigation and avoidance measures identified in the Habitat Survey and 
Tree Survey, it is not considered there would be any unacceptable ecological impacts. 
 
 In relation to impacts on fishing interests, Officers understanding is that points raised by 
objectors in relation to salmon and sea trout movement and migration, breeding and river 
invertebrates, are considerations properly dealt with by NRW as part of their environmental 
permitting processes outside planning legislation, which include fish pass approval and 
abstraction licencing. Consequently, whilst respecting the concerns voiced over potential 
impacts on fish populations and fishing rights, in this context, it is not considered appropriate 
to attach weight to these matters as a factor in the determination of the planning application.  

 
4.2.5 Flooding and water quality 
Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material consideration in 
planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, provides a detailed 
framework within which risks arising from different sources of flooding should be assessed. 
 

Tudalen 101



Members will note from the summary of representations that there are considerable 
objections lodged at the potential implications of the proposals on the River Elwy, in particular 
in respect of river flow, and flooding.  
 
Factually, the site is within a C2 flood risk zone, located within the 1 in 1000 year flood 
outlines on the NRW indicative Flood Map. A Flood Consequences Assessment (FCA) has 
been submitted in support of the planning application. This acknowledges that the turbine 
house may be susceptible to flooding and indicates this will be built with flood resistant 
construction methods and techniques. NRW have confirmed that the contents of the FCA are 
generally commensurate to the type, nature and scale of the development and welcome the 
applicant's intention to incorporate flood proofing measures within the turbine house. NRW 
have also confirmed that Flood Defence Consent is required for the development as it is 
within 7 metres of the bank top of a main river, and an application for Flood Defence Consent 
has been granted for the development.  
 
 
In respecting the grounds of concerns from objectors, on the basis of the NRW responses, 
Officers believe the flood risk issues relevant to the determination of the planning application 
have been given due consideration and that it is reasonable to accept the NRW conclusion 
that there are no additional flood risk impacts anticipated.  With regard to suggestions for the 
imposition of a planning condition requiring a survey of the condition of the weir to determine 
the need for and carrying out of repairs, NRW have confirmed they have not requested the 
Local Planning Authority to attach such a condition on any permission. 
  
4.2.6 Archaeology  
The general requirement to consider the impact of development on archaeology and cultural 
heritage is set out in PPW Chapter 6.5, LDP policy VOE 10 and Welsh Office Circular 60/96 
‘Planning and the Historic Environment’ which states the desirability of preserving an ancient 
monument and its setting is a material consideration in determining a planning application 
whether than monument is scheduled or unscheduled (para 10). Specific to a hydro scheme, 
policy VOE 10 requires specific assessment / explanation of impact on cultural heritage. 
 
The scheme is proposing to utilise the existing weir associated with the former Wigfair Isaf 
Mill. The weir dates to at least 1874 and CPAT advise that its origin may even be earlier. 
CPAT have suggested a pre-commencement condition is applied to ensure a pre-
development survey of the site is carried out and a watching brief undertaken during building 
works, in accordance with the guidance set out in Circular 60/96 regarding the use of 
conditions to protect archaeological monuments.  
 
Subject to the inclusion of a pre-commencement condition requiring a pre development 
survey, it is not considered there would be any adverse impact on archaeological features or 
cultural heritage.  
 
 
Other matters 
 
Members will appreciate that representations received raise a number of issues. The main 
land use planning ones are considered above. 
 
In relation to concerns over the adequacy of the summary of representations and the 
absence of reference to individuals in the list of objectors, Officers have gone through the 
application file to ensure the list of objectors is accurate at the time of drafting the report. Any 
additional representations received between the completion of the report and the Committee 
meeting will be noted and summarised in the late information sheets. It is adopted practice to 
summarise representations and not to attach letters of representation to Committee reports. 
Officers believe the summary of representations in the redrafted report provides a fair outline 
of the main points raised in relation to the proposals. 
 
Natural Resources Wales are responsible for a range of environmental licencing controls over 
the development of a hydro scheme which the County Council has no need to replicate, as 

Tudalen 102



the County’s role is to deal with land use planning matters and ‘material planning 
considerations’. The applicants are keen that this distinction is made clearer to assist 
consideration of the application.  In the context of this application, management of fish stocks, 
the migration of fish affecting the operation of the fishing rights, abstraction and discharge 
arrangements, and the design of a new  fish pass are either controlled through licencing 
legislation administered by NRW or are not matters material to the land use planning merits 
of the application.  
 
Representations on the application express a number of concerns over the neutrality / role of 
the NRW, and request that the Council should rectify alleged failings of NRW in the process. 
In respecting the comments made on the competence of the NRW, Officers can only repeat 
the basis of previous comments in the report and suggest it has to be recognised that NRW 
are the Government’s main environmental agency involved in the planning process, and a key 
statutory consultee for all planning authorities, with levels of expertise on highly technical 
matters. The issues arising in relation to elements of the hydro scheme have been addressed 
in considerable detail, including by NRW in their response to consideration of the complaint 
from the Angling Association into their handling of the Abstraction Licence application, and it 
is not considered either appropriate or necessary for the Local Planning Authority to further 
challenge their competence in respect of matters raised in relation to their actions or their 
responses to the Council on matters relevant to the planning application. As stated previously, 
the deferral of the application has given opportunity for NRW to respond to complaints from 
the Angling Association, and NRW have confirmed their comments on the planning 
application remain valid. 
 
In relation to suggestions on behalf of the Angling Association that the Council consider the 
imposition of specific planning conditions, NRW have confirmed they have not requested the 
Authority to include conditions requiring a survey of the condition of the weir to determine the 
need for repairs, or in relation to the detailing of the fish pool(s) required under the 
Abstraction Licence, in order to involve angling interests in the consultation process. On the 
latter situation, NRW confirm the applicant must comply with the conditions of the Abstraction 
Licence with regard to the re-design of the fish pool(s). NRW also advise they have not 
requested a condition be considered to ensure arrangements for a compensation payment 
from the developer to angling rights holders if there is a measurable impact on the quality and 
capital value of the fishery affected by the development.  Following consultation with the 
Legal Officer, it is respectfully suggested that protection of private fishing rights is not a 
matter for consideration on a planning application, and a condition setting out a requirement 
for a developer to compensate a third party for loss of capital value of a fishery would not 
meet the requisite tests to be applied to the imposition of planning conditions on permissions. 
 
It is not considered that it is reasonable or necessary to impose a requirement on the 
developer of a hydro scheme to enter into an undertaking / bond in relation to the 
construction, implementation, and maintenance of the development, and to cover 
contingencies if something goes wrong, in particular arising from concerns over the financial 
standing of the applicant company. Other hydro and wind power schemes consented by the 
Council have not included such requirements.  
 
 
In terms of land ownership, the Applicants have advised that they have served notice on the 
land owner and are satisfied that that no further notices are required in connection with the 
planning application. 
  
 In relation to the maintenance, management and long term plans for the scheme, the Agents 
have advised that once the project is installed then it would not be decommissioned for the 
foreseeable future. North Wales Hydro Power would be ultimately responsible for the on-
going maintenance of the scheme. There would be a webcam located on the side of the 
turbine house so as to allow the monitoring of debris build up and to monitor the operation of 
the fish pass and the hydroelectric scheme. If debris collects on the debris screen, which is 
inevitable, then it will be removed as appropriate depending on the size of the debris. The 
debris screen is before both the fish pass and the hydro turbine and therefore should debris 
collect the turbine will be impacted on first as the fish pass has priority over the turbine for 

Tudalen 103



water flow. It is therefore considered that there is no more incentive required for removal of 
debris as the build-up of debris will mean the output of the turbine is reduced and the scheme 
is effectively losing revenue. 
 
 
There will always be challenges to claims over Carbon reduction figures and efficiency figures 
on renewables schemes. Respectfully, this is not a determinant factor in the assessment of 
an application on this scale as there is general support for the contribution such schemes can 
make to the Government’s renewables targets.   
 
 

 
5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 

5.1 The application proposes a small hydro electric scheme on the River Elwy in a location to the 
south of St Asaph. 
 

5.2 The proposals have given rise to considerable local reaction and a range of issues have been 
raised. The report attempts to address these matters to assist Members deliberations. 
 
 

5.3 The report concludes that the principle of the development is acceptable in relation to current 
planning policies and guidance, and that having regard to objections and consultee 
responses, the impact of the scheme would not be unacceptable, subject to suitable controls 
through planning conditions. 
 

5.4 The type of development proposed is heavily regulated by legislation outside the Council’s 
control, administered by Natural Resources Wales. A number of detailed matters raised by 
objectors are considerations to be applied by NRW as part of their consenting processes. 
 
 

5.5 Officers’ conclusion, with respect to local concerns, is that the proposal meets the relevant 
policy requirements and that subject to controls would not have unacceptable local impacts. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the 

date of this permission. 
2. Written confirmation of the date of the first generation of electricity from the development shall 

be provided to the Local Planning Authority no later than 1 calendar month after the event. 
3. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details set out in the Extended 

Phase 1 Habitat Survey and the Reasonable Avoid Measures set out in the 'Conclusions and 
Recommendations' section of the report shall be implemented. 

4. If protected species are found to be present at the site during construction, no further 
development shall be carried out until appropriate protection and mitigation measures are 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Nature 
Resources Wales. 

5. If nesting birds are found to be present during construction, no further development shall be 
carried out during the bird breeding season until secondary surveys have been carried out, 
and the results of the surveys together with reasonable avoidance measures to deal with the 
presence of nesting birds during the construction phase have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

6. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement and any deviation from the method referred to in this statement shall be approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

7. PRE--COMMENCEMENT 
No development shall be permitted to commence on the turbine house until the written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to the detailing of the sound 
attenuation measures to limit internally generated noise to an agreed level at the façade of 
any noise sensitive properties in the locality. 

Tudalen 104



8. All electricity cables from the turbine house to the grid connection point shall be laid 
underground and no additional ancillary equipment such as substations or equipment 
cabinets shall be permitted without the prior written approval of the local planning authority. 

9. If the development hereby permitted ceases to operate for a continuous period of not less 
than 12 months, within 6 months of that time, the turbine house and all other structures on or 
above the ground shall be dismantled, the materials removed from the site and the site 
restored to the satisfaction of the local planning authority. 

10. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
No development shall take place within the application site until the applicant, or their agents 
or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work 
in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved in writing by the archaeological curator for the Local Planning 
Authority. The archaeological programme of work will be undertaken and completed in 
accordance with the standards laid down by the Institute for Archaeologists and MoRPHE 
(2006). On completion appropriate reports and an archive assessment will be submitted for 
approval to the Local Planning Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist, Clwyd-
Powys Archaeological Trust, 41 Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR.  tel: 01938 
553670. 

 
 
 
 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. For the avoidance of doubt and for monitoring purposes. 
3. In the interests of protecting biodiversity and to ensure the scheme will not be detrimental to 

the favourable conservation status of any protected species. 
4. In the interests of protecting biodiversity and to ensure the scheme will not be detrimental to 

the favourable conservation status of any protected species. 
5. In the interests of protecting biodiversity and to ensure no active nests have been built in 

within the work area or that may be disturbed by undertaking the works. 
6. In the interests of protecting residential amenity. 
7. In the interests of protecting residential amenity. 
8. In the interests of visual amenity. 
9. To ensure the long term reinstatement of the site, in the interests of landscape and visual 

amenity. 
10. In the interests of archaeological recording. 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
You are advised that the grant of planning permission does not permit the development to proceed 
without the relevant permits / approvals from NATURAL RESOURCES WALES, and you should 
ensure all consents are obtained from NRW prior to the commencement of works on site. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES advice: 
River Elwy is a Main River. Under Water Resources Act 1991 and Land Drainage Byelaws, prior 
written consent from NRW is required for any proposed works or structures, in, under, over or within 
7m of the top of the bank of a Main River. 
 
The works should comply with the guidance contained in NRW PPG5: Works and  maintenance in or 
near water: http://publications.environment-agency.gov.uk/PDF/PMHO1107BNKG-E-E.pdf 
 
Any excavation material or building waste generated must be disposed of in accordance with section 
34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
Any activity of importing waste into the site must be registered as a permitted activity under the 
Environmental Permitting Regulations 2007. 
 
 

Tudalen 105



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

WARD: 
 

Tremeirchion 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Barbara Smith 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

41/2014/0757/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Codi annedd ddeulawr a garej (Diwygio’r cynllun a 
gymeradwywyd yn flaenorol o dan gais rhif. 
41/2013/1498/PF) 
 

LLEOLIAD: Yew Tree, Bodfari Dinbych 
 

 

Tudalen 107

Eitem Agenda 10



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 41/2014/0757/PF
YEW TREE
BODFARI

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 309295 E 370051 N

Tudalen 109



Tudalen 110



Tudalen 111



Tudalen 112



Tudalen 113



Tudalen 114



Tudalen 115



Tudalen 116



 Emer O'Connor
WARD : 
 

Tremeirchion 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Barbara Smith 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

41/2014/0757/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of replacement two-storey dwelling and garage 
(Amendment to previously approved scheme under ref no. 
41/2013/1498/PF) 
 

LOCATION: Yew Tree   Bodfari  Denbigh 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Richard Talbot 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Conservation Area 
AONB 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – Yes 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 
 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

BODFARI COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
“It was RESOLVED that the planning committee be recommended to refuse this amendment as 
the community council had already expressed concerns regarding the height of the original 
proposal and the amendment sought to extend it still further.” 
 
CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY 
JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
“The JAC supports the revised elevational and roof treatments which better reflect the 
character of the Conservation Area. The reduction in the proposed decked area is also 
welcome, although further details of the design and appearance of this feature are required to 
ensure that it will complement the Conservation Area.” (AONB Management Plan Policy 
PCP1)” 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
- Highways Officer 

No objection subject to condition requiring parking within the site.  
           

Conservation Architect 
No objection. 

 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

None. 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   21/08/2014 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

Tudalen 117



• protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
• re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
• awaiting consideration by Committee 

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of an existing single 

storey dwelling and the erection of a replacement dwelling at Yew Tree Cottage in the 
village of Bodfari.  
 

1.1.2 The existing access would be retained and the replacement dwelling would be sited 
on the footprint of the existing dwelling, albeit with an attached garage projecting to 
the front.  
 

1.1.3 A two storey dwelling is proposed. It would have two gable features to the front 
elevation and a porch. The dwelling would comprise of three bedrooms and living 
accommodation. The floorspace would be approximately 290q metres.   
 

1.1.4 Owing to the sloping nature of the site, the proposed plan shows a raised decking 
area to the rear of the dwelling to allow level access from the back door.  

 
1.1.5 Members are referred to the basic plans at the front of the report.  

 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The site is located is located on the southern side of the approach road to the village 

of Bodfari from the A541. 
 

1.2.2 Yew Tree Cottage a small single storey chalet style dwelling which is in a state of 
disrepair.  
 

1.2.3 Yew Tree Cottage occupies a roughly triangular shaped site between the dwellings of 
Fairholme to the west and Bryn Orme to the east. Fairholme is a large two storey 
dwelling with the front elevation orientated west and Bryn Orme is of similar style and 
siting to Yew Tree Cottage. To the south of the site the land level falls and is abutted 
by open agricultural land.   
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is located within the Development Boundary of Bodfari as defined by the 

Local Development Plan. It is within a designated Conservation Area and the AONB. 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 Planning permission for a replacement dwelling was granted in 2013 and prior to that 

in 2008 and 2007. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 The original application submitted in August 2014 was amended following concerns 

raised in consultations.  
 

1.5.2 The main difference between the original plans and the plans currently being 
considered are the scale of the dwelling, the fenestration pattern and the scale of the 
decking to the rear.  
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 Conservation Area Consent was granted for the demolition of Yew Tree Cottage 

when the previous application was considered in 2013.  

Tudalen 118



 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 41/2007/0130/PF Demolition of existing single storey dwelling and erection of two-storey 

dwelling with detached garage with store over. Granted by Planning Committee 18/04/2007 
 

2.2 41/2008/0597/PF Demolition of existing single storey dwelling and erection of two-storey 
dwelling with detached garage with store over. Granted under delegated powers 15/12/2008 
 

2.3 41/2013/1498/PF Demolition of existing single-storey dwelling and erection of two-storey 
dwelling and garage (renewal of planning permission code no. 41/2008/0597) Granted under 
delegated powers 20/01/2014 
 

2.4 41/2013/1562/CA Application for Conservation Area Consent for demolition of existing single-
storey dwelling. Granted under delegated powers 20/01/2014 

 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy BSC1 – Growth Strategy for Denbighshire 
Policy VOE 1 – Key Areas of importance  
Policy VOE2 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty 
Policy VOE5 – Conservation of natural resources 
Policy ASA 1 – New transport infrastructure 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Residential space standards 
Residential development design guide 
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Area of  Outstanding Natural Beauty/Area of Outstanding Beauty 
4.1.5 Impact on Conservation Area including setting 
4.1.6 Highways (including access and parking) 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 

Tudalen 119



In relation to the principle of the development, the relevant planning policy context in 
the Local Development Plan is Policy BSC 1 which sets out the basic growth strategy 
for Denbighshire and makes provision for new housing development, including within 
settlements like Bodfari which are defined as Villages. Policy RD1 relates to 
development proposals within development boundaries and sets out tests to ensure 
that development proposals do not have an unacceptable impact on the amenity and 
appearance of the area. 
 
There is an existing dwelling on the site and it is located within the development 
boundary of Bodfari Village. The dwelling has had the benefit of planning permission 
for replacement in the past, therefore the principle of development is considered 
acceptable subject to an assessment of impacts, as set out below. 
 

4.2.2 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context.  
 
A two storey dwelling with an attached single storey garage to the front is proposed to 
replace the poor quality chalet on the site. It is a relatively simple design, with a porch 
and two gables to the front. The fenestration pattern proposed is fairly uniform with 
larger openings to the rear. The materials would be traditional, with brick walls, slate 
roof and timber doors and windows. The proposed dwelling would have an overall 
height of 6.5 metres, this would be 0.5 metre higher than the overall height of the 
dwelling previously approved. The Community Council have expressed concerns over 
the height of the proposal.  
 
Officers consider the visual impacts of the proposal to be acceptable. With respect to 
the comments of the Community Council the overall height of the proposed dwelling 
has been reduced in the amended plans. The design of the dwelling with the gables 
to the front would appear smaller in scale to the previously approved dwelling which 
had gables to both sides. There is a distinct mix of development in the locality with 
varying heights and styles. It is considered that the proposal raises no conflict with the 
relevant visual amenity policies.  
 

4.2.3 Residential amenity 
Policy RD 1 contains general considerations to be given to the impacts of 
development. Among these considerations is the impact on the residential amenity of 
the area. There is a general requirement for development proposals to not result in a 
loss of amenity for neighbouring dwellings by virtue of overlooking, increased activity, 
and disturbance. Adequate standards of amenity for the proposed development itself 
should also be provided. Supplementary planning guidance note 7 advises that a 
minimum amount of amenity space for a dwelling is 40 square metres. 
 
The dwelling would be sited on a similar footprint to the existing chalet on the site. It 
would be over 3 metres from the boundary to the chalet to the east and over 2 metres 
from the boundary to the two storey dwelling to the west. There are no side windows 
proposed in the dwelling. The area to the rear of the dwelling measures over 200 
square metres and according to the plans would be partially decked, lawned and an 
area set aside for raised beds.  
 
Owing to the design and scale of the proposed dwelling and the distances to the 
adjacent dwellings, it is considered that the proposal would not impact unacceptably 
on the amenity of adjacent occupiers. Adequate space is provided within the 

Tudalen 120



proposed dwelling and the level of amenity space more than meets policy 
requirements. It is not considered that there would be any significant residential 
amenity conflicts.  

 
4.2.4 Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty/Area of Outstanding Beauty 

Policy VOE 2 requires assessment of the impact of development within or affecting 
the AONB and AOB, and indicates that this should be resisted where it would cause 
unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the landscape and the 
reasons for designation. 
 
The site on which there is a dwelling at present is located within the development 
boundary of Bodfari. The AONB JAC have raised no objection to the proposal.  
 
Having regard to the location and scale of the development, it is not considered that 
the proposal would have any adverse impact on the wider AONB landscape.  
 

4.2.5 Impact on Conservation Area including setting 
Local Development Plan Policy VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage from 
development that would adversely affect them. Planning Policy Wales (Section 6), 
stresses the importance of protecting the historic environment, and in relation to 
Conservation Areas, to ensure they are protected or enhanced, while at the same 
time remaining alive and prosperous, avoiding unnecessarily detailed controls. The 
basic objective is therefore to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of a 
Conservation Area, or its setting. 
 
The two storey dwelling would replace a poor quality chalet structure. The fairly 
simple dwelling would be finished in traditional materials. The Conservation Officer 
raises no objection to the proposed development.  
 
Having regard to the existing form of development and the proposed design of the 
dwelling, it is considered that the proposal would not harm the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area, and would be in keeping with planning policy.  
 

4.2.6 Highways including access and parking 
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material 
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and 
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and 
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of means 
of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. Policy ASA 3 
requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection with 
development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to 
the application of standards.  
 
The application proposes use of the existing access and off road parking. The site is 
located within a village within walking distance to the local shops and facilities, and a 
bus stop. The Head of Highways has raised no objection.  
 
It is not considered that the proposal conflicts with the highways considerations of 
Policy RD1. 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 With respect to the Community Councils reservations, the proposal is considered to comply 

with policy and it is therefore Officers recommendation that permission be granted. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration 

of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 

Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local Planning 

Tudalen 121



Authority shall be obtained in respect of the walls and roof materials to be used for the 
development hereby permitted and no materials other than those approved shall be used. 

3. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site, 
and such scheme shall include details of: 
(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be 
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development. 
(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of 
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting; 
(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced 
areas; 
(d)     proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final 
contours and the relationship  of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding 
landform; 
(e)     Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment and details of the 
decking. 

4. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading/ unloading, parking and 
turning of vehicles in accordance with the approved plan and which shall be completed prior 
to the development being brought into use. 

5. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved 
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years 
of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

 
 
 
 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. In the interests of visual amenity. 
3. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in 

conjunction with the development. 
4. To provide for the loading/ unloading, parking and turning of vehicles and to ensure that 

reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of 
traffic safety. 

5. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10. 
 

Tudalen 122



 

 

WARD: 
 

Prestatyn 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd James Davies 
Y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

43/2014/0905/PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Dymchwel unedau manwerthu presennol, adeiladu 
teras o 4. Uned manwerthu newydd, ailgyflunio’r maes 
parcio presennol i gwsmeriaid, gwneud estyniad i'r 
maes parcio presennol i staff i’r gogledd-ddwyrain o’r 
safle a gwneud gwaith tirweddu cysylltiedig a gwaith i 
ganiatáu mynediad i gerddwyr / seiclwyr / cerbydau 
(Cam 2 Parc Siopa Prestatyn). 
 

LLEOLIAD: Iceland Foods a Bevans Homewares 
Ffordd Llys Nant 
Prestatyn 
Sir Ddinbych 
LL19 9LR 
 

 

Tudalen 123

Eitem Agenda 11



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 43/2014/0905/PF
ICELAND FOODS & BEVANS HOMEWARES
NANT HALL ROAD, PRESTATYN

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 306693 E 383010 N

Tudalen 125



Tudalen 126



Tudalen 127



Tudalen 128



Tudalen 129



Tudalen 130



Tudalen 131



Tudalen 132



 Paul Mead
WARD: 
 

Prestatyn 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr James Davies 
Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

43/2014/0905/PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Demolition of existing retail units, construction of a terrace of 4 
no. new retail units, reconfiguration of existing customer car park, 
extension to existing staff car parking to north-east of site and 
associated landscaping and pedestrian / cycle / vehicle access 
works (Phase 2 Prestatyn Shopping Park). 
 

LOCATION: Iceland Foods and Bevans Homewares 
Nant Hall Road 
Prestatyn 
Denbighshire 
LL19 9LR 
 

APPLICANT: Stadium Development Ltd 
 

CONSTRAINTS: None 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – Yes 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• At request of Development Manager – major proposal 
 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL 
Awaiting comments on revised plans. 
Initial consultation response:- 
“OBJECTION 

 Concerns about increased visitor traffic movements. Lack of turning space for delivery 
lorries. Height of development above existing roofline. Loss of retail parking space.  Poor 
pedestrian safety at Glyn Avenue and Nant Hall Road roundabout which is heavily used by 
school children.Poor visual aesthetics from Nant Hall Road, and Nant Hall Road businesses 
maybe adversely affected.  Pedestrian links with High Street need improving.  

             Town Council seeking best development for town and current proposals appear to isolate 
retail park from Town Centre. Further dialogue and revised designs would be welcome.” 

 
 NATURAL RESOURCES WALES (NRW) 
 No objection subject to conditions on finished floor levels. 
 
 DWR CYMRU/WELSH WATER 

No objection subject to standard conditions and advice relating to foul and surface water 
discharges from the development. 

 
 Denbighshire Consultees 
 
 ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT TEAM 

Tudalen 133



The completed phase of the Shopping Park has already brought additional visitors to 
Prestatyn and created new jobs in the town centre. This new phase will enhance the town's 
retail offer still further and the improvements to the connections between the Shopping Park 
and the High Street proposed in the revised scheme should help other parts of the town 
centre to benefit from the additional footfall which will arise from this investment. The wall of 
the service yard will inevitably have an impact upon the street scape in Nant Hall Road and 
the enhancements proposed in the revised scheme should help to improve its appearance. 

 
 COUNTY ARCHAEOLOGIST 
 No objection subject to standard watching brief condition. 
 
 HIGHWAYS DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 No objection subject to conditions on construction management, servicing arrangements, 

parking and other highway improvements. 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
 
 In Objection 
 Mary Hopkins, 12 Plas Avenue, Prestatyn,  
 Christopher Parry, Hill House, Hillside, Prestatyn 
 Cathy Challand, 170 High Street, Prestatyn 
 Andrea Tomlin, Andrea’s Lettings, 2 Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn 
 Hal Holmes-Pierce, 48 Calthorpe Drive, Prestatyn 
 Stephen Fenner, 21 Berwyn Crescent, Prestatyn 
 Peter Harrison, 7 Dwyfor Court, Prestatyn 
 Phillip Molyneux, 10 Glyn Avenue, Prestatyn 
 Shona Hale, 9 Clos Bodnant, Prestatyn 
 Cll Tracey Lawler, The Dressing Room Boutique, 5 Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn 
 S C Thorp, 8 Clos Bodnant, Prestatyn 
 Sharon Walters, 11 Glyn Avenue, Prestatyn 
 
 In Support 

Ellis Power, 3 Glyn Avenue, Prestatyn 
 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   26/1/14 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:  
 

• protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
• re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
• awaiting consideration by Committee 

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The application covers two separate parcels of land. Within the main parcel it is 

proposed to demolish the existing retail units of Iceland and Mr Bevan which are 
located on Nant Hall Road. In their place it is proposed to erect 4no. new build retail 
units as an extension to the existing Prestatyn Shopping Park. This development will 
involve the reconfiguration of this area of the shopping park with re-aligned parking 
areas, pedestrian and cycle routes, servicing and landscaping. The second parcel of 
land sits to the east of the main site and development on here involves the extension 
of the existing staff car park area to provide some 50 additional spaces. 

 
1.1.2 Plans at the front of the report highlight the proposed development in the two 

separate areas of land. Details of the new build retail units are as follows. 
 

Tudalen 134



1.1.3 The new retail units comprise of a single, staggered block of units which are aligned 
to sit on the Nant Hall Road frontage but will have their main entrances from the 
existing shopping park car park to the north. The units are set back from Nant Hall 
Road with a servicing yard located off this road. The block will mirror the design of the 
existing units on the main shopping park having a flat roof construction and using the 
same composite cladding, masonry and glazing features shown on the existing units. 
The new units will, however, be scaled down in height by 1.2m from the existing units 
on the park in order to mitigate impacts on Nant Hall Road. The height of the new 
units in comparison to other buildings on Nant Hall Road can be seen on the plans at 
the front of this report. 

 
1.1.4 The new retail units would create an additional 2,020sq.m of retail floor space having 

regard to the loss of the existing Iceland and Mr Bevan floor space of around 
1,040sq.m. The unit sizes are proposed as follows:- 

 
• Unit A – 1858sq.m over two floors (mezzanine) 
• Unit B – 929sq.m over two floors (mezzanine) 
• Unit C – 139sq.m on single floor 
• Unit D – 141sq.m on single floor  
 
 

1.1.5 Around 37 additional customer car parking spaces will be created within the main 
shopping park as part of the new retail unit development giving some 848 spaces in 
total. In addition around 20 additional cycle parking spaces would be created across 
the site for customers and staff. 

 
1.1.6 Vehicular access to the new retail units will be from the existing main entrances into 

the park off the High Street and off Nant Hall Road. However, it is proposed to re-
align the roundabout entrance slightly off Nant Hall Road with improvements being 
made to pavements and crossing points along this stretch of road. Details of 
pedestrian safety improvements along Nant Hall Road will be outlined further in the 
Transport Statement section below. The new units would be serviced from an 
entrance point off Nant Hall Road. This new service yard would be screened by a new 
brick wall built along the Nant Hall Road frontage to a height of 1.6m. 

 
1.1.7 The additional staff car parking spaces to the east of the site will be accessed via the 

existing service route for the main shopping park off Nant Hall Road. The spaces 
would extend the parking area along the old haul road to the north of the existing Parc 
Bodnant Estate. The car park area would be hard surfaced and marked with security 
lighting. It is proposed that the use of this car parking area would be limited to 
minimise impacts on nearby residents. 

 
1.1.8 The application was submitted with a number of supporting documents all of which 

have been available to view during the public consultation exercise. These documents 
are described as follows. 
 
A Planning Statement: - This supplements the design and access statement providing 
some background information to the proposal. It describes the public consultation 
undertaken and goes through the benefits of this scheme. 
 
A Design and Access Statement (DAS) – The DAS goes through the proposal in 
detail highlighting the 5 key areas of access, character, community safety, 
environmental sustainability and movement. The DAS describes how the site and 
buildings will be DDA compliant and stresses the accessibility to the site by a choice 
of means of transport. The document highlights how the scale and design of the 
buildings has regard to their surroundings and promotes the sustainable credentials of 
the construction. The DAS highlights the use of CCTV in the scheme promoting 
community safety and also stresses the co-ordinated landscape approach to integrate 
the scheme further into its surroundings. 
 

Tudalen 135



A Transport Assessment and supplementary statement – These documents have 
been produced to highlight how the scheme can work from the perspective of vehicle, 
pedestrian and cycle movements. The assessment describes how the existing 
network in the town has been re-assessed having regard to the increased retail floor 
space proposed focussing on key junctions and routes into and out of the site. The 
documents highlight the improvements proposed to pedestrian routes around the 
surrounding areas and stresses that the development will be monitored over a period 
once operational to ensure any highway impacts are addressed and tackled where 
necessary. 
 
A Flood Consequences Assessment – This document highlights the extensive work 
undertaken over the last couple of years with Natural Resources Wales to ensure 
flood risks are adequately managed on the site. 
 
A Drainage Statement – This document explains how the new retail and car park 
development will be integrated into the existing drainage system for the park with no 
resultant impacts upon foul, surface or ground water conditions. 
 
Noise Impact Assessment – This document examines the potential noise created 
during construction, noise from plant, servicing and general customer activity. It 
recommends certain working hours for construction and deliveries all of which can be 
imposed as planning conditions. 
 
Construction Management Statement – This document examines the process of 
construction of both the units and the car park. It highlights working practices in terms 
of site safety, security and times. The document, produced by Marshalls, is a 
professional document which has to comply with relevant Health and Safety 
legislation. 
 

1.1.9 Description of site and surroundings 
The main application site for the new retail units is located on the north side of Nant 
Hall Road. It comprises 0.44ha of flat, hard surfaced land in a rectangular shape. The 
existing buildings on the site are single storey units set back from the road. They are 
of low architectural value and have some 28 car parking spaces situated to the front 
of them on Nant Hall Road. To the north and east of the site is the main shopping 
park development, to the west are existing businesses comprising a garage, petrol 
pumps and car sales establishment, the Town Council offices and a retail outlet. To 
the south of the site on Nant Hall Road is a 3 storey elderly persons accommodation 
block with the library building adjacent. 
 
The site to the east (0.13ha) which is proposed to be used for additional car parking is 
again flat and rectangular in shape having the railway line to the north and residential 
dwellings on the Parc Bodnant estate to the south. See plans at the front of the report. 
 

1.1.10 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
The site lies within the defined centre of Prestatyn and contains historic retail uses. 
The site also lies adjacent to the eastern boundary of the Prestatyn High Street 
Conservation Area. The site could have archaeological interest. 
 

1.1.11 Relevant planning history 
The existing retail units on the site are long established. The most relevant planning 
history is that relating to the existing shopping park which was granted planning 
permission in July 2011. This was subject to a s.106 legal agreement and planning 
conditions. The park opened in 2013 and all town centre highway 
improvements/alterations and a refurbished bus station were completed at that time. 
 

1.1.12 Developments/changes since the original submission 
The scheme has been revised during the assessment process. Firstly, the design of 
the new retail units on Nant Hall Road has been amended to have regard to 
comments from the Conservation Officer and other persons making representations.  

Tudalen 136



The changes sought to create a more attractive appearance for the Conservation 
Area adjacent and to open up this frontage to pedestrians on Nant Hall Road. 
 
Secondly, some highway amendments have been made to the scheme having regard 
to input from the Council’s highway engineers and other representations received. 
The main changes involve improvements to the servicing arrangements off Nant Hall 
Road, improvements to the safety of pedestrians along Nant Hall Road, amendments 
to the roundabout layout on Nant Hall Road and the introduction of some resurfacing 
works linking the site to the High Street. 
 

1.1.13 Other relevant background information\\ 
It should be noted that the application has been publicised widely in the town with 
exhibition boards displayed in the Scala Cinema. A presentation of the plans was also 
made to the Town Council with various meetings having taken place with 
neighbouring businesses. 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
43/2010/1222/PF - Development of land to provide class A1 retail units, car parking, 
landscaping, primary substation, petrol filling station, access and associated works – 
GRANTED by Committee 28th July 2011 
 

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy PSE 6 – Retail Economy 
Policy PSE 7- Proposals for new Retail Development 
Policy PSE 8 – Development within Town Centres 
Policy RD 1 – Sustainability and good standard design 
Policy RD 5 – Welsh Language and the social and cultural fabric of communities 
Policy ASA 2 – Provision of sustainable transport facilities 
Policy ASA 3 – Parking standards 
 

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPG  – Landscaping 
SPG  - Access for All 
SPG – Parking Standards 
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 6 February 2014 
Technical Advice Notes (TAN’s) 
TAN 4 – Retailing and Town Centres 
TAN 5 – Nature Conservation 
TAN 11 – Noise 
TAN 12 – Design 
TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk 
TAN 18 – Transport 
TAN 22 – Sustainable Buildings 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

4.1 In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning 
application, Planning Policy Wales Edition 6, February 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement 
that planning applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted 
development plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 
3.1.2). PPW advises that material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the 
development and use of land in the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the 
development concerned., and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and 
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the 
impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment (Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4). 
 

Tudalen 137



4.2 The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 

 
4.3 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.3.1 Principle and General Policy Considerations 
4.3.2 Visual amenity 
4.3.3 Residential Amenity 
4.3.4 Ecological issues 
4.3.5 Flood Risk and drainage 
4.3.6 Highways (including access and parking 
4.3.7 Access for all 
 
 

4.4 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.4.1 Principle 

The site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn and also within the 
defined town centre. This makes the principle of the proposed retail element of the 
scheme acceptable. It is important, however,  to assess the proposal against the 
relevant LDP Policy criteria as follows. 
 
General Planning Policy Context 
The main policies in the Local Development Plan (LDP) which are relevant to the 
principle of the development are: 
 
Policy PSE 6 – This Policy reinforces Welsh Government Policy aiming to direct new 
retail development towards town centres in the first instance. The application site is 
located within the town centre of Prestatyn on a site containing existing retail uses 
and adjacent to an existing retail shopping park. The net increase in retail floor space 
is around 2000sq.m and it is considered that this will enhance the retail offer for 
Prestatyn and boost the existing town centre further. 
 
Policy PSE 7 – This Policy helps to support Policy PSE 6 above and merely 
highlights the retail allocations across the County. The application site, as an existing 
retail site within the town centre, is considered to be such an allocation and the 
proposal is, therefore, in compliance with the Policy. 
 
Policy PSE 8 – This Policy seeks to promote retail development within town centres 
that will enhance the vitality and viability of the centres. Clearly, the proposal will do 
this by providing further retail units in a sustainable location enhancing links to the 
main High Street. 
 
Policy RD 1 – This Policy seeks to ensure any development would be sustainable 
and promotes good design principles. It includes some 14 criteria against which 
proposals should be assessed. The relevant criteria for this proposal and the 
assessment of compliance are set out below. 
 
Criteria i) Respect the site and surroundings – It is considered the siting of the 
new units has taken account of neighbouring land uses and the adjacent 
Conservation Area. The scale has been reduced from the existing units on the 
shopping park and the setting of the units respects the area in terms of building lines 
and layouts. 
 
Criteria iii) Protects and enhances the historic environment – it is considered the 
replacement of some rather dated and poor quality units in this location with the 
modern, light and glazed units would serve to enhance the nearby Conservation Area. 
 
Criteria iv) Does not unacceptably affect prominent views – It is considered that 
by setting the new units back from Nant Hall Road and reducing their height has 

Tudalen 138



addressed this criteria. 
 
Criteria v) Incorporates landscape and contours – it is considered the existing site 
is of poor standard in terms of landscape and site contours. The removal of the 
existing buildings and their replacement with the modern units and co-ordinated 
landscaping/surfacing to match the adjacent shopping park would enhance the 
landscape value of the site. 
 
Criteria vi) Impact on nearby residential amenity – See separate section below. 
 
Criteria vii) Provides safe access for disabled persons, pedestrians, cyclists 
and vehicles – See separate section below. 
 
Criteria viii) Impact on local highway network – See separate section below. 
 
Criteria ix) Adequacy of public facilities – It is considered that the site is very well 
served in terms of existing facilities. The location is close enough to bus and rail 
stations. It will have good and improved pedestrian and cycle links and is close to 
other amenities such as tourist information, cinema and Council buildings. 
 
Criteria x) Does not prejudice land safeguarded for other uses – The site is only 
safeguarded for retail development having regard to its town centre location. As such 
this is in full compliance with the criteria. 
 
Criteria xi) Satisfies any flood or drainage issues -  See separate section below. 
 
Criteria xii) Takes account of personal and community safety issues – The 
scheme will be incorporated into the CCTV arrangements for the main site. As such, it 
is considered that the scheme will be acceptable from a personal and community 
safety perspective. 
 
Criteria xiii) Scheme will be adequately landscaped – the submitted Design and 
Access Statement highlights the landscaping concept for the site. Hard and soft 
landscaping will be incorporated which match that on the existing shopping park. 
Species will be selected that will thrive in this type of environment with hard 
landscaping providing modern and attractive features as on the main site. 
 
Criteria xiv) Has regard to the generation and treatment of waste – It is 
considered that, as with the main site, adequate provision will be made and controlled 
for the retail based waste produced. This will be dealt with in protected and screened 
servicing areas. 
 
Policy RD 5 – Welsh Language – The existing shopping park contains bilingual 
signage at the main entrance points off the High Street and Nant Hall Road. Should 
any further directional signage be required for this development a condition can be 
imposed requiring bilingual signage. 
 
Policy ASA 2 – Provision of Sustainable Transport Facilities – This Policy seeks 
to ensure that, when required, developments make adequate provision for sustainable 
transport facilities. In this case, as mentioned previously, the site is located in the 
town centre which is well served by bus, rail and taxi as well as on foot or bike. 
 
Policy ASA 3 – Parking Standards – This Policy seeks to ensure, in line with 
standards set within supplementary guidance, adequate on-site parking is provided 
for cars, motorcycles and cycles. In addition requisite disabled facilities are also 
required. Highway engineers are satisfied that the amount of car parking/disabled 
parking proposed to be provided on the site meets the relevant standards for a 
development of this type.  
 

Tudalen 139



4.4.2 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
The application has been revised from its original submission in order to address the 
potential visual impacts. The site is located on a main thoroughfare into and out of the 
Conservation Area on Prestatyn High Street. Whilst the existing buildings on the site 
are not of any architectural merit and there is a broad mix of building types and 
designs on Nant Hall Road it was important for the new retail units to have an 
acceptable visual feel in their surroundings. The scale, therefore, of the new units was 
reduced to have regard to neighbouring buildings on Nant Hall Road. In addition, the 
buildings have been sited so as not to protrude too far forward in the street scene. By 
introducing more glazing to the Nant Hall Road frontage an attempt has been made to 
create more of a welcoming and open customer feel to what is effectively the back of 
the units. Screening is being provided to the service yard by way of a brick wall. This 
wall will attempt to match brickwork seen already on the road. It is considered that the 
units will change the character of this part of Nant Hall Road but, having regard to 
what is on site currently, there are no material reasons to refuse the scheme on visual 
grounds. 
 
The new car parking area to the east of the site will be a flat area of hard surface. The 
only visual impact will be from the proposed security lighting. Having regard to 
controls on the use of the car park and the timing of the lighting it is considered that 
the visual impact of the new car park area will be minimal.  
 

4.4.3 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact 
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of 
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or 
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, 
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. 
 
The closest residential properties to the new retail units are the elderly persons flats 
on the opposite side of Nant Hall Road. The new build units will clearly have an 
impact on the amenity of these flats by reason of their proximity, size and scale. The 
units have been angled so as to minimise this impact with the closest point of the new 
units being some ____m from the flats. The height of the units has been reduced by 
1.2m from those already on the main park. It is for these reasons that it is not 
considered that the size, scale and proximity of the units would have a significantly 
detrimental impact upon the amenity of the residents of the flats on Nant Hall Road. 
The movement of traffic on Nant Hall Road is currently governed by the existing retail 
units on site as well as the movements associated by people coming into and out of 
the High Street. It is clear that by creating a new servicing arrangement off Nant Hall 
Road for the new retail units this will impact upon the amenity of residents on this 
road. However, strict delivery times will need to be adhered to and a screen wall is 
being provided to further reduce visual, noise and disturbance impacts on residents. 
There will definitely be an increased impact upon those persons living directly 
opposite the new units, however, given the controls to be applied to deliveries and the 
level of activity in this retail area currently, it is not considered that these impacts 
would be sufficient to refuse planning permission. 
 

Tudalen 140



The proposed additional 50 staff car parking spaces to the east of the site would also 
potentially give rise to increased impacts upon residents backing on to this part of the 
site at Parc Bodnant. For this reason it is important to ensure the extended car park 
for staff is managed appropriately. Conditions will be applied which control the use of 
the car park, its security and lighting. It is considered these conditions, which have 
also been agreed with some nearby residents, would adequately control any 
increased impacts in this area. 
 

4.4.4 Ecology 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and 
where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5 
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated 
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that 
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm 
to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section 
5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 – Nature Conservation and Species Protection, 
which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives 
through promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to 
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where 
damage is unavoidable. 

 
The site is currently hard surfaced and developed. The demolition of the existing units 
and the new build are not considered to have any negative impacts on any 
biodiversity or ecological interests. 
 

4.4.5 Flood Risk and Drainage 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies 
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to 
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material 
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, 
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of 
flooding should be assessed. 
 
The scheme has been supplemented by a Flood Consequences Assessment as well 
as a Drainage Strategy. Both documents have been scrutinised by specialists at 
Natural Resources Wales and Dwr Cymru. Subject to standard conditions dealing 
with surface water management neither organisation has raised any objections to the 
proposal. 
 
Highways (including access and parking) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and 
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and 
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local 
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and 
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be 
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general 
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in 
support of sustainable development. 
 
Highway Officers have assessed the proposed scheme in light of the submitted 
Transport Assessment and supplementary transport information. Meetings have taken 
place between the developer and Highway Officers in order to ensure any increased 
impacts on the existing highway network have been fully addressed. It is evident that 
improving the retail offer in this part of the town could give rise to increased traffic 
movements in and around the area. However, the model calculations for the 
increased floor space proposed shows that any increases in traffic will not be 
significant. It is considered that those already visiting the shopping park will make the 
linked trip to any new units.  
 

Tudalen 141



That said, the developers have acknowledged that the existing highway infrastructure 
will need to be monitored for a specified period once the new stores are open. Traffic 
lights and junctions will be looked at to assess any increased usage. There are limits 
to what further improvements can be made to the existing network given the nature of 
the roads in the town. However, the developer has accepted that relevant work will be 
done with the Highway Authority to address any potential issues or hot spots in the 
town once the development is operational. Planning conditions will be imposed which 
will oblige the developer to do this. 
 
Work has also taken place between the developer and the Highway Officers in trying 
to improve safety and convenience for all users of the highway on Nant Hall Road. 
The Highway Officers are content with the improvements shown. Those 
improvements coupled with strict controls on delivery times for the units will create an 
acceptable highway arrangement, in the Officers view. Adequate provision has been 
made for cycle parking with the increased staff and customer spaces also meeting 
relevant guidance criteria. Furthermore, the developer has agreed to fund additional 
surfacing improvements off-site to enable easier links to the High Street and the 
surrounding streets. It is not, therefore, considered that the scheme will have any 
significant detrimental impact upon highway safety or parking in the town. 
 
 
Access for all 
Local Development Plan RD 1 test (vii) obliges consideration be given to safe and 
convenient access for disabled people within developments.  
 
It is considered that the access points into the site can be designed to ensure safe 
and convenient access for pedestrians, cyclists and wheelchair users. The buildings 
will be DDA compliant and any improvements to the surfacing of pavements and 
alleys in the area will only serve to improve the situation for wheelchair users. 
 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
The site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn. It is within the town centre 
and contains existing retail development. The proposed retail development is, therefore, 
acceptable. 
 
The new build units will create additional retail floor space which will meet the relevant retail 
policies of the LDP for town centres. 
 
The new build units will have an impact upon the visual and residential amenity of those 
persons residing close to the site on Nant Hall Road. However, the size, scale and design of 
the units have been amended to minimise such impacts with the access and use of the 
service yard controlled through planning conditions. Neighbouring land users have been fully 
considered in the proposal with every effort made to minimise impacts during and after 
construction. There will be enhancements proposed within the scheme which will attempt to 
increase footfall into the High Street via Nant Hall Road with the developer funding 
resurfacing works around the site and beyond. In addition improvements and enhancements 
will be provided to increase pedestrian and cycle safety along Nant Hall Road. 
 
Whilst it is anticipated that the vehicle movements in and around the site will increase slightly 
they are not considered enough to warrant any strong concerns about the adequacy of the 
existing network. This will be monitored once stores are open and addressed by the 
developer if it is deemed necessary. 
 
In conclusion it is considered that the scheme complies with the relevant policies in the 
adopted LDP. Further retail development of the type proposed will enhance the offer in the 
town bringing a further boost to jobs and the economy of the area. Any potential negative 
impacts are outweighed by the positive economic benefits. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

Tudalen 142



 
 

 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration 

of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
2. Prior to the final construction of any brickwork associated with the buildings or walling on site 

a sample panel of the brickwork proposed to be used shall be erected on site for agreement 
with the Local Planning Authority. Only that brickwork subsequently approved shall be used 
thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

3. No external ventilation/refrigeration equipment or electrical or mechanical plant shall be 
installed on any building or within the site without the written agreement of the local planning 
authority to the precise siting, design and external appearance, and the operation of such 
equipment shall not be permitted to exceed the noise levels agreed in conjunction with 
condition 5 of this permission. 

4. The retail units, related service yards and ancillary plant and machinery, including any sited 
within areas on the roof of a store shall not be brought into operation until the written approval 
of the local planning authority has been obtained to the maximum permissible noise levels 
arising there from, as measured from the facade of nearby residential properties. The agreed 
levels shall not exceed those specified within the SRL Technical Report dated June 2014. 

5. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site, 
and such scheme shall include details of:  
 
(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be 
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.  
 
(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of 
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;  
 
(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced 
areas;  
 
(d)     proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final 
contours and the relationship  of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding 
landform;  
 
(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment. 
 

6. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved 
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the occupation of the final dwelling of the development and any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

7. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
No development shall take place until the applicant(s), their agents or successors in title has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority 

8. The developer shall provide a suitable grease trap to prevent entry into the public sewerage 
system of matter likely to interfere with the free flow of sewer contents, or which would 
prejudicially affect the treatment and disposal of such contents. 

9. No external lighting of the buildings or the car parking areas shall be permitted without the 
prior written approval of the local planning authority to details of the type and position of the 
lights, column sizes, design and hooding, the level of luminance and proposed hours of use. 

10. No external lighting of the buildings or the car parking areas shall be permitted without the 
prior written approval of the local planning authority to details of the type and position of the 
lights, column sizes, design and hooding, the level of luminance and proposed hours of use. 

Tudalen 143



11. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Flood Consequences Assessment (FCA) (5000-UA007228-UU41R-02, Hyder Consulting 
(UK) Limited 29th July 2014) and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FCA: 
" Finished Floor Levels to be set no lower than 5.17m above Ordinance Datum (AOD) 
" A flood management plan to be produced with appropriate warning and evacuation 
procedures and provided to the future owners/tenants of the retail units. 
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation of the units and 
subsequently maintained in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied 
within the scheme, or within any other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 

12. Prior to the occupation and use of the retail units hereby permitted the applicant shall submit 
for approval by the Local Planning Authority a traffic count review strategy. The strategy shall 
include the methodology for calculating and assessing traffic visiting the shopping park pre 
and post development detailing the review periods. If the review reveals a count greater than 
that predicted in the submitted traffic assessment information, the means to address this 
identified increase shall be agreed and subsequently implemented in full thereafter. 

13. There shall be no deliveries made to the retail units within the application site between 
0800hrs-0900hrs and 1430hrs-1600hrs Monday to Friday. 

14. The lighting associated with the staff car parking area hereby permitted shall be switched off 
between the following hours: 2100hrs-0700hrs Monday to Saturday and 1900hrs-0700hrs on 
Sundays. 

15. Prior to the occupation and use of the retail units hereby permitted the applicant shall submit 
for approval by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of pedestrian and cycle safety 
improvements to the Nant Hall Road roundabout junction. Only those details subsequently 
approved shall be implemented in full thereafter prior to the first opening of the retail units. 

16. Prior to the occupation and use of the retail units hereby permitted the footpath re-surfacing 
works shown on drawing no. 2013-238/840 Rev B received by the Local Planning Authority 
18th November 2014 shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 
 
 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. In the interests of the visual amenity of the site and surroundings. 
3. In the interests of residential amenity. 
4. In the interests of residential amenity. 
5. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity. 
6. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity. 
7. In the interests of archaeological investigation and recording. 
8. In the interests of the public sewerage system. 
9. To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties. 
10. To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties. 
11. To manage the risk of flooding. 
12. In the intersts of the safe and free flow of traffic on the public highway. 
13. In the interests of residential amenity and pedestrian safety. 
14. To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties. 
15. In the interests of pedestrian, cycle and vehicle safety. 
16. In the interests of pedestrian safety. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
None 
 
 

Tudalen 144



 

 

WARD: 
 

Rhuddlan 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Ann Davies 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

44/2014/0830/ PC 

CYNNIG: 
 

Parhad yn nefnydd tir ac adeiladau i dderbyn, storio a 
dosbarthu deunyddiau, offer a cherbydau ysgafn sy’n 
ymwneud â gwifrau pŵer trydanol (cais ôl-weithredol) 
 

LLEOLIAD: CIET (UK) Ltd. Yr Hen Waith Dŵr, Ffordd Abergele 
Rhuddlan, Y Rhyl 
 

 

Tudalen 145

Eitem Agenda 12



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 44/2014/0830/PC
OLD WATER WORKS
ABERGELE RD, RHUDDLAN

Application Site

Date 24/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 301761 E 377854 N

Tudalen 147



Tudalen 148



Tudalen 149



Tudalen 150



Tudalen 151



Tudalen 152



 Sarah Stubbs
WARD : 
 

Rhuddlan 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Ann Davies 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

44/2014/0830/ PC 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Continuation of use of land and buildings for the receipting, 
storage and issue of electricity power line materials, equipment 
and light vehicles (retrospective application) 
 

LOCATION: CIET(UK) Ltd. Old Water Works  Abergele Road Rhuddlan  Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: CIET (UK) Ltd. 
 

CONSTRAINTS: None 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – No 
Press Notice – No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

RHUDDLAN TOWN COUNCIL 
“Rhuddlan Town Council considered the above application at a meeting last week and wished 
to raise objections based on the detrimental effect of the noise and hours operation on 
residents”. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
No objection 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
- Highways Officer 

No objection subject to a condition ensuring parking facilities are laid out and remain 
available at all times. 

 
          Pollution Control Officer  

No objection subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to hours of operation and methods of 
working. 
 
Housing and Community Development Service 
No objection 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

In objection 
Representations received from: 
Mr D. T. Trout, 3, Longacre, Abergele Road, Rhuddlan (on behalf of local residents, unnamed) 

 
Summary of planning based representations in objection: 
Residential Amenity Issues: Regularly use the site on a Sunday; stihl saws and chain saws are 
used which are noisy; currently enduring 24/7 activity on the site;  
 
Highway Issues: With 3 other operators on the site there are concerns relating to vehicles of all 

Tudalen 153



users conflicting, causing a jam and the need to spill out on to the service road. 
 
General Comments: The site is too small as other satellite storage areas at HTM and St Asaph 
to store large vehicles, trailers, diggers, tractors and telegraph poles etc have had to be 
created. If permission is given there is no ceiling on the level of activity or restriction on these 
satellite operations being brought to this site. 
 
The management meetings held at the site cause chaos as there is insufficient parking. 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   14/09/2014 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:  
 

• additional information required from applicant 
• re-consultations with key consultees on additional information 
• awaiting consideration by Committee 

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 This application seeks full planning permission for the continuation of use of land and 

buildings for the receipting, storage and issue of electricity power line materials, 
equipment and light vehicles by CIET (UK) Ltd at the Old Water Works Site off 
Abergele Road in Rhuddlan. 
 

1.1.2 The application is accompanied by an Access Statement along with supporting 
information relating to the business, its operations and activities.  
 

1.1.3 The following information has been submitted in relation to the business activities: 
 

*CIET delivers electricity powerline maintenance services and has been operating in 
North Wales since 2011. 
*The application requires the site for the storage of materials and vehicles consistent 
with its service installations which are stored within the warehouse unit and within the 
outside yard space. 
*Goods such as drums of copper and aluminium cabling, plastic piping and ducting, 
small 25 – 50kva transformers, wooden blocks, large steel cross arms and waste 
skips are stored at the site. 
*The yard is used for the storage of vehicles including a forklift truck, quad bikes and 
trailers, a caged 3.5T van,4x4 Land Rover and van. 
*Smaller materials such as steel cross arm bolts, small drums of cabling, cable ties, 
insulators, nuts and bolts, PPE clothing and equipment are also stored within the 
warehouse. 
*There are no repair works carried out at the site save for minor maintenance and 
repair to vehicles such as changing light bulbs/mirrors etc. 
*The goods stored at the site are in the form required by the end users and therefore 
require no preparation other than being put on to pallets and collected by the teams 
working on the installation projects. 
*The warehouse building also includes 3 small offices and a tea making room 
upstairs, with an office and training room at ground floor level.  
* The site did hold regular staff meetings and team briefs for up to 50 staff however  
these are now held at the St Asaph site and no longer take place at the application 
site in Rhuddlan. 
*On average external suppliers deliver 3-5 times per week by 3.5T van and 7.5T van, 
deliveries are between 8am and 3.30pm. 
* 2 -3 times a month, external suppliers deliver an LGV 1 (Arctic truck) delivers good 
to the site, deliveries are between 8am and 3.30pm. 
* CIET line crew vehicles are transit vans, between 8-10 vans will collect materials at 
7am and 6pm when working in the local area. 

Tudalen 154



*The applicant is in communication with the residents and measures have been taken 
to reduce the impact on residents such as: 
 -  reducing the size of certain materials which are emptied in to skips to reduce noise 
 -  saws to be used only between the hours of 8am and 5pm 
-  a maximum speed limit of 10mph specified to all staff to reduce noise levels and     
provide a safer environment 

 -  no vehicles are to be left outside the site 
 -  all vehicles are parked responsibly in the facility provided. 
 
A plan detailing the site layout is at the front of the report.  
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The site is located to the rear of a row of residential properties fronting Abergele Road 

with access to the site located in between Castle View and 3 Longacre.  
 

1.2.2 The application site comprises a warehouse and office building to the northern 
boundary of the site with an open yard area to the front with a car parking area to the 
southern end of the site abutting the boundary with the residential properties of no’s 
1,2 and 3 Longacre. 
 

1.2.3 To the northern boundary is a depot operated by Natural Resources Wales; to the 
eastern boundary a logistics business is currently operating; to the south are 
residential properties and to the western boundary is the access road leading to the 
Natural Resources Wales depot. 
 
Details of the site layout and location of other businesses can be found at the front of 
the report. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Rhuddlan and within a C1 

flood zone as defined in the development advice maps within TAN 15: Development 
and Flood Risk. 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 The application site is a small part of an old Water Depot site which has been 

subdivided into 4  plots occupied by separate businesses/operators, these businesses 
are Caravans Direct (Caravan Storage); 2 U Logistics (distribution of newspapers); 
CIET (the applicant) and Natural Resources Wales Depot. 
 

1.4.2 CIET have been operating on the site since April 2012. This planning application was 
submitted in July 2014 following compliance investigations. 
 

1.4.3 Planning Compliance proceedings are under way in relation to 2 U Logistics who do 
not have the benefit of planning permission to operate at the site. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 Clarification relating to traffic movements has been sought from the applicant in 

relation to their activities and working patterns. This 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 None 

 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 None 

 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 

Tudalen 155



Policy PSE3 – Protection of employment land and buildings 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Parking Standards 
 
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 
 
Technical Advice Notes 
TAN 15: Development & Flood Risk 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Drainage (including flooding) 
4.1.5 Highways (including access and parking) 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
The main policies in the Local Development Plan which are relevant to the principle of 
the development are Policies RD 1 and Policy PSE 3. 
 
Policy RD1 states that within development boundaries, new development is, in 
principle supported provided that it meets with the criteria of other policies in the Local 
Development Plan and material planning considerations. This assists in working 
towards a sustainable pattern of development by directing most development to 
existing settlements thereby making the most effective use of existing infrastructure, 
facilities and services by reducing the need to travel. 
 
Policy PSE 3 seeks to protect employment land and buildings and only offers support 
for proposals which would result in the loss of such land and buildings where strict 
tests can be met, i.e where there are no other suitable sites available for the 
development; there is evidence of a continuous marketing process alongside practical 
attempts to retain the employment use and where the premises are no longer capable 
of providing an acceptable standard of accommodation for employment purposes; 
and evidence that the loss of the site/premises would not prejudice the ability of an 
area to meet a range of employment needs. 
 
The policies referred to above are in general conformity with the approach to 
development in Planning Policy Wales, supporting sustainable economic 
development. Planning Policy Wales also contains a preference for the re-use of land 

Tudalen 156



which meets with the definition of ‘previously developed land’, in preference to 
greenfield sites. The proposals are therefore considered acceptable in terms of the 
general principles of these policies. The localised impacts are assessed in the 
following paragraphs. 
 

4.2.2 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
No objections have been raised in relation to the visual impacts of the proposal.  
 
The application is to continue to use an existing warehouse and office building to the 
northern boundary of the site, with a storage compound and collection area located to 
the front of the building and parking area along the southern boundary. The site is 
surrounded by metal security fencing which is consistent with the nature of the site 
and use. 
 
It is therefore not considered that the use would have a negative visual impact on the 
area. It is therefore considered acceptable in relation to the policies and guidance in 
relation to visual impact.  
 

4.2.3 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact 
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of 
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or 
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, 
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. 
 
Objections have been raised in relation to the residential amenity impacts of the 
proposal by a local resident and Town Council. 
 
The use of the site is for the receipting, storage and issue of electricity power lines 
materials, equipment and light vehicles. The use involves staff/line crews collecting 
materials from the site in transit vans at 7am and 6pm, on a daily basis when working 
locally. The equipment required by the business is delivered to the site by external 
suppliers, on average 3-5 times per week by 3.5T and 7.5T vans and deliveries 2 to 3 
times per month by an LGV (arctic truck). All deliveries take place between 8am and 
3.30pm.  
 
In relation to other activities undertaken at the site, skips are stored and used to 
empty waste such as scrap copper and aluminium. The skips are stored within the 
storage compound to the front of the warehouse building, away from the boundary 
with residential properties. Saws are used on the site to cut the metal before it is 
dropped in to the skips. The applicant has been made aware of the noise issues 
associated with this and has made improvements to mitigate noise and has provided 
assurances to the Council’s Pollution Control Officer. However, given that there are 
residential properties nearby and that concerns have been raised with regards noise 
from the site, whilst there are no objections to the proposal it is considered necessary 
in the interests of residential amenity to consider a planning condition which requires 
the applicant to submit a formal noise management plan, detailing proposals for the 
location of activities within the site and measures to mitigate noise for the occupiers of 

Tudalen 157



nearby residential properties. 
 
Consideration has to be given to the previous use of the whole site as a water depot, 
which is very similar in nature to the use under consideration. It is acknowledged that 
the site has been subdivided with 4 separate businesses currently operating and 
therefore the use of the site has intensified over time. However, based on the above, 
it is not considered that the continuation of the use of CIET on part of the overall 
former depot site raises any significant additional residential amenity concerns with 
relevant controls in place relating to hours of opening and deliveries and the 
submission of a noise management plan. 
 
It is therefore not considered that the proposal to continue to use of the site and 
buildings for the receipting, storage and issue of electricity power line materials, 
equipment and light vehicles would result in a significant harm to residential amenity 
subject to the imposition and compliance with conditions. 
 

4.2.4 Drainage (including flooding) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies 
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to 
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material 
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, 
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of 
flooding should be assessed. 
 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) have raised no objection to the proposal given the 
scale and nature of the proposal. 
 
On the basis of NRW’s comments it is suggested that there are no strong flood risk 
grounds to refuse planning permission but the applicant needs to be made aware of 
the potential flood risks and that Natural Resources Wales provides a free Flood 
Warning Service which the applicant is strongly recommended to register with. 

 
4.2.3 Highways (including access and parking) 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and 
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and 
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local 
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and 
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be 
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general 
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in 
support of sustainable development. 
 
The means of access to the site is off Abergele Road, from a service road which has 
several residential properties fronting it.  The access to the site is located in between 
‘Castle View’ and ‘3 Longacre’ and measures approxomately. 4m wide.  
 
The Highways Officer has carefully assessed the highway related concerns in relation 
to the site and is fully aware of local concerns relating to the use of the site. A site 
meeting has taken place and following that Officers requested additional information 
from the applicant in relation to traffic movements.   
 
Following receipt of this information, it is considered that the movements by 
commercial vehicles in and out of the site are acceptable given the nature of this 
business and the former use of the site as a Water Depot.  It is acknowledged that 
there are other businesses running from the site, however in relation to this 
application, the applicant, CIET, have given assurances on the traffic 
movements/activity from the site.    

 
At the request of Local Members, a speed/class data survey has been carried out at 
the Junction of the A547. From this data it would appear that there are articulated 

Tudalen 158



vehicles and heavy goods vehicles entering the site throughout the week and in the 
early hours of the morning, earliest being 2am and between 6am and 8am.    In the 
evening the evidence suggests this is 8pm and 9pm.   However, it is understood the 
numbers recorded may be due to large vehicles undertaking 3-point turns in the 
junction causing double counting and may not be visiting the businesses, furthermore 
CIET have advised that they do have deliveries by Large Vehicles however, this is 
carried out within the working day, 2 -3 times monthly.   
 
It is acknowledged that an Officer within the Traffic Section has observed a rigid 
vehicle carrying a static caravan to the site having to manoeuvre onto the service 
road/A547 Abergele Road as the gates to the yard were closed, however that this is 
not the activity of the applicant and Highways Officers consider that the information 
supplied by the applicant is acceptable and believe that their site can be managed 
safely and in accordance with the statement supplied.  
 
In conclusion, Highways Officers raise no objections to the proposal to continue to 
use the application site for the receipting, storage and issue of electricity power line 
materials, equipment and light vehicles. 
 
It is not considered, with respect to objections raised, that there are any strong 
highway grounds to refuse the application. 

 
5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 

5.1 The principle of the use is considered acceptable on a former water depot site. Careful 
consideration has been given to the impact of the proposal on local residents and highway 
safety and it has been concluded that there are no unacceptable impacts. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
1. The operation of the site shall cease within 3 months of the date of this permission unless the 

formal written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained to a Noise 
Management Plan setting out proposals for the location of activities within the site and 
measures to mitigate noise for the occupiers of nearby residential properties. The use of the 
site shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

2. The site shall not be permitted to operate or receive any deliveries outside the following times 
and days: 
 
0700 to 1800 Monday to Friday 
0800 to 1300 Saturday 

3. Within 1 month from the date of this permission, all parking areas shall be formally marked 
and laid out in accordance with a plan to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The parking spaces shall be kept available for that purpose at all times 

 
 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. In the interests of residential amenity. 
2. In the interests of residential amenity. 
3. In the interests of highway safety. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
Flood Warning & Flood Plan 
Natural Resources Wales provides a free flood Warning Service for this community. You are strongly 
advised to register your details with this service to enable you to receive the appropriate flood 
warning. It is also recommended that the users of the site create a 'Flood Plan' so that all users of the 
site know what to do before, during and after a flood event. 

Tudalen 159



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

WARD: 
 

Rhuddlan 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Arwel Roberts 
 
Y Cynghorydd Ann Davies 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

44/2014/0953/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Adeiladu mynedfa newydd i gerbydau yn cynnwys 
cael gwared ar wal derfyn ym mlaen yr eiddo i greu 
gofod parcio ar gyfer un cerbyd 
 

LLEOLIAD: 6, Grove Terrace, Ffordd y Tywysog, Rhuddlan, Y 
Rhyl 
 

 

Tudalen 161

Eitem Agenda 13



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 44/2014/0953/PF
6 GROVE TERRACE
PRINCES RD, RHUDDLAN

Application Site

Date 24/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 302550 E 378137 N

Tudalen 163



Tudalen 164



Tudalen 165



Tudalen 166



 Sarah Stubbs
WARD: 
 

Rhuddlan 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Arwel Roberts 
Cllr Ann Davies 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

44/2014/0953/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Construction of new vehicular access involving removal of front 
boundary wall to create parking for one vehicle 
 

LOCATION: 6, Grove Terrace  Princes Road Rhuddlan  Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Keith Smith 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Conservation Area 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – Yes 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

RHUDDLAN TOWN COUNCIL 
“No objection”. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
Highways Officer 
No objection subject to conditions relating to detailing 
 
Conservation Architect 
Proposals neither preserve nor enhance the character and appearance of the conservation 
area 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None 

 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   20/10/2014 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

• Re-allocation from original case officer 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The proposal involves the creation of a vehicular access on to the highway at Princes 

Road, to the front of an existing dwelling including the removal of a front boundary 
wall. 
 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The site consists of a two storey mid terraced property. It is situated within the 

Rhuddlan Conservation Area. The site is one of seven residential properties within the 
terrace. 

 
1.2.2 The site is located to the east of the town centre of Rhuddlan. It is located on Princes 

Road which is a classified road. Princes Road is a predominantly residential street. 
 

Tudalen 167



1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary and the Rhuddlan Conservation 

Area. 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 The creation of the access has previously been refused retrospective planning 

permission in 2010 and this was subsequently dismissed at appeal. An enforcement 
appeal seeking to remove the requirement to re-instate the front boundary wall was 
also dismissed. 
 

1.4.2 There have been a number of planning applications and an enforcement history 
relating to the creation of accesses in the immediate locality. 
 

1.4.3 Permission was granted in 1987 by the former Rhuddlan Borough Council at 3 Grove 
Terrace for the creation of a new access. This application required the installation of a 
gate to mitigate visual impact. 
 

1.4.4 In 1991 an application was refused by Rhuddlan Borough Council at 6 Derwen 
Terrace for the creation of a new access. The application was refused due to the 
impact on the Conservation Area and impact on highway safety. A subsequent appeal 
was dismissed. The appeal Inspector concluded that the removal of the front 
boundary wall would not preserve or enhance the character of the Conservation Area. 
Additionally the Inspector concluded that existing parking spaces within front gardens 
on Grove Terrace and Derwen Terrace did not justify the development. It was 
considered that future development of this type would be very damaging to the street 
scene. 
 

1.4.5 In 2002 an application was refused by Denbighshire County Council for the creation 
of a new access to 1 Grove Terrace on the grounds of the impact on the Conservation 
Area, and the harmful precedent that would be set. 
 

1.4.6 Enforcement action has been considered previously at 4 and 7 Grove Terrace in 
relation to the creation of accesses but due to the amount of time lapsed since the 
works were carried out, this was not considered expedient to pursue. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 None. 

 
1.6 Other relevant background information 

1.6.1 None. 
 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 44/2009/1500 - Construction of a new vehicular access involving removal of frontage wall 

(retrospective application) REFUSED 24th November 2010 and subsequently dismissed at 
appeal for the following reason; 
 
“In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the removal of the front boundary wall, which 
is a key feature of the Conservation Area, has a detrimental impact on the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area which is in conflict with Policy CON 5 of the 
Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan and advice set out in Supplementary Guidance Note 
13 Conservation Areas. The grant of permission would make it more difficult to resist 
proposals elsewhere in the locality, to the further detriment of the Conservation Area.” 
 
Subsequent appeal to Planning Inspectorate DISMISSED 6th May 2011. The Inspector’s 
comments in the decision letter referred to the detrimental impact the works had on the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area, stating that it fails to meet the statutory 
requirement concerning the desirability of either preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 

Tudalen 168



3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy RD3 – Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings 

 
Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 

 
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Impact on Residential Amenity 
4.1.3 Visual and Landscape Amenity 
4.1.4 Access / Highway issues 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
 

4.2.1 Principle 
The general principle of constructing a new vehicular access may be acceptable 
subject to the assessment of local impacts. 

 
4.2.2 Visual Amenity 

PPW paragraph 4.11.9 states that the visual appearance and scale of development 
and its relationship to its surroundings and context are material planning 
considerations when assessing planning applications. Criteria i) of Policy RD 1 
requires that development respects the site and surroundings in terms of siting, 
layout, scale, form, character, design, materials, aspect, micro-climate and intensity of 
use of land/buildings and spaces around and between buildings. Paragraph 6.5.17, 
Chapter 6, PPW states that should any proposed development conflict with the 
objective of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation 
area, or its setting, there will be a strong presumption against the grant of planning 
permission. 
 
The removal of the front boundary wall has been resisted previously by the County 
Council through the refusal of planning permission, and the Planning Inspectorate at a 
planning appeal and upholding enforcement notice. The removal of the front boundary 
wall has been resisted based on the detrimental impact on the character and 
appearance of the conservation area. 
 
As has previously been established, it is considered that the removal of the front 
boundary wall would be harmful to the character and appearance of the conservation 
area and therefore fails to comply with the requirements of the policies and guidance 
listed above. 
 

Tudalen 169



4.2.3 Access / Highway issues 
Policy RD1 requires that development does not have an unacceptable impact on the 
local highway network. 
 
The Highways Officer has raised no objection to the proposals subject to conditions. 
 
Having regards to the design, scale and location of the proposals it is considered that 
they would not have an unacceptable impact on the local highway network subject to 
appropriate detailing secured by condition. 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The proposal would have a detrimental impact of the character and appearance of the 

conservation area and is therefore recommended for refusal. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE- for the following reasons:- 

 
 
1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, that the proposed development, by virtue of 

the removal of the front boundary wall, which is a key feature of the Conservation Area, would 
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the 
locality, which is in conflict with criteria i) of Policy RD 1 of the Denbighshire Local 
Development Plan and advice set out in Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 and Supplementary 
Guidance Note 13 Conservation Areas. 

 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
None 
 
 
 

Tudalen 170



 

 

WARD: 
 

Dwyrain y Rhyl 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Barry Mellor 
 
Y Cynghorydd David Simmons 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

45/2014/0388/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Dymchwel y fila ddwyreiniol ac ailddatblygu’r tir drwy 
adeiladu 44 o fflatiau sydd i gynnwys 21 o fannau 
parcio ar y safle, adfer a newid y waliau terfyn 
presennol a gwneud gwaith cysylltiedig 
 

LLEOLIAD: Safle’r Grange Hotel 41-42 East Parade, Y Rhyl 
 

 

Tudalen 171

Eitem Agenda 14



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0388/PF
& 45/2014/0389/LB - 41-42 EAST PARADE
RHYL

Application Site

Date 24/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 301156 E 381913 N

Tudalen 173



Tudalen 174



Tudalen 175



Tudalen 176



Tudalen 177



Tudalen 178



Tudalen 179



Tudalen 180



Tudalen 181



Tudalen 182



Tudalen 183



Tudalen 184



Tudalen 185



Tudalen 186



 Ian Weaver
WARD : 
 

Rhyl East 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Barry Mellor 
Cllr David Simmons 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

45/2014/0388/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Demolition of easterly villa and redevelopment of land by the 
construction of 44 apartments to include 21 on site parking 
spaces, restoration and alteration of the existing boundary walls 
and associated works 
 

LOCATION: Grange Hotel Site 41-42  East Parade   Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: MrAndy Coombs 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes   
Press Notice – Yes  
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 
• Member request for referral to Committee 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

RHYL TOWN COUNCIL 
DECISION:  Objection on the following grounds: 
 
1.The Council feels that the density of the number of proposed flats would represent an over 
intensification of the site in terms of the number of apartments proposed.  
2. (notwithstanding the close proximity of the public car park),  The Council considers the 
provision of only 21 on-site parking spaces for 44 apartments inadequate for the need and 
that this will result in significant on-street parking to the detriment of the occupiers of 
surrounding properties. 
 
In the event that the application is approved by the Local Planning Authority then the Town 
Council would request that the following conditions be applied to any permission granted: 
 
1. That Standard Condition No. 1 be amended to require that any development permitted shall 
be commenced prior to the expiry of 1 year of the date of the grant of permission.  
2. That a restriction be placed on the route of construction vehicles accessing and departing 
the site in consideration of the close proximity of particularly the Bradshaw Nursing Home and 
the frequent round the clock need for emergency vehicles to access that property.” 

 
 

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
No flood risk objections to the proposals. Defer to County Ecologist for assessment of issues 
concerning protected species. 
 
DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER 
No response received 
 

Tudalen 187



CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST 
Have no objection to demolition but require a detailed photographic record of the buildings in 
their current state prior to demolition works commencing, which can be covered by planning 
condition. 
 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
- Highways Officer 

No objections subject to inclusion of conditions relating to the detailing of the access and 
parking layout and submission of a construction method statement. Recognises the scale 
of the development but the former use involved a 28 bed hotel and owners accommodation 
with limited onsite parking, and a substandard access which is to be closed. There is pay 
and display parking on East Parade and residents permits can be obtained for use of East 
Parade and long stay car parks. Taking all factors into account, including the proximity to 
the town centre and public transport, it is not unreasonable to support the application. 
 

 
          Pollution Control Officer  
          No response received 
 

Ecologist 
No objections in principle. Reiterates previous comments over need for survey work in relation 
to protected species, albeit the sea front location reduces the attractiveness of the location for 
bats. Recommends a nesting bird and bat survey should be undertaken demonstrating 
avoidance, mitigation and compensation measures as required. 
 
Local Housing Strategy and Development Officer 
Confirms there is evidence of high housing need in the Rhyl area. Notes the applicants have 
requested affordable housing provision be waived in this case, but asks that this be considered 
as an integral part of the site and its costs. 
 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
 
Representations from : 
Mr D. Roberts, 13 Chester Street, Rhyl 
 
Basis of representations  
 
Highway safety / parking 
Chester Street and St Asaph Street already suffer from congestion / likely increase in traffic will 
add to concerns/ concerns over highway safety including for pedestrians / emergency access 
required for adjacent nursing home/ streets already used for overspill parking for nearby home, 
offices and businesses/ all limits amount of spaces for residents and their visitors / limited 
provision for parking and visitor parking within the site / no guarantee that car parking spaces 
will be available for residents or visitors in the longer term 
 
Drainage 
No information on foul or surface water drainage proposals / concerns over potential impacts 
on area  
 
Residential amenity 
Concerns at potential for overlooking and loss of privacy in relation to St Asaph Street and 
Chester Street properties from the apartments, given the height of the building / unclear from 
plans if there are proposals to use obscure glazing to limit impacts / potential for noise and 
nuisance having regard to increased numbers of residents, e.g. traffic noise/ any permission 
should be subject to residents signing anti social behaviour conditions, to be monitored and 
managed by the Council 
 
Ground stability 

Tudalen 188



No assessment of risk to nearby property from works involved in ground retaining structures 
 
Other matters 
Need for due regard to Listed Building status / concern over general trend towards use of 
properties as HMO’s 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:    
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

• additional information required from applicant 
• protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
• re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
• awaiting consideration by Committee 

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 This is a full planning application proposing the demolition of the remaining 

listed building on the site and the redevelopment of the land by the erection of a 
single building containing 44 apartments. 

 
1.1.2 The application was submitted in April 2014, and following consideration of 

consultation responses, was revised in October 2014. The main elements of the 
scheme, as amended in October, are: 
 
• Demolition of the East Villa which formed part of the larger range of Grade II 

Listed Buildings until a serious fire in 2008 
• Redevelopment of the site by way of a building of ‘contemporary’ detailing with a 

total of 44 apartments. The floorspace has been reduced from 4446sq metres to 
3991sq. metres and involves a building on 6 levels; 5 visible at East Parade 
level, and a ‘lower ground floor ‘ at the rear. The apartments are of varying size, 
including 15 x 1 bed units, 27 x 2 bed units, and 2 x 3 bedroom units.  

• Provision of a ‘rear’ parking area with 22 parking spaces, including 4 for disabled 
persons; and 12 cycle spaces, all to be accessed off an in and out arrangement 
– in from St Asaph Street and out onto Chester Street. 

• Pedestrian access only onto East Parade via steps and graded ramps. 
• Provision of external bin stores / recycling stores in the rear yard 
• Making good of boundary walls and garden areas, with additional hard and soft 

landscaping. 
 
The basic plans are attached at the front of the report. 
 

1.1.3 The application is accompanied by sets of detailed drawings and a number of 
supporting documents, including commentary on the revisions undertaken in October 
2014 to address issues raised in consultee responses on the original scheme. These 
set out the case for the proposals and include the following: 
 
A Design and Access Statement 
This 30 page document explains the proposals, the background to the submission, 
the design concept for the new apartment building and the justification for the 
demolition of the remaining buildings on the site. 
In brief, the Statement refers to the extensive fire damage which occurred to the 
Western villa in March 2008, the previous scheme supported by the Council in 2010 
to retain the easterly villa and western annex, and reasons why this never 
materialised. 
 
The Statement accepts the historic importance of the site and the Grade II status of 

Tudalen 189



the remaining buildings. It explains the series of catastrophies and negative actions 
over recent years which it is argued have rendered the existing buildings beyond 
economic repair and restoration in relation to the importance of the listed building and 
the value derived from its continued use, given also there is no financial assistance 
from the Authority. It is stated the buildings and the site have been offered to the 
market as an unrestricted freehold, but to no avail, so the only logical option is to 
redevelop the site. The merits of alternative use have been considered but the 
overriding costs of any proposed restoration and repair would outweigh the cost of the 
works needed for any alternative use, causing any proposed use not to be viable. 
 
There is a section dealing with the detailed condition of the east villa which explains 
every salvageable or reclaimable item has been broken out and removed, causing 
significant damage to the internal fabric, and there was a further fire in 2011. It 
explains the economic value of refurbishment in 2009 before the former owner went 
into liquidation, and current budget cost estimates.   It refers to the separate 
document providing economic costings of refurbishment to support the case for 
demolition and redevelopment with residential use in keeping with the site and area – 
which it is considered would be attractive to a variety of potential residents. 
 
In respect of project viability, the Statement has been updated in an Addendum in 
October 2014 following reassessment of key parameters and the review of the 
original submissions by the District Valuer Service. The Addendum indicates that a 
design review has resulted in the reduction of the proposed floor area, which would 
generate a saving of £480,000 on build costs, improving viability whilst reducing the 
overall mass of the building. It is argued that the refurbishment of the east villa is not 
financially viable, whichever permutations may be considered. 
 
It is anticipated some apartments would be offered for leasehold sale and some 
retained as a rental portfolio 
 
The design concept has been developed with reference to the adjacent sea in mind, 
with roof forms being inspired by ‘natural and powerful wave forms’. 
In relation to key Planning Policy and guidance, it is indicated that the apartment and 
duplex units have been designed with regard to the Council’s space standards and 
that 500 sq m outdoor space is to be provided. 
 
An Order of Cost report 
This confidential document submitted with the original application documents has 
been effectively superseded by the information in the October 2014 update (see the 
paragraph below) 
 
A pre-assessment Code for Sustainable Homes report 
This is a standard document setting out the ability of the proposed development to 
meet Code level 3 and associated credits. 
 
A Structural Inspection report 
This is a 5 page report from Patrick Parsons, Consulting Engineers, on the condition 
of the buildings on site. The report comments on the deteriorating condition of the 
buildings and questions the viability of the structures as part of any scheme. 
(The annex to the west villa was removed in agreement with CADW in June 2014 
having regard to its condition and health and safety fears given proximity to a public 
highway) 
 
The October 2014 Addendum statement 
The Addendum statement is an important document in relation to the submission as it 
updates and pulls together the applicant’s case in support of the demolition of the 
remaining listed building and the financial viability of the redevelopment scheme, 
following consideration of these matters by the District Valuer Service (DVS) who 
were engaged by the County Council to provide an independent evaluation of viability 
considerations. 

Tudalen 190



The statement recognises the commentary from the DVS and contends that the 
redesign of the new build scheme has improved the financial viability whilst reducing 
the overall mass of the building. It suggests the reconfiguration of the building would 
reduce construction costs and would generate a residual profit, albeit below the level 
considered reasonable by the DVS to recognise the level of risk in the scheme.  It 
argues that different permutations involving the refurbishment of the easterly villa as 
part of the scheme are not financially viable, and that the new build option would 
provide an interesting aesthetic reflecting the marine environment, providing an 
attractive opportunity to a variety of potential future purchasers.  
The statement recognises the concerns of consultees over the loss of a listed building 
but stresses the benefits of the regeneration of a ‘tired and prominent site’ in the town.  
 

1.1.4 The agents have submitted a listed building consent application at the same 
time as this planning application, under code no. 45/2014/0389/LB.  This seeks the 
separate consent required to demolish the Easterly Villa, and has to be assessed 
independently in terms of the justification for removing the buildings.  The listed 
building application forms the basis of the following report on the agenda. 
 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The Grange Hotel is located on the south side of East Parade, one of the main 

east-west seafront roads in Rhyl.  It lies to the west of the Sun Centre, immediately 
opposite one of main car parks serving that facility.  It is bound on the east side by St 
Asaph Street, and by Chester Street on the west side. 
 

1.2.2 The Grange was historically run as a hotel, and a Grade 2 listed building 
consisting of two main ‘villas’, constructed in the 1850’s with additions of varying 
styles. The west villa was severely affected by a fire in 2008 and has since been 
demolished, along with a stone annex to the West villa, which was removed in mid 
2014 with CADW’s approval on health and safety grounds. The east villa remains on 
site, and is in a very poor physical condition. 
 

1.2.3 Vehicular access into the site has been possible from entrances off East 
Parade, Chester Street and St Asaph Street, with other pedestrian entrances on 
these roads.  There appears to have been only limited on site parking available for 
users of the Hotel.  The main ‘service’ accesses have been off Chester Street and St 
Asaph Street. 

 
1.2.4 There are parking restrictions along East Parade and on both sides of Chester 

Street and St Asaph Street for a distance of some 15 metres down from the junctions 
with East Parade. 
 

1.2.5 Ground levels fall down from the East Parade direction. There is an 
approximate difference in levels of some 3 metres between East Parade and the yard 
area at the rear of the site. 
 

1.2.6 The predominant land use in the locality is residential, but there are a range of 
tourist related uses such as hotels, and residential/nursing homes nearby. The Royal 
Alexandra hospital is some 300 metres to the north east along East Parade. 
 

1.2.7 Building styles in the locality vary considerably.  There are 4.5 storey units 
immediately to the east at No’s 43-50 East Parade; a 3 storey unit immediately to the 
west (Bradshaw Manor), 4 storey flats at Glendower Court; and mainly traditional 2 
storey houses adjoining the southern boundary along both Chester Street and St 
Asaph Street.  The ‘modern’ Sun Centre and Pavilion building is some 100 metres to 
the north east along East Parade. 

 
1.2.8 The boundary between the site and the immediately adjoining dwellings on St. 

Asaph Street and Chester Street is defined by a mix of stone and brick walls of 
varying height, and there is a gap in the boundary alongside part of the walls between 

Tudalen 191



15 Chester Street and the site. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary of Rhyl on the proposals map of 

the Local Development Plan.  
 

1.3.2 Within the Plan, the site has no specific use designation. The area to the north 
side of East Parade (not including the site) is part of a Coastal Tourism Protection 
Zone, subject to Policy PSE 13 of the Plan, which does not support proposals which 
would result in the loss of tourism facilities. 

 
1.3.3 As noted above, the remaining east villa is a Grade ll Listed building and is of 

Tudor Gothic style. 
 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 Applications for planning permission and listed building consent to convert the 

original hotel into 20 apartments were refused under Officers delegated powers in 
2007, based on the limited case advanced at that time to justify the loss of the Hotel 
use, and the detailing of the scheme. 

 
1.4.2 An alternative scheme for planning permission and listed building consent, involving 

the demolition of the fire damaged westerly villa, the  retention of the stone built annexe, 
restoration of the easterly villa, and part redevelopment creating a total of 20 apartments with 
the use of the lower ground floor as a restaurant/functions facility, was submitted in 2009. 

 
1.4.3 Denbighshire’s Planning Committee resolved to grant listed building consent for the 

demolition of the remains of the west villa, and this was consented to by CADW in 2010. 
Committee also resolved to grant the planning permission subject to the completion of a Section 
106 Obligation to secure a clawback payment for an affordable housing contribution in the event 
that the development generated an agreed level of profit when implemented. The Section 106 
Obligation was not however completed, and the planning permission has never been issued. 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 Having regard to the significance of the proposals, the District Valuer Service 

(DVS) was engaged to undertake a detailed assessment of the financial viability of 
the proposals, and this report has assisted the applicants to review the contents of 
their submissions. This led to the submission of an amended scheme and additional 
information developing the financial viability arguments in October 2014.  
 
The main conclusions of the District Valuer Service on the original submission were – 

 
- The viability testing results illustrate that the option of refurbishment and new build as 

previously proposed is unviable and, in the DVS opinion has no chance of becoming viable 
in the immediately foreseeable future.  There may be different configurations of a scheme 
involving refurbishment and new build, but without some form of public, private or third 
sector subsidy the development would need to be substantially larger to have any prospect 
of viability and almost certainly larger to an extent which could lead to the new build 
element being incongruous to the refurbished element and surrounding architectural 
environment.    
 

- The proposals for complete site clearance and development face significant viability 
challenges and based on the assessment are also currently unviable, but are far closer to 
being viable (potentially within the next 12 to 24 months) and so consideration could be 
given to approval of this scheme, subject to suitable safeguards to prevent the applicant or 
successors in title from manipulating any such consent beyond the Council’s intentions.  
 

- The viability results show that there is currently no reasonable prospect of the present 
development proposals delivering the Council’s policy requirements in respect of affordable 
housing and open space and as such these requirements could, on the basis of economic 

Tudalen 192



viability, potentially be waived in this case.  This is a decision for the Council having 
weighed all relevant factors. 
 

- Finally, it may be that the applicant could consider revisions (to units sizes, development 
density etc) to the current proposals that may lead to improved viability and this might be 
something for the Council to give further consideration to and potentially review with the 
applicant.   

 
 

1.5.2 As noted earlier in the report, the stone annex to the West villa was demolished 
in June 2014, following Health and Safety concerns, and with the consent of CADW. 

 
1.6 Other relevant background information 

1.6.1 Assessment of the planning application needs to be undertaken alongside the 
parallel application for listed building consent to demolish the remaining building on 
the site, which forms the subject of the following application on the agenda. 

  
1.6.2 The Grange has been identified as one of the County’s ‘Eyesore Sites’ where 

multidisciplinary action has been targeted to remove or deal with issues.  
 
1.6.3 The ownership of The Grange changed in 2013. The new owner has engaged 

positively with the Council in the course of developing the current planning and listed 
building applications.   
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 The most recent history is : 

 
45/2006/0705/LB 
External refurbishment works 
Granted 21/11/2006 

 
45/2007/0800/PF 
Conversion and alterations of existing hotel to create 20 no. Self contained apartments and 
construction of a new vehicular access. 
Refused 8/1//2007 
Reason for refusal: Conflict with policy TSM 8 – no evidence to demonstrate attempts to 
market property as serviced accommodation/site lies in important cluster of serviced 
accommodation uses which should be retained to ensure an adequate range of holiday 
accommodation in the town. 

 
452007/0801/LB 
Listed building application for conversion and alterations of hotel to create 20 no. Self 
contained apartments. 
Refused 21/12/2007 
Reason: Design and detailing unacceptable and would not preserve/enhance the 
character/appearance/special interest of the Grade 2 listed building. 

 
45/2008/1043/LB 
Demolition of fire damaged building (listed building) 
Withdrawn 20/3/2009. 
 
45/ 2009/0184/PF 
Demolition of fire damaged westerly villa, retention of stone built annexe, restoration of 
easterly villa, and part redevelopment; creating a total of 20 apartments;  use of lower ground 
floor as restaurant/functions facility, provision of off road parking, open space, refuse and 
cycle storage. 
Committee resolved to grant subject to completion of a Section 106 Obligation (never 
completed, so no permission issued) 
 

Tudalen 193



45/2009/185/LB 
 Demolition of fire damaged westerly villa and part redevelopment (listed building application) 
 Granted April 2010 

 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy RD5 – The Welsh language and the social and cultural fabric of communities 
Policy BSC1 – Growth Strategy for Denbighshire 
Policy BSC2 – Brownfield development priority 
Policy BSC3 – Securing infrastructure contributions from Development 
Policy BSC4 – Affordable Housing 
Policy BSC11 – Recreation and open space 
Policy VOE1 - Key areas of importance 
Policy VOE6 – Water management 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note  Recreational Public Open Space 
     Supplementary Planning Guidance Note  Access for all 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note  Affordable Housing in New Developments 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note  Residential Development Design Guide 
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 
TAN 2: Planning and Affordable Housing (2006) 
TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
TAN 12: Design (2009) 
TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004) 
TAN 18: Transport (2007) 
TAN 20: The Welsh Language – Unitary Development Plans and Planning Control (2000) 
 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications 
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the 
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4). There is detailed advice in Section 6.5 of PPW on the approach to 
demolition of listed buildings including the statement that authorities should not authorise 
demolition to make way for new development unless it is certain that the new development will 
proceed. 
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity / design 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Ecology 

Tudalen 194



4.1.5 Drainage (including flooding) 
4.1.6 Highways (including access and parking) 
4.1.7 Archaeology 
4.1.8 Viability issues 
4.1.9 Affordable Housing 
4.1.10 Open Space 
4.1.11 Density of development 
4.1.12 Inclusive design 
4.1.13 Impact on Listed Building 
4.1.14 Impact on Welsh Language and Social and Cultural Fabric 
4.1.15 Other matters 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
There are no policies in the Local Development Plan of direct relevance to a proposal 
to demolish a listed building and to carry out a redevelopment by way of erecting a 
substantial apartment block. 
Policy BSC 1 of the Development Plan sets out the County’s Growth Strategy to meet 
the needs of local communities and to meet population changes. It outlines the 
requirement for developers to provide a range of house sizes, types and tenure to 
reflect local need and demand. Rhyl is a ‘lower growth town’ in the plan and is 
expected to accommodate growth to contribute to the County’s population needs. The 
Grange site is included in the table of sites in Rhyl, which reflects the resolution to 
grant permission at Committee in 2010. The principle of a residential development 
would be consistent with the basis of policy BSC 1.  
Policy BSC 2 sets out a priority for development of brownfield land and directs 
development proposals towards such land in lower growth towns. 
Policy RD 1 sets a range of standard land use planning tests to be applied to 
development proposals within development boundaries. The relevant tests are 
reviewed under the following topic paragraphs. 
At local level, Members will be aware of ongoing work on strategies for the 
redevelopment of the town, which are building on the Rhyl Going Forward initiative 
and the West Rhyl Regeneration Area strategy. The initiative to identify and resolve 
issues with Eyesore Sites is a relevant consideration. These strategies and initiatives 
provide general support for proposals which accelerate regeneration in the town. 
Officers would suggest that the principle of a residential development of the Grange 
site would not be inconsistent with current planning policy, but the weighing up of the 
proposal does oblige due consideration of the case for demolition of the listed building 
and whether there is justification for this in connection with a redevelopment.  
 

 
4.2.2 Visual amenity 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
The only consultee comments relating directly to the visual impact are from the Town 
Council, who express concern in their original response over the density of the 
development and consider it represents an overdevelopment of the site. The 
Conservation Officer has commented on the listed building aspects of the proposals 
in the following application on the agenda.  

 
In Officers’ opinion, the detailing of the proposed apartment building raises interesting 
questions given its scale and the ‘modern’ approach to its design. It would be a 

Tudalen 195



substantial and potentially dominating structure viewed from some angles, certainly 
compared with the three storey buildings of the original Grange Hotel. However, whilst 
the building has some apartments at sixth floor level, where the roof height would be 
marginally above that of the main ridge of the substantial block of existing buildings at 
43-50 East Parade, its bulk when viewed from East Parade is broken up by variations 
on its roof height, as can be seen from the plans at the front of the report. It would 
nonetheless be a dominant physical presence when viewed from most angles, 
including the rear gardens of the residential properties on St Asaph Street and 
Chester Street. In terms of concept, in acknowledging the agent’s explanation of the 
design principles adopted, the relevance of the design to traditional built form in Rhyl 
is not obvious here and it is considered this would result in a somewhat unique form 
of development in the context of older buildings in the vicinity. Looking at the wider 
context, however, it is relevant to consider there are examples of substantial buildings 
of non-traditional character nearby at the Sun Centre/ Pavilion, and Glendower Court 
(4 storey flat roof apartments) and there is a distinctly ‘modern’ approach being 
adopted in the major redevelopment scheme at the Ocean Beach site at the other end 
of the seafront in the town. The foregoing suggests there are a number of factors to 
weigh in considering the acceptability of the visual impact of the proposals.  

   
 
4.2.3 Residential amenity 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact 
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of 
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or 
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, 
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. 
 
There are local concerns expressed by one private individual over potential for loss of 
privacy and impact on residential amenity from the proposed building. 
 
In Officers opinion, the residential amenity issues arising from the development are 
mainly from the potential for overlooking / loss of privacy from upper floor apartments 
facing towards the rear garden areas of St Asaph Street and Chester Street 
properties. In this context, whilst it is considered there would be a potential for 
overlooking into rear garden areas of existing properties from the upper floor units, 
the main rear wall of the apartments would be some 18 - 20 metres from the southern 
boundary of the site with the nearest dwellings at nos 14 St Asaph Street and  15 
Chester Street, and there are screen walls along the boundaries of all these 
properties which would limit the extent of overlooking from the apartments, particularly 
as distance increases from the Grange site. In this context, it is to be acknowledged 
that there would have been a degree of overlooking from rooms at the rear of the old 
hotel towards the properties nearest the Grange, but it is not considered the scheme 
would result in additional levels of overlooking sufficient to justify a refusal of 
permission. Concerns over additional noise and disturbance are acknowledged, but 
this is not considered likely to be of such significance to merit opposing the 
development.  
 

4.2.4 Ecology 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and 
where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5 
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated 
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that 
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm 
to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section 
5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 – Nature Conservation and Species Protection, 
which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives 
through promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to 
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where 

Tudalen 196



damage is unavoidable. 
 
There are limited comments raised over the potential impact on ecology as a result of 
development. The Biodiversity Officer has raised the requirement for suitable bat and 
bird surveys, along with relevant mitigation proposals, whilst recognising the location 
is likely to reduce the attractiveness of the location for bats.  
 
 

 
4.2.5 Drainage (including flooding) 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies 
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to 
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material 
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, 
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of 
flooding should be assessed. 

 
Whilst the application site is close to areas shown at risk of flooding in the 
Development Advice Maps accompanying TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, 
Natural Resources Wales have confirmed they have no objections. There are no 
comments from Dwr Cymru Welsh Water on the application.  The individual objector 
expresses concern over the absence of foul and surface water drainage details with 
the application. 
 
On the basis that the site is not within a Flood Zone, there are no flood risk issues to 
consider here. The developers would need to provide relevant drainage information at 
Building Regulation stage and would need to adhere to current standards in designing 
and connecting into the existing drainage network.   
 

 
4.2.6 Highways (including access and parking) 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and 
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and 
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local 
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and 
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be 
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general 
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in 
support of sustainable development. 
 
The plans show detailed proposals for a one way in and out access and a total of 22 
vehicle parking spaces on the site. There are objections raised by Rhyl Town Council 
in their original response on grounds that the number of parking spaces is insufficient 
for the number of apartments, and that there would be unacceptable pressure on 
nearby streets for parking. They suggest in the event of permission being granted, 
that consideration be given to the routing of construction traffic to respect the need for 
access to the adjacent nursing home. Concerns over general highway impacts are 
reflected in the individual objection which comments in detail on existing conditions for 
parking in the vicinity. 
 
In noting the various concerns here, it is significant that the Highway Officer has no 
objections to the proposal and has no concerns in respect of the adequacy of the 
local highway network. The Highway Officer has pointed to the previous use of the 
site as a hotel, and considers with respect to the parking situation that it is not 
unreasonable to support the application having due regard to this use, the availability 
of permit parking on East Parade and nearby long stay car parks, the proximity to the 
town centre and accessibility to public transport.  
 
It is not considered in the context of the Highway Officer’s comments, and with 
respect to objections raised, that there are strong highway grounds to refuse 

Tudalen 197



permission here. In relation to the Town Council’s response, any permission could be 
conditioned to require agreement to a Construction Method Statement, which could 
ensure consideration is given to securing access to the nursing home at construction 
stage. 

 
4.2.7 Archaeology 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and 
where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. 
Planning Policy Wales (Section 6.5) sets out a range of considerations to be given to 
the assessment of archaeological issues, including approaches to recording and 
investigating potential remains in conjunction with new development. Welsh Office 
Circular 60/96 provided earlier advice on the importance of archaeological matters in 
the planning process, stressing the need for due assessment of the nature and 
importance of any features and their setting. 
 
There are no individual representations raising archaeological issues. The County 
Archaeologist and CPAT have suggested any permission include a condition requiring 
a photographic survey of the sections of building remaining on the site, prior to 
demolition. 
 
Subject to inclusion of the type of condition suggested by the Archaeologist and 
CPAT, it is concluded that archaeological interests would not be adversely affected by 
the development. 
 

4.2.8 Viability issues 
Viability considerations may be material to the assessment of an application, as a 
factor to be weighed in the acceptability of a particular proposal.  
 
Earlier sections of the report outline the basis of the applicant’s submissions on the 
issue of viability, and how this has been revised as a result of the financial viability 
assessment carried out by the District Valuer Service. The applicants take the view 
that the option of refurbishing the existing building on the site with an element of new 
build development is not feasible given the extent of new development likely to be 
required to make it viable, as suggested by the DVS. The redevelopment proposals 
have been amended to take account of the DVS appraisal, reducing the floor area of 
the building to save construction costs, resulting in a conclusion that the new build 
scheme has a reasonable prospect of being viable in the short term, making it a 
deliverable project eliminating concerns over the loss of a listed building and the site 
being left vacant indefinitely. 
 
Officers view on the viability issue, based on the DVS conclusions and the revisions 
to the scheme, is that in relation to the refurbishment of the listed building there is no 
reasonable prospect of developing a scheme with sufficient ‘enabling’ new build 
development which would be acceptable to planning and conservation officers given 
the scale of development necessary to achieve viability, without adversely impacting 
on the character and appearance, and the setting of the listed building.  
 
In relation to the redevelopment proposals, the evolution of the scheme to reduce 
building costs in response to points raised by the DVS over the likely time period 
within which the development may become viable suggests there would be a 
reasonable prospect of a residual profit, sufficient to encourage a developer to 
proceed, and sooner than the 12-24 months suggested in the DVS conclusions. The 
improved prospect of viability is a positive factor emerging from the revisions to the 
plans and is a matter dealt with further in the following sections in relation to 
affordable housing and open space requirements in the Council’s planning policies. 
 

4.2.9 Affordable Housing 
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 4 seeks to ensure, where relevant, 10% 
affordable housing either on site on developments of 10 or more residential units or 
by way of a financial construction on development of less than 10 residential units is 

Tudalen 198



provided.   
 
As recorded in the preceding sections of the report, the viability of the development 
scheme has been subject to close scrutiny in order to inform consideration of key 
issues. The revised submission takes on board the assessment of the DVS and the 
reconfiguration of the apartment building has resulted in the applicants contending 
that the development is closer to being viable. The applicants have acknowledged 
that where a scheme shows a reasonable prospect of being viable, it may be more 
justifiable for the Council to insist on consideration of the requirements of its 
Affordable Housing Policies and to require a financial contribution towards provision 
elsewhere in the town, linked to the profitability of the scheme. The Council’s Housing 
Officer has advised there is local demand for affordable housing, and requests due 
consideration of the case for affordable housing provision.  
 
Officers’ view on the issue is that in circumstances where there is no guarantee of a 
scheme being profitable at the time of grant of permission, but there is a clear 
prospect of viability within the time period of a permission,  it would be reasonable to 
take a similar approach as that on the 2009 application, and to suggest any 
permission be linked to a suitably worded Section 106 Obligation setting terms for 
payment of a commuted sum linked to any developer profit above a recognisable 
level generated on the development, calculated at an appropriate point on the 
completion of the development. This ‘clawback’ would need to accept a level of 
developer profit appropriate to the risks of undertaking such a development, but would 
secure a payment for affordable housing on the basis of the agreed mechanism. In 
practical terms, Officers do not consider it would be reasonable to insist on affordable 
units being provided within the apartment development as this would be impractical in 
terms of management arrangements within a single building. 
 

4.2.10 Open Space 
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 3 seeks to ensure, where relevant, infrastructure 
contributions from development. Policy BSC 11 requires proposals for all new 
residential development to make a contribution to recreation and open space either 
on site, or by provision of a commuted sum. 
 
The applicant has indicated that the development retains some 500 sq m for hard and 
soft landscaping, i.e. communal amenity space, which it is contended meets the 
required outdoor space standards. The Council’s current open space calculator 
indicates a development of 44 units requires 2112 square metres Community 
Recreational Open Space and 1056 square metres Children’s Play Space. Taking 
into account the 500 square metres Open Space referred to, this would translate into 
a requirement for a commuted sum payment of £117,068.16 for the development. The 
applicants have indicated that if the development proves viable to the extent that it 
generates an agreed developer profit, it may be acceptable to include for a 
proportional contribution towards open space on any return in excess of the agreed 
figure through a suitably worded Section 106 Obligation. 
 
Taking the above information into account, Officers would suggest that as it is 
realistically not feasible to provide additional open space within the application site 
without compromising the viability of the development, it would be reasonable to 
pursue the idea of securing a financial contribution towards the enhancement of open 
space elsewhere in Rhyl through a ‘clawback’ clause in a Section 106 Obligation 
similar to that outlined above in relation to an affordable housing contribution. 
 

4.2.11 Density 
Local Development Plan Policy RD1 test ii) seeks to ensure the most efficient use of 
land by achieving densities of a minimum of 35 dwellings per hectare, unless there 
are local circumstances that dictate differently. 
 
Rhyl Town Council raise issues over the number of apartments, suggesting the 
density of development would represent an intensification of the site in terms of the 

Tudalen 199



number of apartments..  
 
The site area is indicated as 2213 square metres, and with a total of 44 apartments, 
this would approximate to a development density of 200 to the hectare. With regard to 
the density figure in Policy RD1, Officers in the Development Plan section have 
advised that this guideline is intended to refer to the development of dwellinghouses 
and not apartments / flats, which will inevitably be built in urban areas at densities well 
in excess of the 35 per hectare figure.  
 
In respecting the concerns of the Town Council, Officers would not consider the 
proposals represent an overdevelopment of the site likely to result in an unacceptable 
cramping of the available site area by buildings, as the actual building footprint would 
occupy less than 30% of the site. The building is set back from the respective 
highways and the boundary with adjacent dwellings (see the plans at the front of the 
report) and it is not considered that it would appear cramped up against existing 
development. There is reasonable space proposed within the site for access, 
servicing, and a landscaped amenity area between the building and East Parade. 
Additionally, it is relevant to note that the area along the seafront in Rhyl is 
characterised by a relatively high density of development compared with the more 
traditional housing estates behind, and it is suggested that the proposed scheme 
would not be inappropriate in this context. Parking issues are dealt with separately in 
section 4.2.6 of the report. 
 

4.2.12 Inclusive design  
The requirement to outline how the principles of inclusive design are to be 
incorporated into a scheme are set out in TAN 12 – Design and TAN 18 – Transport, 
along with Local Development Plan Policy RD 1vii and Supplementary Guidance Note 
8. 
 
The submission includes an Access Statement and details provision to be made for 
persons with disability, including external ramps, and inclusion of lift and specialist 
equipment within the building.  The proposals will also have to meet specific 
requirements of Part M of the Building Regulations and demonstrate a satisfactory 
approach to devising solutions for a difficult site. 
 

4.2.13 Impact on listed building 
Policy VOE 1 of the Local Development Plan is a general policy seeking to protect 
specific interests from development which would adversely harm them. Sites of Built 
heritage are one of the areas referred to in the policy, and would encompass listed 
buildings. The loss of a listed building may therefore be a material consideration on a 
planning application. There are detailed tests to be applied to listed building consent 
applications, outlined in Planning Policy Wales 2014 and Circular 61/96, which oblige 
consideration of the impacts on the character and appearance of listed buildings, and 
sets basic tests for consideration in relation to demolition of listed buildings, which 
have to be taken into account in the assessment of the merits of listed building 
consent applications (these are matters dealt with in detail in the following report on 
the agenda).  
 
None of the consultee responses on the planning application raise issues specific to 
the proposed demolition of the remaining listed building. In response to the listed 
building consent application, the Conservation Architect and other Historic Bodies 
have expressed reservations over the case made to justify demolition, including 
concerns that the viability of the scheme is questionable.  
 
In respecting the concerns over the loss of a listed building, there are a range of 
contrasting considerations which need to be addressed in this case. Planning policy 
and guidance rightly seek to protect historic buildings from harm, and there is a clear 
emphasis on securing retention unless there are compelling circumstances which 
might justify an alternative approach. In this case, the East villa is clearly in an 
extremely poor physical condition, through no fault of the current owner (who 

Tudalen 200



purchased the property in 2013), and it is apparent from the financial viability 
appraisals, including that of the DVS, that the viability of any scheme involving 
refurbishment of the villa is questionable, whatever combination of proposals may be 
considered. The prospect of securing an alternative use for the listed building seems 
remote. There are regeneration benefits to be considered from consenting to a 
redevelopment of the site, and some urgency to move forwards given the derelict 
condition of the East Villa.  
 
In the context of the above, Officers believe it would not be inappropriate to support 
the principle of demolition of the remaining building. The historic building merits of this 
conundrum are explored separately in the listed building application which would 
ultimately be referred to CADW for consideration if the County Council was minded to 
grant listed building consent. 
 

4.2.14 Impact on Welsh Language and Social and Cultural Fabric 
The requirement to consider the needs and interests of the Welsh Language is set out 
in Policy RD 5 in the Local Development Plan. 
 
The Community Linguistic Statement submitted with the application concludes that 
the proposals would have no material impact on the needs and interests of the Welsh 
Language.  
 
In Officers’ opinion, a residential development on this site in Rhyl would not by virtue 
of its size, scale, and location cause significant harm to the character and language 
balance of the community. The site has been in use as a hotel for many years and its 
use for residential purposes would assist in meeting the County’s population growth 
targets. 
 

4.2.15 Other matters 
 
Ground stability  
Concerns expressed by a neighbour over the stability of the land at construction stage 
and potential impacts on adjacent property are to be respected, but there are 
separate legislative safeguards under the Building Regulations to ensure safe building 
practice is followed. Ground conditions in this area are not known to be inherently 
unstable. 
 
Limits on the time period for commencement of development 
Rhyl Town Council suggest consideration be given to limiting the commencement 
period on any permission to one year. Officers would agree that this is a legitimate 
suggestion but given the potential for delay in the process of listed building consent 
(which is dependent on the decision on the following application on the agenda, and 
on CADW if the Committee does resolve to grant consent), it is suggested that the 
time period for commencement be two years. 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
 

5.1 The application proposes the demolition of the remaining dilapidated grade 2 listed building 
and the redevelopment of the land by way of a substantial apartment building. The following 
application on the agenda deals with the parallel listed building consent application for the 
demolition works. 
 

5.2 The report sets out in some detail the complex background leading to the submission of the 
application. The Grange Hotel has a unique place in the history of the town. It has suffered 
badly from neglect over time and original buildings have been lost following fire damage. 
What remains is in a state of dereliction, and is on the Council’s ‘Eyesore Sites’ list which 
seeks to secure action to improve derelict  and run down sites in the County. The new owner 
has assessed the situation and has put forward ambitious plans in an attempt to move 
forwards. 
 

Tudalen 201



5.3 The planning application raises a range of issues which oblige careful consideration. There 
are conflicting views on the acceptability of the proposals, including concerns from the Town 
Council over the impact of the development, and there are concerns in relation to the 
following listed building consent application from Historic bodies over the justification for 
demolition of the listed building (the latter being a key issue on the  listed building application). 
The modern design and the scale of the building would make this a distinctive feature along 
East Parade, a factor to place in the balance with the other issues highlighted in the report. 
 

5.4 In terms of current Development Plan policies, Officers suggest there are limited conflicts with 
the proposals, subject to securing contributions to affordable housing and open space if the 
development achieves an agreed level of return. The principle of a suitable redevelopment is 
consistent with emerging strategies for development in the town arising from the Rhyl Going 
Forward initiative, which Officers suggest are a significant material consideration to be 
weighed in any decision.   
 

5.5 In this instance it is concluded that the loss of the remaining listed building would be 
regrettable, but having full regard to the derelict condition of the building, the viability 
information in relation to retaining the building with an element of new build development, and 
the regeneration benefits for the town from the redevelopment proposals, Officers opinion is 
that there are justifiable grounds for recommending the grant of planning permission. The 
early demolition of the dilapidated building and clearance of the site would represent a 
recognisable gain from the grant of permission. 
 

5.6  The Officer recommendation therefore is to grant permission subject to a Section 106 
agreement to secure:- 

 
(a) The carrying out of demolition of the existing building and clearance of the site within 

one month of the signing of a contract for the construction of the apartment building 
 
(b) The payment of commuted sum contributions for the provision of affordable housing 

and open space in accordance with the Council’s policies and guidance, based on an 
agreed clawback mechanism accepting a suitable developer profit and identifying a 
clear trigger point for payment. 

 
In the event of failure to complete the Section 106 agreement within 12 months of the date of 
the resolution of the planning committee, the application would be reported back to the 
Committee for determination against the relevant policies and guidance at that time. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun before the expiration of two 

years from the date of this permission. 
2. No demolition shall take place before the contract for carrying out the works of redevelopment 

on the site has been made, and evidence of the contract has been submitted to the local 
planning authority. The demolition works shall be completed within one month of the date of 
the Council's approval of the details of the contract for redevelopment. 

3. No works on the redevelopment shall commence until the following details have been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
a. All external materials to be used on the walls and roofs of the building 
b. All hard and soft landscaping details, including the materials to be used on the making 
good of boundary walls the surfacing of accessways, and  proposed planting;  and the 
maintenance thereof. 
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

4. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved 
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years 
of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

5. Before the redevelopment hereby permitted  is commenced a scheme indicating the provision 
to be made for disabled people to gain access to the building shall submitted to and approved 

Tudalen 202



in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed scheme shall be implemented before 
the development hereby permitted is first brought into use. 

6. No surface water shall be allowed to connect, either directly or indirectly to the public 
sewerage system, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local planning Authority. 

7. Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or indirectly, into the 
public sewerage system. 

8. No redevelopment shall commence until the developer has prepared a scheme for the 
comprehensive and integrated drainage of the site showing how foul water, surface water and 
land drainage will be dealt with and this has been approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in liaison with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water Network Development Consultants. 

9. The developer shall ensure that a suitably qualified archaeological contractor is present 
during the undertaking of any ground works in the development area, so that an 
archaeological watching brief can be conducted.  The archaeological watching brief shall be 
undertaken to the standards laid down by the institute of Field Archaeologists.  The Local 
Planning Authority shall be informed in writing, at least two weeks prior to the commencement 
of the development, of the name of the said archaeological contractor.  A copy of the 
watching brief report shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and the Curatorial 
Section of the Clwyd-Powys Archaeological trust within two months of the field work being 
completed.. 

10. In relation to the carrying out of the demolition and building works, no development shall be 
permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority has been 
obtained in relation to the demolition methodology, site compound locations, traffic 
management scheme, hours and days of operation, the management and operation of 
construction vehicles and the construction vehicle routes. The works shall be carried out 
strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

11. None of the apartments hereby approved shall be occupied until the access and parking 
arrangements have been completed in accordance with the submitted plans. The access and 
parking arrangements shall be maintained as approved at all times. 

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. In order to ensure the early redevelopment of the site. 
2. To ensure the comprehensive redevelopment of the site, in the interests of visual amenity. 
3. In the interests of visual amenity. 
4. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity. 
5. To ensure adequate provision for accessibility for persons with disability. 
6. To ensure a suitable drainage system. 
7. To ensure a suitable drainage system. 
8. To ensure a suitable drainage system. 
9. In order to allow proper opportunity for recording of any archaeological features. 
10. In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and in the 

interests of highway safety. 
11. To ensure the site is served by an adequate access. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
You are hereby reminded that the works to which this permission relates also require Listed Building 
Consent and that it does not necessarily follow that such Consent will be granted.  It is a criminal 
offence for demolition works or other operations affecting the character of a listed building (including 
internal alterations) to be carried out without Listed Building Consent;  no such works should therefore 
be carried out until Listed Building Consent has also been granted. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991). 
Your attention is drawn to the attached notes relating to applications for consent to construct a 
vehicular crossing over a footway / verge under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980. 

Tudalen 203



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

WARD: 
 

Dwyrain y Rhyl 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Barry Mellor 
 
Y Cynghorydd David Simmons 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

45/2014/0389/ LB 

CYNNIG: 
 

Dymchwel y fila ddwyreiniol a’r anecs orllewinol ac 
ailddatblygu’r tir drwy adeiladu 44 o fflatiau sydd i 
gynnwys 21 o fannau parcio ar y safle, adfer a newid 
y waliau terfyn presennol a gwneud gwaith cysylltiedig 
(cais Adeilad Rhestredig) 
 

LLEOLIAD: Safle’r Grange Hotel 41-42 East Parade, Y Rhyl 
 

 

Tudalen 205

Eitem Agenda 15



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0388/PF
& 45/2014/0389/LB - 41-42 EAST PARADE
RHYL

Application Site

Date 24/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 301156 E 381913 N

Tudalen 207



Tudalen 208



Tudalen 209



Tudalen 210



Tudalen 211



Tudalen 212



Tudalen 213



Tudalen 214



Tudalen 215



Tudalen 216



Tudalen 217



Tudalen 218



Tudalen 219



Tudalen 220



 
 

 Ian Weaver
WARD : 
 

Rhyl East 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Barry Mellor 
Cllr David Simmons 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

45/2014/0389/ LB 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Demolition of easterly villa and westerly annex, and 
redevelopment of land by the construction of 44 apartments to 
include 21 on site parking spaces, restoration and alteration of 
the existing boundary walls and associated works (Listed 
Building application) 
 

LOCATION: Grange Hotel Site 41-42  East Parade   Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Andy Coombs 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Listed Building 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – Yes 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 
• Member request for referral to Committee 

 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

RHYL TOWN COUNCIL 
“DECISION: Objection on the following grounds 
 
1. The Council feels that the density of the number of proposed flats would represent an 

over intensification of the site in terms of the number of apartments proposed.  
2. (notwithstanding the close proximity of the public car park),  The Council considers the 

provision of only 21 on-site parking spaces for 44 apartments inadequate for the need 
and that this will result in significant on-street parking to the detriment of the occupiers of 
surrounding properties. 

 
In the event that the application is approved by the Local Planning Authority then the Town 
Council would request that the following conditions be applied to any permission granted 
  
1. That Standard Condition No. 1 be amended to require that any development permitted 

shall be commenced prior to the expiry of 1 year of the date of the grant of permission.  
2. That a restriction be placed on the route of construction vehicles accessing and 

departing the site in consideration of the close proximity of particularly the Bradshaw 
Nursing Home and the frequent round the clock need for emergency vehicles to access 
that property.” 

 
 

ROYAL COMMISSION ON THE ANCIENT & HISTORICAL MONUMENTS IN WALES 
Comments on original submission 
The remit of the Commission allows comment only on  this historical significance and context of 
a movement or structure and on the adequacy or otherwise of the  record.  Note the Grange 

Tudalen 221



hotel was listed for its special interest as a large mid 19th century villa in Tudor Gothic style, but 
since listing has become very derelict after fire damage, and has been partly demolished. 
Circular 61/96 makes it clear that listed buildings are only demolished in exceptional 
circumstances, but it is to be noted that the Grange Hotel is now a fragmentary structure. If 
consent is granted, will not need to make a special record of this building before demolition.  
 
Comments on October 2014 revisions  
Reaffirm above comments. 
 
GEORGIAN GROUP WALES 
The date of the building does not fall within the Group’s remit, hence defers to the Victorian 
Society. It is concerning that a listed building may be lost.  

 
ANCIENT MONUMENTS SOCIETY 
Comments on original submission 
Objects to the application. Having regard to the background and the information submitted, feel 
there is insufficient justification for total demolition of the listed building. With reference to 
advice in 6.5.12 of Planning Policy Wales, consider that only modest efforts have been made to 
protect the building from acts of vandalism and that recent deterioration may have been the 
result of neglect. Are not convinced the building is beyond repair. Express dismay at the size 
and design of the replacement building which does not seem to reflect the existing character of 
the town, hence if the authority are satisfied the tests in PPW are met, an improved and less 
damaging proposal should be sought. Welcome the Council’s recent efforts to protect Rhyl’s 
historic properties, and the Townscape Heritage Initiative, and hope that the same degree of 
effort will be put into preventing the loss of this important contribution to Rhyl’s seaside 
heritage. 
 
Comments on October 2014 revisions 
Maintain previous objections. Consider the financial considerations in the Addendum fail to 
justify demolition, and the new building falls short of expectations for this historically sensitive 
site.  
 
 
COUNCIL FOR BRITISH ARCHAEOLOGY 
Object to the proposals, which will result in the complete loss of the paired villas which are 
evidence of the town’s Victorian past as a fashionable seaside resort. Consider that despite the 
belief that the building is beyond repair, it retains a good deal of original fabric and character. 
The present condition should not be seen as a barrier to restoration, but as a challenge aiming 
at incorporating the building into a new development. Urge that this option is fully explored 
before demolition. 
 
VICTORIAN SOCIETY 
Object to the proposal, which would result in the total loss of a designated heritage asset. The 
east villa remains an attractive Tudor Gothic villa. Do not consider the applicants argument that 
demolition is justified by the dilapidated state of the buildings is backed up by the structural 
survey which demonstrates that the building is generally structurally sound and could be 
restored. The submitted documents do not contain information confirming that the cost of 
restoring and incorporating the building into the redevelopment would be prohibitively 
expensive, and on the basis of the documents available a serious case for the demolition of the 
listed building has not been made. The approach in a previous application involving the 
conversion as part of a redevelopment is one that could be supported. In the absence of 
stronger justification, new development should be linked to the retention and restoration of this 
nationally important historic building. 
 
CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST 
Have no objection to demolition but require a detailed photographic record of the buildings in 
their current state prior to demolition works commencing, which can be covered by planning 
condition. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 

Tudalen 222



Conservation Architect 
The documentation now submitted seems to suggest that retention of the listed building and 
development on the remaining site is not financially viable. The demolition of the listed building 
and a new building with a modified design on the entire site they say is now financially viable. Is 
unable to contradict this assertion but is very disappointed that demolition may now be granted 
consent. Has looked at the  criteria in set down in S92 of WOC 61/96  and whilst is unsure 
whether significant efforts have been put into saving the building in recent years, generally 
speaking there seems to be no financially viable way of saving the listed building, and in the 
interests of benefits to the wider community I do not object to demolition.  

 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

 
One representation has been made by a private individual in relation to the planning application 
for the redevelopment. This refers to the need to have regard to the listed status of the 
remaining building.  
 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:    
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):  
 

• protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans 
• re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional 

information 
• awaiting consideration by Committee 

 
 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1  The application seeks listed building consent to demolish the Grade II Listed Eastern 

Villa, to enable a redevelopment of the site at the former Grange Hotel, Rhyl. 

1.1.2 The proposals are submitted in parallel with planning application 45/2014/0388/PF 
which relates to the detailing of the redevelopment of the site in the form of a 44 
apartment building. 

1.1.3 The application contains a range of information in addition to the forms and drawings, 
including a Design and Access Statement, a Structural Report, and an Order of Cost 
document. It has been supplemented by additional information in October 2014 
dealing with the financial viability situation in respect of the options for refurbishment 
of the remaining building in association with a redevelopment. 

1.1.4 Members are referred to the preceding report on the agenda which sets out the full 
background history and factual information of relevance to the planning merits of the 
redevelopment scheme. 

1.1.5 Separate listed building consent is required for demolition of the listed building(s).  If 
the Committee are minded to grant listed building consent, the application has to be 
referred to CADW, who would then decide whether to authorise the Council to issue 
the consent, or to instigate a ‘call in’ for determination of the application by the 
Planning Inspectorate. 
 

1.1.6 The application is accompanied by sets of detailed drawings and a number of 
supporting documents, including commentary on the revisions undertaken in October 
2014 to address issues raised in consultee responses on the original scheme. These 
set out the case for the proposals and include the following: 
 
A Design and Access Statement 

Tudalen 223



This 30 page document explains the proposals, the background to the submission, 
the design concept for the new apartment building and the justification for the 
demolition of the remaining buildings on the site. 
In brief, the Statement refers to the extensive fire damage which occurred to the 
Western villa in March 2008, the previous scheme supported by the Council in 2010 
to retain the easterly villa and western annex, and reasons why this never 
materialised. 
The Statement accepts the historic importance of the site and the Grade II status of 
the remaining buildings. It explains the series of catastrophies and negative actions 
over recent years which it is argued have rendered the existing buildings beyond 
economic repair and restoration in relation to the importance of the listed building and 
the value derived from its continued use, given also there is no financial assistance 
from the Authority. It is stated the buildings and the site have been offered to the 
market as an unrestricted freehold, but to no avail, so the only logical option is to 
redevelop the site. The merits of alternative use have been considered but the 
overriding costs of any proposed restoration and repair would outweigh the cost of the 
works needed for any alternative use, causing any proposed use not to be viable. 
There is a section dealing with the detailed condition of the east villa which explains 
every salvageable or reclaimable item has been broken out and removed, causing 
significant damage to the internal fabric, and there was a further fire in 2011. It 
explains the economic value of refurbishment in 2009 before the former owner went 
into liquidation, and current budget cost estimates.   It refers to the separate 
document providing economic costings of refurbishment to support the case for 
demolition and redevelopment with residential use in keeping with the site and area – 
which it is considered would be attractive to a variety of potential residents. 
There is a section explaining marketing attempts to accelerate restoration and the 
merits of alternative proposals for the site, in response to the tests in Welsh Office 
Circular 61/96, which conclude the case for demolition is made. 
In respect of project viability, the Statement has been updated in an Addendum in 
October 2014 following reassessment of key parameters and the review of the 
original submissions by the District Valuer Service (DVS) who were engaged by the 
County Council to provide an independent evaluation of viability considerations. 
The Addendum indicates that a design review has resulted in the reduction of the 
proposed floor area, which would generate a saving of £480,000 on build costs, 
improving viability whilst reducing the overall mass of the building. It is argued that the 
refurbishment of the east villa is not financially viable, whichever permutations may be 
considered. It is anticipated some apartments would be offered for leasehold sale and 
some retained as a rental portfolio. It is considered the project can be shown to be 
viable. 
The design concept has been developed with reference to the adjacent sea in mind, 
with roof forms being inspired by ‘natural and powerful wave forms’. 
In relation to key Planning Policy and guidance, it is indicated that the apartment and 
duplex units have been designed with regard to the Council’s space standards; that 
500 sq m outdoor space is to be provided, but Recreational Open space can not meet 
the SPG standards in an urban location.  
 
An Order of Cost report 
This confidential document submitted with the original application documents has 
been effectively superseded by the information in the October 2014 update (see the 
paragraph below) 
 
A pre-assessment Code for Sustainable Homes report 
This is a standard document setting out the ability of the proposed development to 
meet Code level 3 and associated credits. 
 
A Structural Inspection report 
This is a 5 page report from Patrick Parsons, Consulting Engineers, on the condition 
of the buildings on site. The report comments on the deteriorating condition of the 
buildings and questions the viability of the structures as part of any scheme. 

Tudalen 224



(The annex to the west villa was removed in agreement with CADW in June 2014 
having regard to its condition and health and safety fears given proximity to a public 
highway) 
 
The October 2014 Addendum statement 
The Addendum statement is an important document in relation to the submission as it 
updates and pulls together the applicant’s case in support of the demolition of the 
remaining listed building and the financial viability of the redevelopment scheme, 
following consideration of these matters by the District Valuer Service (DVS) 
The statement recognises the commentary from the DVS and contends that the 
redesign of the new build scheme has improved the financial viability whilst reducing 
the overall mass of the building. It suggests the reconfiguration of the building would 
reduce construction costs and would generate a residual profit, albeit below the level 
considered reasonable by the DVS to recognise the level of risk in the scheme.  It 
argues that different permutations involving the refurbishment of the easterly villa as 
part of the scheme are not financially viable, and that the new build option would 
provide an interesting aesthetic reflecting the marine environment, providing an 
attractive opportunity to a variety of potential future purchasers.  
The statement recognises the concerns of consultees over the loss of a listed building 
but stresses the benefits of the regeneration of a ‘tired and prominent site’ in the town.  
 

1.1.7 The agents have submitted a planning application at the same time as this listed 
building consent application, under code no. 45/2014/0388/PF. As noted above, this 
forms the basis of the preceding report on the agenda. 
 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The Grange Hotel is located on the south side of East Parade, one of the main east-

west seafront roads in Rhyl.  It lies to the west of the Sun Centre, immediately 
opposite one of main car parks serving that facility.  It is bound on the east side by St 
Asaph Street, and by Chester Street on the west side. 
 

1.2.2 The Grange was historically run as a hotel, and a Grade 2 listed building consisting of 
two main ‘villas’, constructed in the 1850’s with additions of varying styles. The west 
villa was severely affected by a fire in 2008 and has since been demolished, along 
with a stone annex to the West villa, which was removed in mid 2014 with CADW’s 
approval on health and safety grounds. The east villa remains on site, and is in a very 
poor physical condition. 
 

1.2.3 Vehicular access into the site has been possible from entrances off East Parade, 
Chester Street and St Asaph Street, with other pedestrian entrances on these roads.  
There appears to have been only limited on site parking available for users of the 
Hotel.  The main ‘service’ accesses have been off Chester Street and St Asaph 
Street. 

 
1.2.4 There are parking restrictions along East Parade and on both sides of Chester Street 

and St Asaph Street for a distance of some 15 metres down from the junctions with 
East Parade. 
 

1.2.5 Ground levels fall down from the East Parade direction. There is an approximate 
difference in levels of some 3 metres between East Parade and the yard area at the 
rear of the site. 
 

1.2.6 The predominant land use in the locality is residential, but there are a range of tourist 
related uses such as hotels, and residential/nursing homes nearby. The Royal 
Alexandra hospital is some 300 metres to the north east along East Parade. 
 

1.2.7 Building styles in the locality vary considerably.  There are 4.5 storey units 
immediately to the east at No’s 43-50 East Parade; a 3 storey unit immediately to the 
west (Bradshaw Manor), 4 storey flats at Glendower Court; and mainly traditional 2 

Tudalen 225



storey houses adjoining the southern boundary along both Chester Street and St 
Asaph Street.  The ‘modern’ Sun Centre and Pavilion building is some 100 metres to 
the north east along East Parade. 

 
1.2.8 The boundary between the site and the immediately adjoining dwellings on St. Asaph 

Street and Chester Street is defined by a mix of stone and brick walls of varying 
height, and there is a gap in the boundary alongside part of the walls between 15 
Chester Street and the site. 
 
 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary of Rhyl on the proposals map of the 

Local Development Plan.  
 

1.3.2 Within the Plan, the site has no specific use designation. The area to the north side of 
East Parade (not including the site) is part of a Coastal Tourism Protection Zone, 
subject to Policy PSE 13 of the Plan, which does not support proposals which would 
result in the loss of tourism facilities. 
 

1.3.3 As noted above, the remaining east villa is a Grade ll Listed building and is of Tudor 
Gothic style. 
 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 Applications for planning permission and listed building consent to convert the original 

hotel into 20 apartments were refused under Officers delegated powers in 2007, 
based on the limited case advanced at that time to justify the loss of the Hotel use, 
and the detailing of the scheme. 

 
1.4.2 An alternative scheme for planning permission and listed building consent, involving the 

demolition of the fire damaged westerly villa, the  retention of the stone built annexe, restoration 
of the easterly villa, and part redevelopment creating a total of 20 apartments with the use of the 
lower ground floor as a restaurant/functions facility, was submitted in 2009. 

 
1.4.3 Denbighshire’s Planning Committee resolved to grant listed building consent for the demolition 

of the remains of the west villa, and this was consented to by CADW in 2010. Committee also 
resolved to grant the planning permission subject to the completion of a Section 106 Obligation 
to secure a clawback payment for an affordable housing contribution in the event that the 
development generated an agreed level of profit when implemented. The Section 106 Obligation 
was not however completed, and the planning permission has never been issued. 

 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 Having regard to the significance of the proposals, the District Valuer Service (DVS) 

was engaged to undertake a detailed assessment of the financial viability of the 
proposals, and this report has assisted the applicants to review the contents of their 
submissions. This led to the submission of an amended scheme and additional 
information developing the financial viability arguments in October 2014.  

 
The main conclusions of the District Valuer Service on the original submission were – 

 
- The viability testing results illustrate that the option of refurbishment and new build as 

previously proposed is unviable and, in the DVS opinion has no chance of becoming 
viable in the immediately foreseeable future.  There may be different configurations of a 
scheme involving refurbishment and new build, but without some form of public, private 
or third sector subsidy the development would need to be substantially larger to have any 
prospect of viability and almost certainly larger to an extent which could lead to the new 
build element being incongruous to the refurbished element and surrounding 
architectural environment.    

Tudalen 226



 
- The proposals for complete site clearance and development face significant viability 

challenges and based on the assessment are also currently unviable, but are far closer 
to being viable (potentially within the next 12 to 24 months) and so consideration could 
be given to approval of this scheme, subject to suitable safeguards to prevent the 
applicant or successors in title from manipulating any such consent beyond the Council’s 
intentions.  

 
- The viability results show that there is currently no reasonable prospect of the present 

development proposals delivering the Council’s policy requirements in respect of 
affordable housing and open space and as such these requirements could, on the basis 
of economic viability, potentially be waived in this case.  This is a decision for the Council 
having weighed all relevant factors. 

 
- Finally, it may be that the applicant could consider revisions (to units sizes, development 

density etc) to the current proposals that may lead to improved viability and this might be 
something for the Council to give further consideration to and potentially review with the 
applicant.   

 
 

1.5.2 As noted earlier in the report, the stone annex to the West villa was demolished in June 
2014, following Health and Safety concerns, and with the consent of CADW. 

 
1.6 Other relevant background information 

1.6.1 Assessment of the application needs to be undertaken alongside the parallel 
application for planning permission for the redevelopment of the site, which forms the 
subject of the previous application on the agenda. 
  

1.6.2 The Grange has been identified as one of the County’s ‘Eyesore Sites’ where 
multidisciplinary action has been targeted to remove or deal with issues.  

 
1.6.3 The ownership of The Grange changed in 2013. The new owner has engaged 

positively with the Council in the course of developing the current planning and listed 
building applications.   
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 The most recent history is : 

 
45/2006/0705/LB 
External refurbishment works 
Granted 21/11/2006 

 
45/2007/0800/PF 
Conversion and alterations of existing hotel to create 20 no. Self contained apartments and 
construction of a new vehicular access. 
Refused 8/1//2007 
Reason for refusal: Conflict with policy TSM 8 – no evidence to demonstrate attempts to 
market property as serviced accommodation/site lies in important cluster of serviced 
accommodation uses which should be retained to ensure an adequate range of holiday 
accommodation in the town. 

 
452007/0801/LB 
Listed building application for conversion and alterations of hotel to create 20 no. Self 
contained apartments. 
Refused 21/12/2007 
Reason: Design and detailing unacceptable and would not preserve/enhance the 
character/appearance/special interest of the Grade 2 listed building. 

 
45/2008/1043/LB 
Demolition of fire damaged building (listed building) 

Tudalen 227



Withdrawn 20/3/2009. 
 
45/ 2009/0184/PF 
Demolition of fire damaged westerly villa, retention of stone built annexe, restoration of 
easterly villa, and part redevelopment; creating a total of 20 apartments;  use of lower ground 
floor as restaurant/functions facility, provision of off road parking, open space, refuse and 
cycle storage. 
Committee resolved to grant subject to completion of a Section 106 Obligation (never 
completed) 
 
45/2009/185/LB 

 Demolition of fire damaged westerly villa and part redevelopment (listed building application) 
 Granted April 2010 

 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

Government Policy / Guidance 
Welsh Office Circular 61/96 - Planning and the historic environment: Historic Buildings and 
Conservation Areas. 
Planning and Listed Buildings Act 1990 
Planning Policy Wales 7  2014. 
 
There is no statutory requirement to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan in 
making a decision on listed building consent applications.  The key requirements are set out 
in Circular 61/96, Planning Policy Wales 7, 2014 and the Planning & Listed Buildings Act 
1990 which oblige consideration of the impact on the character and appearance of a listed 
building, and offer general advice on the tests to be applied to proposals to demolish such 
buildings. 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of guidance on matters relevant to the assessment of a listed building consent 
application involving demolition, Section 6.5.12 of Planning Policy Wales  7, 2014 and Welsh 
Office Circular 61/96 provide specific advice on the considerations to be applied by Local 
Planning Authorities. PPW reinforces the general presumption in favour of the preservation of 
listed buildings and essentially summarises the main contents of Paragraphs 92 and 93 of 
Circular 61/96, stressing that authorities should not authorise demolition to make way for new 
development unless it is certain that the new development will proceed. 
 
Paragraph 92 of Circular 61/96 advises that the Secretary of State would not expect consent to be 
given for the total or substantial demolition of any listed building without convincing evidence that 
– 
- all reasonable efforts have been made to sustain existing uses or find viable new uses, and that 
these efforts have failed; 
- that preservation in some form of charitable or community ownership is not possible or suitable; 
- or that  redevelopment would produce substantial benefits for the community which would 
decisively outweigh the loss from demolition 
Para. 92 adds that it would not be expected that demolition consent be given simply because 
redevelopment is economically more attractive to the developer than repair and re-use of a 
historic building, or because the building was acquired at a price that reflected the potential for 
redevelopment rather than the condition and constraints of the existing historic building. 
 
Paragraph 93 sets out 3 separate considerations it is expected Local Planning Authorities to 
address in determining applications involving total or substantial demolition of a listed building: 

i. The condition of the building, the cost of repairing and maintaining it in relation to its 
importance and to the value derived from its continued use. This test suggests less 
favourable levels of rents and yields cannot be automatically assumed, and that any 
assessment should take account of the possibility of tax allowances and exemptions, and 
grants from public or charitable sources. Where it is clear a building has been deliberately 
neglected, less weight should be given to the costs of repair 

Tudalen 228



ii. The adequacy of efforts made to retain the building in use. This should include the offer of the 
unrestricted freehold of the building on the open market at a price reflecting the building’s 
condition 

iii. The merits of alternative proposals for the site. This test indicates claims for the architectural 
merits of replacement buildings may be a material consideration, but should not in itself be 
held to justify the demolition of any listed building. It is suggested that even where it is thought 
the proposed works would bring substantial benefits to the community, it will often be feasible 
to incorporate listed buildings within new development, hence this option should be carefully 
considered, as the challenge presented by retaining listed buildings can be a stimulus to 
imaginative new design. 

 
 
4.1 The main issues to address in relation to the application are therefore considered to be: 

 
4.1.1 The acceptability of  the proposals having regard to the tests of PPW 2014 and Welsh 

Office Circular 61/96  
 
Consultee responses on the listed building consent application, as revised in October 
2014, are mixed. Rhyl Town Council comment mainly on matters relevant to the land 
use planning merits of the redevelopment scheme, and not on the case for demolition. 
There are objections from the Amenity Bodies including The Ancient Monuments 
Society, The Council for British Archaeology, and The Victorian Society, the gist of 
their concerns being that the case is not fully made for demolition, either on the basis 
of the financial information or the structural condition of the building, and it is 
suggested that restoration is not prohibitively expensive. The indication is that 
stronger justification is required. The Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical 
Monuments in Wales and the Georgian Group do not express strong opinion on the 
proposals. The Council’s Conservation Architect has reservations over the grant of 
consent for demolition, but accepts that if there seems to be no financially viable way 
of saving the listed building, in the interests of benefits to the wider community, does 
not object to demolition. 
 
The basis of the applicants case in support of the proposals for demolition, in the 
context of PPW and tests as outlined in Circular 61/96 are summarised below - 
 
- The information with the application highlights the difficult recent history at the 

site, and the attempts to sell the 2009 project for conversion and part 
redevelopment. It indicates that a number of developers and organisations had 
shown interest in the property, but without exception, the parties concluded that 
the site with the derelict Grade II building in place proved to make any 
development unviable. It confirms that the site and the development project was 
actively marketed by Elwy Estates and independently by the previous owners, all 
to no avail, and the site remained unsold until the demise of the previous owners, 
action by the bank and the official receivers. It states the current owner (who 
purchased the site in 2013) has also made attempts to attract alternative 
developers, in particular with Burinington Price and Llandrillo College, but both 
have confirmed they are not interested in the site. 
 

- In relation to alternative proposals for the site, the submission refers to 
assessment of potential options of small scale housing, a nursing home, and a 
budget hotel. It mentions the policies of the Denbighshire Local Development 
Plan, which designates Rhyl as a low growth town and identifies the site as a 
housing commitment in the Proposals Map, suggesting there would be benefits 
to the town through delivery of much needed residential units. It concludes that 
the financial and viability model shows the mix of one, two, and three bedroom 
units will prove to be the best use for the site. 
 

- With specific reference to the tests in Circular 61/96, the submission advises that 
: 

 

Tudalen 229



• The condition of the buildings has deteriorated beyond the point of 
reasonable cost of repair and restoration in relationship to its importance 
and to the value derived from its continued use. In the absence of financial 
assistance to offset the cost of the works, demolition and rebuild as new 
would financially be the logical option. The viability review supports this 
conclusion. 

• The buildings and site have been offered to the market as an unrestricted 
freehold but to no avail, making the only logical option to redevelop the site. 

• The merits of alternative use has been considered but the overriding cost of 
any proposed restoration and repair would outweigh the costs of the works 
needed for any alternative use , causing any proposed change of use not to 
be viable. 

• Having regard to the features mentioned in the listing description, from 
inspection and assessment it can be seen that almost all of the original 
internal features and architectural elements and components have now 
been destroyed or removed to a point where economical repair or 
restoration is not now viable. The document lists the features destroyed, 
missing and in poor condition. 

 
 

Taking all the background information into account, Officers acknowledge there are factors 
here which weigh both for and against the grant of listed building consent for demolition. In 
addressing the issues in the context of PPW advice and in particular the tests of Welsh 
office Circular 61/96, Officers comments are as follows:- 

 
Paragraph 91 

The surviving building is what is left of two Grade II listed Victorian Villas. There is a 
volume of material submitted with the application offering ‘evidence’ in support of 
demolition, sufficient to form a reasoned judgement on the case for or against consent.  
 
The submission outlines efforts which have been made over time to sustain the existing 
use, and to find viable new uses, which have failed. There is evidence that approaches 
have been made to external parties, including housing associations, who have not 
followed up any interest in taking on ownership. There is a sustainable argument that 
redevelopment would produce substantial benefits for the community by removing a 
derelict structure on the Council’s Eyesore list, and providing a mix of housing in one of the 
County’s low growth towns, contributing to the County’s housing need figures – all of which 
may be factors in favour of outweighing the loss resulting from demolition. The financial 
viability information and the conclusions of the District Valuer Service on the viability of the 
conversion and the redevelopment options indicate this is not a situation where 
redevelopment is simply more attractive to the developer than repair and reuse of the 
historic building, or that the current owner acquired the building at a price reflecting the 
potential for redevelopment rather than the condition and constraints of the existing 
building. 

 
Paragraph 92 

(i) Detailed consideration has been given to the condition of the building, the cost of 
repairing and maintaining it in relation to the value derived from its continued use. There 
appear to be no realistic sources of grants from public or charitable causes. Interpretation 
of the DVS conclusion is that there is no realistic prospect of securing a viable scheme 
based on the retention of the remaining section of the listed building. There is no clear 
evidence that the building has been deliberately neglected, and in any event no 
responsibility for its current condition can be attached to the current owner.  
 
(ii) It is difficult because of the change in ownership in the last year to be critical of efforts 
to retain the building in use. Its condition has gradually deteriorated over time, and the 
effect of the 2008 fire which destroyed the West Villa and contributed to the further 
degradation of the East Villa can not be underplayed in impacting on the feasibility and 
practicality of retaining the building in use. It is apparent from the contents of the 

Tudalen 230



application that efforts have been made to sell the site on the open market at a price 
reflecting its condition.   

 
 
(iii) The merits of the alternative proposals for the site are reviewed in the accompanying 
report on the planning application, and are considered to be a legitimate material 
consideration. There are differing opinions on the design merits of the redevelopment 
scheme but this is not considered by Officers to be a case where the justification for 
redevelopment rests solely on the architectural merits of the apartment scheme. The 
feasibility of incorporating the listed building within a new development have been 
scrutinised in detail by a ‘neutral’ body in the form of the DVS, in order to inform the 
decision making process; and significantly, as referred to earlier in this report, their 
viability testing results illustrate that the option of refurbishment and new build as 
previously proposed is unviable and has no chance of becoming viable in the immediately 
foreseeable future. Whilst the DVS accept it is impossible to rule out different 
configurations of a scheme involving refurbishment and new build, they state without 
some form of public, private or third sector subsidy the development would need to be 
substantially larger to have any prospect of viability and almost certainly larger to an 
extent which could lead to the new build element being incongruous to the refurbished 
element and surrounding architectural environment.    

 
Finally, it is to be noted that this is an instance where a fully detailed redevelopment 
scheme accompanies the proposal to demolish the remaining listed building, so there is a 
level of certainty over a development proceeding should planning consent be granted for 
the application preceding this one on the agenda. 

 
 
5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 

5.1 The report provides commentary on the tests of current policy and guidance on the 
considerations to be applied to the listed building application, to inform members on the key 
issues in the context of the submissions from the applicants and the consultee responses. 
Having regard to all these, it is suggested ultimately that this is a case where the issues are in 
the balance. 
 

5.2 The submissions from the applicants argue that all reasonable avenues have been pursued to 
secure the retention of the east villa and that the conclusion that there is no reasonable 
prospect of devising a scheme to include the building which could be viable or acceptable to 
the Conservation bodies is supported by the District Valuer Service in its assessment of the 
proposals. 
 

5.3 In concluding on the key issues, Officers are fully respectful of the opinions held by the 
Amenity Bodies in expressing reservations over the case for demolition. The reality here, 
unfortunately, is that what remains of a once significant building in the town’s history is a 
sadly derelict fragment which blights this section of the seafront, with little obvious future 
potential for a viable use or salvation. Whilst recognising the importance of listing status and 
the need to address relevant tests when considering demolition proposals, having due regard 
to the substance of the submissions, the DVS assessment of the viability situation and the 
structural condition of the building, in the context of the tests of PPW and Circular 61/96, it is 
suggested that there is a justifiable case to support demolition linked to an early 
redevelopment. It is considered this is an instance where the benefits of redevelopment can 
be said to outweigh the loss resulting from demolition, and merit the Council’s support. 
 

5.4 The recommendation following is subject to referral of the listed building consent application 
to CADW for consideration, and authorisation from CADW that consent  can be issued by 
local planning authority. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 231



 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 
1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of one year from the date of 

this consent. 
2. No demolition shall be permitted to commence until a contract for the carrying out the 

redevelopment has been made and evidence of the contract has been submitted to the local 
planning authority. 

3. No demolition shall be permitted to take place until a suitable photographic record of the 
buildings has been undertaken, in a format to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and such record has been deposited with the National Monuments Record of 
Wales. 

 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of the 1990 Listed Buildings Act. 
2. In the interests of  visual  amenity. 
3. To ensure a suitable record of the building. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
In connection  with Condition  3 of the consent , you should discuss the photographic format with, and 
send the record of the building to Richard Suggett/Nicola Roberts at the RCAHMW,  Plas Crug, 
Aberystwyth, Ceredigion, SY23  1NJ. (Tel. No. 01970 621211). 
 
 
 

Tudalen 232



 

 

  

WARD: 
 

De'r Rhyl 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones 
Y Cynghorydd Cheryl Williams 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

45/2014/0875/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Codi ystafell haul yn ochr yr annedd 

LLEOLIAD:  56 St Margarets Drive, Y Rhyl 
 

 

Tudalen 233

Eitem Agenda 16



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0875/PF
56 ST MARGARET'S DRIVE
RHYL

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 301895 E 380543 N

Tudalen 235



Tudalen 236



Tudalen 237



Tudalen 238



Tudalen 239



Tudalen 240



Tudalen 241



Tudalen 242



 Sarah Stubbs
WARD : 
 

Rhyl South 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones 
Cllr Cheryl Williams 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

45/2014/0875/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of conservatory to side of dwelling 

LOCATION:  56  St Margarets Drive   Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs.Amy Lyons 
 

CONSTRAINTS: None 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – No  
Press Notice – No  
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – Town / Community Council objection 
 
 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL 
“Objection on the grounds that if permitted the development would represent over 
intensification of the site contrary to Policy RD 3 of the adopted Local Development Plan”. 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
 None at time of writing report 
 
 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   17/12/2014 
 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a conservatory extension at 56 St 

Margarets Drive in Rhyl. The application comprises of a conservatory proposed to the 
rear side of the property, to be wrapped around the existing living room.  

 
 
1.1.2 The proposed conservatory comprises a dwarf brick wall with a UPVC frame with 

pitched roof. The footprint of the proposed conservatory would be approx. 38square 
metres with a maximum height of 3.4m. 
 

1.1.3 The proposals are illustrated on the plans at the front of the report. 
 
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 No. 56 St Margaret’s Drive is a detached residential bungalow located in a residential 

area of Rhyl. 
 

Tudalen 243



1.2.2 The site is located within an area dominated by single storey development. The 
application site, along with no 62 St Margarets Drive, is set back behind the main road 
of St Margarets Drive behind other bungalows, with its access located in between no. 
54 and 58. 
 

1.2.3 The property occupies a relatively large plot. The existing property has a floor area of 
approx.65sq m within a plot size of approx. 480sqm (excluding the access road). 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl. 

 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 None 

 
1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 

1.5.1 None 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 None 

 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 None 

 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy RD3 – Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPG 1 – Extensions to Dwellings 
SPG 7 – Residential Space Standards 
SPG 24 – Householder Development Design Guide 

 
3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 7  
 

3.3 Other material considerations 
None. 
 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 

Tudalen 244



 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1 Principle 
The principle of extensions to existing dwellings is generally acceptable in terms of 
current policies, subject to consideration of detailing and impacts. Policy RD 3 relates 
specifically to extensions to dwellings and permits extensions subject to the 
acceptability of scale and form; design and materials; the impact upon character, 
appearance, and amenity standards of the dwelling and its immediate locality; and 
whether the proposal represents overdevelopment of the site. SPG 1 and SPG 24 
offer basic advice on the principles to be adopted when designing domestic 
extensions and related developments. The assessment of impacts is set out in the 
following sections. 
 
Visual amenity 
Criteria i) of Policy RD 1 requires that development respects the site and 
surroundings in terms of siting, layout, scale, form, character, design, materials, 
aspect, micro-climate and intensity of use of land/buildings and spaces around and 
between buildings. Criteria i) of Policy RD 3 requires the scale and form of the 
proposed extension or alteration to be subordinate to the original dwelling, or the 
dwelling as it was 20 years before the planning application is made. Criteria ii) of 
Policy RD 3 requires that proposals are sympathetic in design, scale, massing and 
materials to the character and appearance of the existing building.  

  
The application proposes a conservatory extension to the rear side of the dwelling 
which would project out 3.1m metres from the side and 3.1m from the rear, wrapping 
around the corner of the property to add approximately 38 sq metres of floorspace to 
the property. The existing dwelling has a footprint of approx. 65 sq metres. The 
ridgeline of the proposed conservatory would be set down from the main ridge height 
of the dwelling by 1.5m metres.  

 
The proposed extension is located to the rear side of the property and would not be 
visible from most public viewpoints given the secluded location of the property set 
back from the main road. In Officers opinion the conservatory extension would be 
subordinate to the original dwelling and the scale and massing takes into account the 
design and form of the dwelling. Hence it is considered that the proposal would 
comply with tests i) and ii) of Policy RD 3 and advice within the supplementary 
planning guidance. 
 
Residential amenity 
Test vi) of Policy RD 1 requires that proposals do not unacceptably affect the amenity 
of local residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards itself. 
Test iii) of Policy RD 3 seeks to ensure that proposals to extend dwellings do not 
harm the amenity of the dwelling by way of overdevelopment of the site. Planning 
Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the impact on the neighbourhood as a material 
consideration, the impact of a development on residential amenity is therefore a 
relevant test on planning applications.  
 
Concerns have been raised by the Town Council that the proposal represents over 
intensification of the site. At the time of writing this report, no representations had 
been received from local residents raising any amenity concerns. 

 
The proposed conservatory would add approx. 38 sq m of floor space to a dwelling 
with a floorspace of 65sq m, making a total of 103 sqm. The proposal would result in  
built development of 103 sq m within a plot of 480 sqm which equates to just over 

Tudalen 245



20% of the plot being occupied by buildings and  over 370 sq metres of amenity 
space remaining if the conservatory extension was permitted.  
 
It is noted that there would be over the recommended 40 sq metres amenity space 
remaining for the proposed occupiers of the dwelling should the extension be 
permitted. Considering the distances to the boundaries and siting of other properties 
and to the design of the conservatory in relation to neighbouring properties it is not 
considered that the proposal would result in a loss of light or privacy for adjacent 
occupiers. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with test iii) of Policy RD 3 
and separation distance advice within supplementary planning guidance. 

 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The proposal is considered acceptable with no adverse impact on visual or residential 

amenity.  
 

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration 

of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
The reason for the condition is:- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
WELSH WATER Note to Applicant: 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 
recorded on their maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were 
transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes of Adoption of Private 
Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist 
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water in dealing with the proposal they request you contact their Operations 
Contact Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water 
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.    
 
 
 

Tudalen 246



 

 

WARD: 
 

Gorllewin y Rhyl 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Ian Armstrong 
 
Y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

45/2014/0908/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Newid defnydd cyn Lecyn Gemau Amlddefnydd i 
sefydlu prosiect cymunedol i dyfu bwyd a fydd yn 
cynnwys lotments â gwelyau uchel. 
 

LLEOLIAD: Maes chwarae oddi ar Ffordd Cilgant / Gordon 
Avenue 
 

 

Tudalen 247

Eitem Agenda 17



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0908/PF
PLAYGROUND OFF CRESCENT ROAD/
GORDON AVENUE, RHYL

Application Site

Date 24/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 300498 E 381166 N

Tudalen 249



Tudalen 250



Tudalen 251



Tudalen 252



 Sarah Stubbs
WARD : 
 

Rhyl West 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Ian Armstrong 
Cllr Joan Butterfield 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

45/2014/0908/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Change of use of former MUGA to a community food growing 
project consisting of raised bed allotments 
 

LOCATION: Playground off   Crescent Road/Gordon Avenue   Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: Denbighshire County Council 
 

CONSTRAINTS: None 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – No 
Press Notice – No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Recommendation to grant / approve – 4 or more objections received 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

RHYL TOWN COUNCIL 
“No objection”. 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Highways and Infrastructure 
- Highways Officer 

No objection 
 

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 
In objection 
Representations received from: 
Resident, 1, Gordon Avenue, Rhyl 
Resident, 8 Gordon Avenue, Rhyl 
L. Roberts, 7, Gordon Avenue, Rhyl 
Resident, 2, Gordon Avenue, Rhyl 
Resident, 5, Gordon Avenue, Rhyl 
Resident, 3, Gordon Avenue, Rhyl 

 
Summary of planning based representations in support: 
Highway Issues: will create more traffic in the area.  
 
Visual Amenity: The appearance of the site would not be enhanced by the proposal with 
‘wooden coffins’ located on the site. 
 
Residential Amenity Issues:  Object to hours of opening as would result in loss pf privacy, 
strangers overlooking nearby properties; more comings and goings; rotting greens and stinking 
compost.  
 
Drainage Issues: The drains on site will be inadequate as the area slopes towards Gordon 
Avenue which only has 2 surface water drains – mud and waste will be swept into Gordon 
Avenue 

Tudalen 253



 
General Comments: 
Lack of toilet facilities. 

 
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   13/10/2014 
 
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:  
 

• additional information required from applicant 
• awaiting consideration by Committee 

 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the change of use of a former multi 

use games area (MUGA) to a community food growing project consisting of raised 
bed allotments, on the corner of Gordon Avenue with Crescent Road in Rhyl. 
 

1.1.2 The application documents include a Design and Access Statement with Planning 
Supporting Statement.  
 

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The application site comprises areas of a small former multi use games area located 

on the corner of Gordon Avenue with Crescent Road. The play area was closed down 
in February 2014.  
 

1.2.2 The site is surrounded by high fencing and boarding. Surrounding the site are 
residential properties on Crescent Road and Gordon Avenue with the Territorial Drill 
Hall located to the rear. 
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The application site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl. 

 
1.4 Relevant planning history 

1.4.1 None 
 

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 
1.5.1 None 

 
1.6 Other relevant background information 

1.6.1 None 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 None 

 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4th June 2013) 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy PSE1 – North Wales Coast Strategic Regeneration Area 
Policy BSC 11 – Recreation and Open Space 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance: 

SPG Landscaping New Developments 
SPG Parking 
SPG West Rhyl Regeneration Area 
 

Tudalen 254



3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 
Technical Advice Notes 
TAN 12: Design 
TAN 18: Transport 

 
 
4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS: 

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 
The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be: 
 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Drainage 
4.1.5 Highways (including access and parking) 
4.1.6 Other Issues 

 
4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 

4.2.1  Principle 
Within development boundaries, new development is, in principle supported provided 
that it meets with the criteria of other policies in the Local Development Plan and 
material planning considerations. This assists in working towards a sustainable 
pattern of development by directing most development to existing settlements thereby 
making the most effective use of existing infrastructure, facilities and services by 
reducing the need to travel. 
 
Policy PSE 1 in the Local Development Plan relates to the North Wales Coast 
Strategic Regeneration Area and supports proposals which retain and develop a mix 
of employment generating uses in town centres; or provide new family residential 
accommodation; or enable the retention, enhancement and development of tourism 
related facilities; or address existing problems of deprivation in a manner which is 
consistent with the principles of sustainable development. 
 
Policy BSC 11 in the Local Development Plan relates to recreation and open space 
and seeks to protect existing recreation, public open space, allotment and amenity 
green space.  
 
Guidance is available within the West Rhyl Regeneration SPG. In terms of the 
regeneration context, Denbighshire and its delivery partners are focused on a 
comprehensive plan for West Rhyl based on the area’s strategic needs. The area has 
the potential to create a step change in its economic performance and long term 
sustainability and the SPG provides key land use and design principles to guide this 
investment. The SPG identifies a ‘Vision’ for West Rhyl, which is to “Create a 
transformational sense of place with an open space at its core which serves as a 
valuable community asset. Develop new housing designed to meet the highest 
standards of energy efficiency and provide a wider range of housing tenures to 

Tudalen 255



ensure a sustainable neighbourhood. Stimulate new employment uses which support 
the visitor and retail economy and provide local jobs. Deliver an improved public 
realm which provides a safer, more accessible environment”. 
 
The aforementioned SPG sets out a number of objectives which are aimed at 
delivering this ‘Vision’, which are as follows: 

 
1. Create a transformational sense of place through the development of new 
community green space which enhances the image of the area 
2. Generate new employment uses to support the retail strength of the town centre, 
attract visitors and enhance existing tourism uses 
3. Encourage a more balanced range of housing tenures including new homes for 
families to retain existing residents and attract new residents to the area 
4. Reduce Multiple Occupancy Housing through conversion and new development 
which provides a more balanced range of tenures and better space standards 
5. Retain the use of listed buildings and respect and enhance the conservation 
character of the area through sensitive design of new development 
6. Ensure a pedestrian and cycle friendly area with well managed parking and an 
enhanced public realm environment 
7. Promote sustainable development through the use of energy efficient design and 
use of renewable energy sources 
 
In relation to the above policies and guidance, the proposal to change the use of a 
vacant play area is considered to fit in with the development framework set out in the 
SPG, as it would contribute to the development of green space within West Rhyl. The 
site at present is vacant, it appears unsightly within the area and since its closure in 
February 2014 has been used to dump litter. 
 
In relation to Policy BSC 11 which seeks to protect existing recreation and open 
space facilities, the proposal is to create raised bed allotment plots to allow the 
operation of a community food growing project. Open Space includes allotments and 
therefore the proposal does not result in the loss of open space provision.  
 
It is considered that the proposal would contribute to the regeneration objectives of 
West Rhyl by providing enhanced green space facilities and hence in principle the 
application is considered acceptable.  
 

4.2.1 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
Local objections have been raised in relation to the visual impacts of the proposal and 
it has been stated that a boarded up play area is preferable to a site with a number of 
‘wooden coffins’ located on it.  
 
The proposal is to site 37 raised timber planting beds within the site. The planters are 
less than 1m in height, each plot measuring 1.5m by 3.5m. Overall in terms of scale, 
height, design and detailing of the proposal it is not considered that the proposed 
development would be visually intrusive within the area. At present, it is intended to 
retain the existing perimeter fencing and boarding and paint it however it may be 
removed in future dependent on site security issues. The development would be very 
low key in scale and in visual terms is considered acceptable, making a positive 
contribution to this part of Rhyl. 

Tudalen 256



 
The proposal is considered acceptable in visual amenity terms. 
 

4.2.2 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact 
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of 
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or 
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, 
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. 
 
Local objections have been raised in relation to the residential impacts of the proposal 
generally in respect of increased noise and activity within the area and potential for 
the proposed use to generate odour issues. 
 
In terms of the concerns raised by residents regarding the use of the site and 
increased noise and disturbance, the very nature of the proposed use does not 
generate an excessive amount of noise and in terms of noise generation it is 
considered likely to be far preferable than its previous use as a multi-use games area 
which had the potential to be extremely noisy.  
 
In relation to odour issues particular reference has been made by local residents to 
‘rotting greens’ and ‘stinking compost’. The 2 composting areas have been located 
within the corner and far boundary of the site away from residential properties and it 
not considered there would be any significant amenity issues arising from the 
proposed use. 
 
The comings and goings and general activities associated with the proposed 
allotment use would be limited and would not cause a significant adverse impact on 
the residential amenity of occupiers of the residential properties nearby. 
 

4.2.3 Drainage 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies 
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to 
flooding.  
 
Local objections have been raised with regards drainage and that mud and waste 
would be swept in to Gordon Avenue. 
 
This issue has been raised with the applicant and assurances have been given that 
allotments are excellent at absorbing rainfall and would result in less run-off than the 
existing situation. The raised beds have a good depth of soil and with minimum run off 
when watered. It has also been confirmed that a membrane is placed at the bottom of 
each raised bed which prevents any soil from escaping. 
 
It is not considered that the proposal would result in any drainage issues. 
 

4.2.4 Highways (including access and parking) 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and 
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and 
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local 
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and 
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be 
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general 
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in 
support of sustainable development. 
 
Local residents have raised concerns that the proposed use would generate more 
traffic within the area. 

Tudalen 257



 
Highway Officers have assessed the proposed development as acceptable. 
 
With regards the concerns of local residents that there would be an increased amount 
of traffic, the proposal is for a community resource used by Rhyl residents and who 
can walk to the allotments. On street parking is available within the wider area and 
given the scale and nature of the proposed use it is not considered that a significant 
amount of traffic would be generated causing any highway safety concerns. 
 

4.2.5 Other Issues 
Residents have raised concerns that no toilet facilities have been provided on site. 
The proposal is for a community resource used by Rhyl residents and who will be 
living locally. Toilet facilities are not provided on any other allotment sites within 
Denbighshire. 
 

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.1 The principle and detailing of the development is considered acceptable, with limited adverse 

impact anticipated on visual and residential amenity. It is not considered that there are any 
highway safety or parking concerns. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration 
of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
2. Prior to the painting of the boundary fencing and boarding, details of the colour finish shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall proceed 
in accordance with such approved details. 
3. No ancillary structures or buildings shall be erected on the site without the further written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 
 
 
The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. In the interests of visual amenity. 
3. In the interests of visual and residential amenity. 
 
 
NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10. 
 

Tudalen 258



 

 

WARD: 
 

Gorllewin y Rhyl 

AELOD(AU) WARD: 
 

Y Cynghorydd Ian Armstrong 
 
Y Cynghorydd Joan Butterfield 
 

RHIF CAIS: 
 

45/2014/1132/ PF 

CYNNIG: 
 

Dymchwel rhifau 11-25 Abbey Street a chodi 7. 
annedd gyda gerddi, parcio a thirlunio cysylltiedig; ac 
ailwampio 4 fflat a dwy uned siop ar y llawr gwaelod 
yn 27-33 Abbey Street 
 

LLEOLIAD: 11-33 Abbey Street Y Rhyl 
 

 

Tudalen 259

Eitem Agenda 18



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire          LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800          Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:

REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/1132/PF
11-33 ABBEY STREET
RHYL

Application Site

Date 26/11/2014 Scale 1/1250

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatâd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatâd yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.

Centre = 300474 E 381326 N

Tudalen 261



Tudalen 262



Tudalen 263



Tudalen 264



Tudalen 265



Tudalen 266



Tudalen 267



Tudalen 268



Tudalen 269



Tudalen 270



Tudalen 271



Tudalen 272



Tudalen 273



Tudalen 274



Tudalen 275



Tudalen 276



 Sarah Stubbs
WARD : 
 

Rhyl West 

WARD MEMBER(S): 
 

Cllr Ian Armstrong 
Cllr Joan Butterfield 
 

APPLICATION NO: 
 

45/2014/1132/ PF 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Demolition of no's 11-25 Abbey Street and erection of 7 no. 
dwellings with associated gardens, parking and landscaping; and 
refurbishment of 4 flats and 2 ground floor shop units at 27-33 
Abbey Street 
 

LOCATION: 11 - 33  Abbey Street   Rhyl 
 

APPLICANT: North Wales Housing 
 

CONSTRAINTS: Article 4 Direction 
 
 

PUBLICITY 
UNDERTAKEN: 
 

Site Notice – Yes 
Press Notice – No 
Neighbour letters - Yes 
 

  
 
REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE: 
Scheme of Delegation Part 2 
 

• Key housing scheme in West Rhyl Regeneration Area 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 

RHYL TOWN COUNCIL 
“No objection” 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES WALES 
Flood Risk 
No objection, subject to the inclusion of a condition ensuring the development is undertaken in 
accordance with the Flood Consequences Assessment and mitigation measures specified 
within it. 
Protected Species 
The proposed Reasonable Avoidance Measures proposed within the protected species reports 
should be strictly adhered to which includes details of the timing of work and removal of the 
roof. 
 
 
DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER 
No objection subject to the inclusion of standard notes 
 
WALES AND WEST UTILITIES 
No objection 
 
CLWYD POWYS ARCHAROLOGICAL TRUST 
No objection, however the proposals will effect a terrace of original seaside town houses 
constructed between 1877 and 1899 which are of local architectural interest and therefore a 
photographic survey prior to any demolition being undertaken is requested. 
 
 
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES – 
Head of Transport and Infrastructure 

Tudalen 277



Highways Officer 
No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition ensuring provision of parking and turning 
facilities. 
 
Housing Services 
Strongly support the regeneration of the street and the provision of good quality affordable 
energy efficient homes. 

  
          Economic and Business Development Manager 

Overwhelming support for the proposal. The existing properties are far less suited to modern 
day living and despite extensive refurbishment, the configuration to suit family accommodation 
would only ever be a compromise. The new properties will be targeted at the part buy part rent 
market and by this very nature aimed at first time buyers with limited resources, the cost of 
heating homes is a very important factor and why new, energy efficient homes built to Code 4 
should be supported. 
 
Biodiversity Officer 
No objection subject to recommendations within the protected species reports adhered and 
details should be submitted for approval of the type and number of bat boxes or other roosting 
opportunities. 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: 

None 
 

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:   30/11/2014 
 
REASON FOR DELAY IN DECISION: 
 

• Awaiting referral to Committee 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT: 
1. THE PROPOSAL: 

1.1 Summary of proposals 
1.1.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of no's 11-25 Abbey 

Street and redevelopment by the erection of 7 no. dwellings with associated gardens, 
parking and landscaping. The proposal also includes the refurbishment of 4 flats and 
2 ground floor shop units at 27-33 Abbey Street 
 

1.1.2 The application documents include a detailed Design and Access Statement. This 
sets out how the scheme has developed and explains the details of the proposal. 
 
 * Demolition of 11 -25  Abbey Street site and redevelopment by erection of 7 new 
dwellings, with associated gardens, parking and landscaping. 
The new dwellings would comprise a terrace of 7x 2 to 2.5 storey properties, 
comprising 2 and 3 bed dwellings. The properties would be provided with rear 
gardens and secure off street parking space. The new dwellings would be designed to 
code for sustainable homes level 3 plus and meet Design Quality Requirement 
standards. 
 
 * Refurbishment of the existing properties at 27 – 33 Abbey Street to provide 4 self 
contained flats with 2 ground floor shop units.  
The existing 3 storey buildings to be retained would be refurbished with the front 
elevations restored. The building to be retained would provide retail/community 
meeting rooms at ground floor level with 4 self contained apartments above.  
 

1.1.3 The Design and Access Statement explains the following in relation to the design 
concept and principles:- 
*The design proposals have been developed holistically to provide a diverse mix and 
range of dwelling types to meet the stated housing needs. 
* 11 units in total are to be provided with a mix of apartments and houses with the 

Tudalen 278



rear of the site accommodating private car parking and landscaped amenity space. 
* The ground floor level will be raised, increasing the height of the elevation to 
maintain the grandeur of the street frontage. 
* Aims to improve the relationship of the site with the historic context whilst 
maintaining an overall feeling of openness, improving the public realm experience 
whilst meeting the identified need for affordable housing in Rhyl. 
* The street elevation of the dwellings reflects the historical characteristics of Rhyl’s 
architecture which runs strong throughout West Rhyl.  
* Plots 27 – 33 will be retained and refurbished with the front elevations restored to 
how they would have looked during the early 1900’s. 
* The new dwellings have been sympathetically designed and detailed to complement 
the existing character of the area with the main roof being a conventional design 
taking its lead and simple form from adjacent terraces and local key buildings. 
* Design influences throughout the proposed scheme have been taken from the 
surrounding context which are particularly strong in West Rhyl, with form, materials, 
vernacular detail and boundary treatments all sympathetically designed to ensure the 
new development enhances the local Rhyl character. 
 

1.1.4 The Clients Brief for the proposal is to: 
* Create a sustainable solution to meet the local housing need that is of high quality 
and meets the Welsh Governments Design Quality Requirement Standards and Code 
3 plus. 
* Affordable houses which are flexible and suitable for local families 
* Stimulate new employment uses which support the visitor and retail economy and 
provide local jobs 
*Dwellings must be of appropriate sizes and economic to build. 
* Homes should be energy efficient to help alleviate fuel poverty. 
* Build homes that are a ‘pull’ factor to the area 
* Appeal to economically active families 
* Keep homes affordable 
 

1.1.5 The viability of regenerating the existing properties has been thoroughly explored with 
serious consideration given to the choice between refurbishment or new build. The 
applicant has considered the conditions of the site and recognises the following 
factors to be key in the consideration between refurbishment and new build: 
* Unconventional outriggers have been built to the rear of the properties, with a maze 
of unsafe walkways giving residents unsafe access to apartments at upper levels. 
* Vehicle access to the rear is via a narrow road between No 9 and 11 and there is 
currently no parking provision to the rear. 
* A number of interior and exterior modifications are made to the properties 
* A number of bay windows and windows/door details have been removed and 
replaced with uPVC shop frontages and windows which do not match the style of 
alignment resulting in a loss of the former character 
* Dwellings converted to Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO’s) resulting in cramped 
high density housing 
* Many upper floors are not level with large cracks in walls and ceilings 
* Currently there is no amenity space available 
* Dwelling layout is compromised by existing internal layout 
 
 
Members are referred to the plans at front of the report which show the basic details 
along with street scene details. 
 
  

1.2 Description of site and surroundings 
1.2.1 The application site comprises areas of existing residential development on Abbey 

Street within West Rhyl. A number of properties nearby on Gronant Street have 
already been demolished and proposals to develop a green space are under way. 
 

Tudalen 279



1.2.2 The Abbey Street site currently comprises 3 storey terraced properties. Many of these 
properties have outriggers or outbuildings to the rear with very little amenity space. 
Parking is available on street. Most properties have been vacated. 
 

1.2.3 The site is located within a predominantly residential area with few functioning 
commercial units remaining.  
 

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations 
1.3.1 The application site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl. 

 
1.3.2 The site is located close to but outside the Rhyl Central Conservation Area boundary. 

 
1.3.3 The site is located within a C1 flood zone as shown in the development advice maps 

that accompany TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk. 
 
 

1.4 Relevant planning history 
1.4.1 None relevant to this proposal 

 
1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission 

1.5.1 None 
 

1.6 Other relevant background information 
1.6.1 None 

 
 

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY: 
2.1 None 

 
 
3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE: 

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be: 
Policy RD1 – Sustainable development and good standard design 
Policy PSE1 – North Wales Coast Strategic Regeneration Area 
Policy BSC 11 Recreation and Open Space 
Policy ASA3 – Parking standards 
 
3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance: 

SPG Landscaping New Developments 
SPG Parking 
SPG West Rhyl Regeneration Area 
 

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014 
Technical Advice Notes 
TAN 12: Design 
TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk 
TAN 18: Transport 
 

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application, 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning 
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan 
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that 
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in 
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these 
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access, 
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment 
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).  
 

Tudalen 280



The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the 
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are 
considered to be of relevance to the proposal. 
 
4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be: 

4.1.1 Principle 
4.1.2 Visual amenity 
4.1.3 Residential amenity 
4.1.4 Highways (including access and parking) 
4.1.5 Flood Risk 
4.1.6 Nature Conservation 
4.1.7 Fear of Crime 

 
 

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations: 
4.2.1 Principle 

Within development boundaries, new development is, in principle supported provided 
that it meets with the criteria of other policies in the Local Development Plan and 
material planning considerations. This assists in working towards a sustainable 
pattern of development by directing most development to existing settlements thereby 
making the most effective use of existing infrastructure, facilities and services by 
reducing the need to travel. 
 
Policy PSE 1 in the Local Development Plan relates to the North Wales Coast 
Strategic Regeneration Area and supports proposals which retain and develop a mix 
of employment generating uses in town centres; or provide new family residential 
accommodation; or enable the retention, enhancement and development of tourism 
related facilities; or address existing problems of deprivation in a manner which is 
consistent with the principles of sustainable development. 
 
Further guidance is available within the West Rhyl Regeneration SPG. In terms of the 
regeneration context, Denbighshire and its delivery partners are focused on a 
comprehensive plan for West Rhyl based on the area’s strategic needs. Key seafront 
development sites offer an opportunity for private sector investment and a funded 
programme of public sector investment has been put in to place to tackle the key 
housing and green space needs. The area has the potential to create a step change 
in its economic performance and long term sustainability and the SPG provides key 
land use and design principles to guide this investment. The SPG identifies a ‘Vision’ 
for West Rhyl, which is to “Create a transformational sense of place with an open 
space at its core which serves as a valuable community asset. Develop new housing 
designed to meet the highest standards of energy efficiency and provide a wider 
range of housing tenures to ensure a sustainable neighbourhood. Stimulate new 
employment uses which support the visitor and retail economy and provide local jobs. 
Deliver an improved public realm which provides a safer, more accessible 
environment”.  
 
The aforementioned SPG sets out a number of objectives which are aimed at 
delivering this ‘Vision’, which are as follows: 

 
1. Create a transformational sense of place through the development of new 
community green space which enhances the image of the area 
2. Generate new employment uses to support the retail strength of the town centre, 
attract visitors and enhance existing tourism uses 
3. Encourage a more balanced range of housing tenures including new homes for 
families to retain existing residents and attract new residents to the area 
4. Reduce Multiple Occupancy Housing through conversion and new development 
which provides a more balanced range of tenures and better space standards 
5. Retain the use of listed buildings and respect and enhance the conservation 
character of the area through sensitive design of new development 

Tudalen 281



6. Ensure a pedestrian and cycle friendly area with well managed parking and an 
enhanced public realm environment 
7. Promote sustainable development through the use of energy efficient design and 
use of renewable energy sources 
 
An illustrative development framework within the SPG identifies key land uses for the 
West Rhyl area and the application site area is shown as existing buildings to be 
‘modified internally and/or externally’ with the development principles to convert and 
refurbish the properties to improve internal space standards, externally remodel the 
properties to introduce off street parking and gardens and provide waste storage 
within the curtilage and also introduce energy efficiency measures and renewable 
energy technology.  
 
In relation to the above policies and guidance, the redevelopment proposals do not 
specifically ‘fit’ the illustrative development framework set out in the SPG, as these 
areas of housing were identified as dwellings to be refurbished. However, it is 
recognised that the applicant has fully explored the refurbishment option and in 
addition to the economic viability of the refurbishment option being questionable, it 
would also result in a limited mix of dwelling types with practical difficulties on site in 
achieving modern, energy efficient and high quality family accommodation. 
Significantly, the SPG does recognise that not all proposals within the development 
framework will be achieved but states that applicants will need to have regard to the 
SPG and demonstrate how a proposal will contribute to the regeneration objectives of 
West Rhyl. It is considered that the applicant has addressed this and demonstrated 
the proposal would contribute to the regeneration objectives of West Rhyl hence in 
principle the application is considered acceptable.  
 

4.2.2 Visual amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the 
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not 
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or 
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or 
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent 
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to 
protect and enhance development in its local context. 
 
No objections have been raised in relation to the visual impacts of the proposal.  
 
The dwellings on Abbey Street are traditional properties and located in close proximity 
to the boundary of a Conservation Area. The proposal has had careful regard to the 
historical context of the site and particular attention has been given to the character of 
the existing properties to be demolished and the detailing of surrounding 
development. Overall in terms of scale, streetscape, height, design and detailing of 
nearby and adjoining buildings along with the general context of the site, the 
proposed development is considered acceptable in visual amenity terms. It is also 
recognised and supported that an element of the terrace is to be retained and 
reinstated to reflect former character and detail.  
 
It is therefore considered that the proposal would make a positive contribution to this 
part of Rhyl. The development would provide a sensitive, high quality, energy efficient 
housing development. It would not have a negative visual impact on the area. It is 
therefore considered acceptable in relation to the policies and guidance in relation to 
visual impact.  
 

4.2.3 Residential amenity 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting, 
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of 
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact 

Tudalen 282



on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of 
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or 
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust, 
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. 
 
No objections have been raised in relation to the residential impacts of the proposal.. 
 
The footprint of the proposed dwellings is almost identical to the existing dwellings, 
however the overall density of residential units would be reduced. The scale and 
height of the proposed dwellings is reduced when compared to existing development. 
It is not considered that the proposal would have an overbearing impact on nearby 
occupiers or would adversely impact on the privacy of nearby occupiers. 
 
In terms of the level of amenity afforded to occupiers of the proposed dwellings, the 
size of the units exceeds the minimum floor space standards in the Council’s SPG 
and also meets Welsh Government Design Quality standards. Each property is 
afforded a private rear amenity area and off street parking facilities. It is considered 
that a sufficient level of amenity would be afforded to occupiers of the proposed 
dwellings. 

 
4.2.4 Highways (including access and parking) 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and 
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and 
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local 
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and 
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be 
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general 
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 – Transport, in 
support of sustainable development. 
 
No objections have been raised in relation to the highway impacts of the proposal. 
 
Highway Officers have assessed the proposed development as acceptable. The 
proposal is to provide off street parking to the rear of all new properties which is a 
considerable improvement to the current situation as none of the dwellings have any 
off street parking facilities and rely on spaces on street.  

 
4.2.5 Flood Risk 

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies 
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to 
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material 
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk, 
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of 
flooding should be assessed. 
 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) have raised no objection to the redevelopment 
proposals. As identified within the submitted Flood Consequences Assessment and 
the recently updated Strategic Flood Consequences Assessment undertaken by the 
Council, it is apparent that the wider West Rhyl Strategic Regeneration Area is at 
considerable flood risk, and the risks are likely to increase over the next 100 years 
with climate change. Although full compliance with TAN 15 is unlikely to be achieved 
for the redevelopment, it is recognised that the proposals form part of a significant 
Local Authority regeneration initiative for West Rhyl. It is also recognised that the 
redevelopment proposals will result in some flood risk betterment compared to the 
existing situation and that this is one of the aims of the regeneration initiative. The 
main flood risk improvements include a reduction in number and density of properties, 
incorporation of flood proofing measures and the development of individual flood 
plans for inhabitants of the properties, and therefore no objections have been raised 
to the proposal subject to the inclusion of a condition ensuring the development is 
undertaken in accordance with the Flood Consequences Assessment and mitigation 

Tudalen 283



measures specified within it. 
 
On the basis of NRW’s comments, it is considered that the proposal would result in a 
flood risk betterment compared to the existing situation in this part of Rhyl and 
therefore it is suggested that there are no strong flood risk grounds to refuse planning 
permission. 
 

4.2.6 Nature Conservation 
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and 
where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5 
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated 
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that 
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant 
harm to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales 
(Section 5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 – Nature Conservation and Species 
Protection, which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity 
objectives through promoting approaches to development which create new 
opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for 
losses where damage is unavoidable. 
 
Ecological surveys of the site have been undertaken which confirm the buildings 
showed no signs of past of present roosting bats, but they do identify that the 
buildings officer moderate potential for roosting bats. NRW have not raised any 
objections to the proposal subject to the proposed Reasonable Avoidance Measures 
recommended within the protected species reports being strictly adhered to, which 
includes details of the timing of work and removal of the roof. 
 
In Officers’ opinion, the consultation responses suggest there are no ecology 
concerns in relation to the development of the application site. 
 

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS: 
5.2 The principle and detailing of development is considered acceptable, with limited adverse 

impact anticipated on visual and residential amenity. It is not considered that there are any 
highway safety or parking concerns. In flood risk terms, there is betterment from the 
inclusion of modern flood proofing measures and related mitigation in the event of problems. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration 

of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 

Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority shall be obtained in respect of the walls and roof materials to be used for the 
development hereby permitted and no materials other than those approved shall be used. 

3. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Consequences 
Assessment (Datrys 1421/E01, November 2014) and the following mitigation measures 
detailed within the report: 
 
 
-  Finished Floor Levels of the replacement dwelling/buildings shall be set at least 0.45metres 
above existing floor levels. 
-  Flood proofing measures incorporated into all properties as recommended in  the RIBA 
publication "Improving the Flood Performance of New Buildings, Flood Resilient Construction" 
(May 2007) 
 
-  No sleeping accommodation is to be provided on the ground floor level of the properties 
 
-  Individual flood plan shall be prepared for, and provided to, the owners/tenants of the 
properties and appropriate training provided to ensure effective implementation of the plan. 

Tudalen 284



 
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation of any dwellings 
and subsequently maintained in accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied 
within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

4. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures set out 
within the Protected Species Surveys undertaken dated 2nd September, 2014 by Stephen 
Cutmore. 

5. Construction of the new dwellings hereby permitted shall not be permitted to commence on 
site until a detailed site investigation to establish the ground conditions has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall proceed in 
accordance with such approved details. 

6. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the parking and turning of vehicles 
in accordance with the approved plan, and shall be completed prior to the proposed 
development being brought into use. 

7. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning 
Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site, and such scheme shall 
include details of:  
(a)  all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be 
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.  
(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of 
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting; 
 (c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced 
areas;  
(d)     proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final 
contours and the relationship  of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding 
landform;  
(e)     Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.  

8. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved 
details of landscapingshall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years 
of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

9. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION 
Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey of the existing buildings 
on the site has been carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The resulting photographs should be forwarded on 
a CD or DVD to the Local Planning Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist, 
Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust,  41 Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR.  Tel.  
01938 553670. 

 
 
The reasons for the conditions are:- 
 
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
2. In the interests of visual amenity. 
3. To reduce the risk of flooding to the properties and future inhabitants. 
4. In the interest of nature conservation. 
5. In the interests of land stability and safety. 
6. To provide for the parking of vehicles clear of the highway and to ensure that reversing by 

vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of traffic safety. 
7. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in 

conjunction with the development 
8. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in 

conjunction with the development. 
9. In the interests of investigation and recording of historic/listed buildings. 
 
 

Tudalen 285



NOTES TO APPLICANT: 
 
Note from Natural Resources Wales 
 
In relation to flood proofing, the Flood Consequences Assessment makes a commitment to install 
flood proofing measures within the development to improve the resiliency of the re-placement 
dwellings to flooding. Although this is generally to be welcomed, given the potential depths of flooding 
during extreme flood events, their benefits could be limited. We would also recommend that you 
consult other professional bodies in relation to measures that may be required to address potential 
structural damage to the dwellings caused by flood water. It would therefore be advisable for the 
dwellings to be appropriately designed to withstand and be resilient to hydrostatic pressures resulting 
from a breach/overtopping of the tidal flood defences. 
 
Please be advised that a Stopping Up Order under Section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 will be 
required for land fronting properties on Abbey Street and Gronant Street and there may also be a 
requirement for a Section 38 Agreement under Highways Act 1980 for Hope Place.    It is advisable to 
contact the Highway Authority to discuss further at any early stage. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10. 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991). 
 
 
 

Tudalen 286



PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 

10 RHAGFYR 2014                                                               

ADRODDIAD ARBENNIG 

ADRODDIAD GAN Y PENNAETH CYNLLUNIO A GWARCHOD Y CYHOEDD 

PROSIECT ISADEILEDD MAWR CYSYLLTIADAU FFERMYDD GWYNT 
GOGLEDD CYMRU 

CYFRANNU AT Y BROSES GYNLLUNIO 

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD 

1.1 Mae Prosiect Cysylltiadau Ffermydd Gwynt Gogledd Cymru yn cynnwys cynigion 
ar gyfer llinell uwchben newydd 17cilomedr o hyd 132cilo folt rhwng is-orsaf casglwr 
newydd yng Nghoedwig Clocaenog a phwynt terfynol i'r de o Ffordd Glascoed, y 
B5381, Cefn Meiriadog. Mae'n cael ei gategoreiddio fel prosiect seilwaith o bwys 
cenedlaethol a bydd angen caniatâd datblygu gan yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol o dan 
ddarpariaethau Deddf Cynllunio 2008. Byddai'r llwybr arfaethedig yn croesi drwy Sir 
Ddinbych a Chonwy. 

1.2 Efallai y bydd aelodau’n cofio bod adroddiadau blaenorol wedi cael eu cyflwyno 
i'r Pwyllgor mewn perthynas â'r prosiect hwn a chyflwynodd y Cyngor ymgynghoriad 
cyn gwneud cais ffurfiol i Scottish Power Manweb ym mis Mai 2014. Roedd yr 
ymateb yn nodi sylwadau technegol ar y deunydd ymgynghori a hefyd yn amlwg yn 
mynegi barn yr Aelodau y byddai llinellau uwchben yn cael effaith niweidiol 
sylweddol ar drigolion lleol, y dirwedd lleol ac ar yr amgylchedd lleol. 

1.3 Yng nghyfarfod y Cyngor Llawn ar 9 Medi 2014, cytunodd y Cyngor yn unfrydol 
ar syniad o Gynnig a gyflwynwyd gan y Cynghorwyr Joe Welch, Colin Hughes, 
Geraint Lloyd Williams, Meirick Lloyd Davies ac Eryl Williams. Roedd y Cynnig fel a 
ganlyn: “Mae arnom ni eisiau cefnogaeth y Cyngor i gael safiad cadarn i fynnu bod 
hyd gyfan cysylltiad Ffermydd Gwynt Gogledd Cymru yn cael ei osod o dan y 
ddaear". 

1.4 Felly, mae'r Cyngor wedi mabwysiadu gwrthwynebiad mewn egwyddor i'r 
prosiect llinell uwchben. Mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy hefyd wedi 
mabwysiadu safiad tebyg o ran y prosiect. 

1.5 Mae swyddogion wedi cyfarfod ar ôl hynny gyda Scottish Power Manweb a 
Swyddogion o Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy, ac er gwaethaf y syniad o Gynnig, 
mae Scottish Power Manweb wedi cadarnhau eu bod yn bwriadu symud ymlaen 
gyda chynigion ar gyfer llinellau uwchben ac mae cais am Ganiatâd Datblygu yn 
debygol o gael eu cyflwyno i'r Arolygiaeth Gynllunio yn fuan yn 2015. 

2. YMGYSYLLTU YN Y BROSES GYNLLUNIO  

2.1 Unwaith y bydd cais am ganiatâd datblygu wedi cael ei dderbyn gan yr 
Arolygiaeth Gynllunio, bydd y Cyngor yn cael eu gwahodd yn ffurfiol i gyflwyno 
Adroddiad Effaith Leol, sylwadau ysgrifenedig eraill a mynychu cyfarfodydd a 
sesiynau Gwrandawiad drwy gydol yr Archwiliad. 

Tudalen 287

Eitem Agenda 19



2.2 Er nad oes dyletswydd gyfreithiol ar y Cyngor i gymryd rhan yn y broses, mae'r 
Cyngor wedi ymrwymo eisoes i gymryd rhan lawn yn y broses gan ei fod er budd y 
cyhoedd i wneud hynny. Ynglŷn â’r prosiect hwn, roedd adroddiad i Bwyllgor 
Cynllunio Ionawr yn ceisio diweddaru’r Aelodau ynglŷn â statws presennol Prosiect 
Cysylltiadau Ffermydd Gwynt Gogledd Cymru, a gofyn am benderfyniad i ba raddau 
y dylai’r Cyngor gymryd rhan yn y broses gynllunio.  Penderfynodd y Pwyllgor ar y 
canlynol: 

 Dylid gofyn am gyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru  

 Dylid gofyn i’r Cwmnïau dan sylw gyfrannu  

 Dylid defnyddio cronfeydd wrth gefn y Cyngor Sir lle bo hynny’n briodol  

2.3 Fel y gŵyr Aelodau, nid yw’r Cyngor yn derbyn ffi cynllunio ar gyfer prosiectau 
seilwaith o bwys cenedlaethol, fodd bynnag efallai y bydd angen dyrannu amser 
swyddog ac adnoddau sylweddol i’r prosiect yn ystod y cyfnod Archwilio er mwyn 
asesu effeithiau lleol a chynrychioli'r Cyngor mewn sesiynau Gwrandawiad. 

2.4 Mae'r dirwedd ac effaith gweledol y cynnig yn debygol o fod yn ystyriaeth 
cynllunio allweddol; felly, efallai y bydd angen i'r Cyngor gaffael gwasanaethau 
ymgynghori tirlun allanol i helpu i asesu effeithiau lleol y cynnig. 
 
2.5 Mae'r prosiect yn effeithio ar Sir Ddinbych a Chonwy, felly mae cyfle i weithio ar y 
cyd â Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy a rhannu adnoddau swyddogion. Mae'r 
Cyngor wedi cydweithio’n flaenorol gyda Chonwy ar fferm wynt Coedwig Clocaenog. 
 
3. CYTUNDEB PERFFORMIAD CYNLLUNIO 

3.1 Mae trafodaethau wedi'u cynnal rhwng Sir Ddinbych, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Conwy a Scottish Power Manweb mewn perthynas â Chytundeb Perfformiad 
Cynllunio. 

3.2 Mae Cytundeb Perfformiad Cynllunio yn gontract cyfreithiol rhwng y Cyngor a'r 
datblygwr. Byddai'n ymrwymo'r Cyngor i ymgymryd â gweithgareddau penodol o 
fewn graddfeydd amser penodol, megis cynhyrchu Adroddiad Effaith Leol, gan roi 
sylwadau ar y Gorchymyn Caniatâd Datblygu drafft, cytuno Datganiadau o Dir 
Cyffredin a mynychu sesiynau Gwrandawiad yr Archwiliad. 

3.3 Felly, byddai mynd i mewn i Gytundeb Perfformiad Cynllunio yn ymrwymo'r 
Cyngor i gymryd rhan lawn yn y broses gynllunio a byddai angen neilltuo adnoddau 
digonol ar gyfer y prosiect er mwyn sicrhau y gall terfynau amser archwilio gael eu 
diwallu. Yn gyfnewid am hyn, byddai Scottish Power Manweb yn darparu cyfraniad 
ariannol tuag at y costau gan y Cyngor i asesu effeithiau'r prosiect yn ddiduedd ac yn 
wrthrychol a chymryd rhan yn y broses Archwilio. 

3.4 Er bod y Pwyllgor wedi penderfynu’n flaenorol i’r Cyngor ofyn am gyfraniadau 
ariannol gan ddatblygwyr, mae Swyddogion yn ceisio arweiniad gan y Pwyllgor 
ynghylch a yw Aelodau'n teimlo ei bod yn briodol i'r Cyngor ymrwymo i Gytundeb 
Perfformiad Cynllunio. Mae hyn yn ystyried y syniad o Gynnig yn y Cyngor Llawn. 

3.5 Dylai Aelodau nodi, pe bai’r Cyngor yn gwrthod bod yn rhan o'r Cytundeb 
Perfformiad Cynllunio, gall y Cyngor dal gymryd rhan yn y broses, fodd bynnag, os 
bydd angen caffael ymgynghorwyr tirwedd allanol i helpu i asesu tirwedd ac effaith 

Tudalen 288



weledol y prosiect, byddai angen ei ariannu gan gronfeydd wrth gefn y Cyngor. 

4. DATRYSIAD  

4.1 Gofynnir i’r Aelodau ystyried yr opsiynau isod a gofynnir am benderfyniad ar yr 
opsiwn a ffafrir gan ystyried y syniad o Gynnig y Cyngor Llawn ar 9 Medi, 2014:  

Opsiwn A: Mae'r Cyngor yn ymrwymo i Gytundeb Perfformiad Cynllunio (CPC) ac 
yn cyfrannu at y broses. 

Byddai'n rhaid i'r Cyngor asesu effeithiau'r cynnig, a chymryd rhan lawn yn yr 
Archwiliad, fodd bynnag, gallai'r costau gael eu hadennill gan y datblygwr. Gallai 
ymgynghorwyr tirwedd allanol gael eu caffael i asesu'r effaith ar y dirwedd heb 
unrhyw gost i'r Cyngor. 

Byddai angen dargyfeirio amser swyddogion o ffrydiau gwaith eraill a byddai'r 
Cyngor yn ymrwymol i delerau'r CPC. 

Opsiwn B: Nid yw'r Cyngor yn ymrwymo i Gytundeb CPC, ond yn cymryd rhan yn y 
broses. 

Byddai'r Cyngor yn ymdrechu i asesu'n llawn yr effeithiau a byddai angen dargyfeirio 
amser swyddogion o ffrydiau gwaith eraill. 

Os bydd angen penodi ymgynghorydd tirwedd allanol i helpu i asesu'r dirwedd ac 
effeithiau gweledol y cynnig, byddai angen tynnu cronfeydd wrth gefn y Cyngor i lawr 
i dalu am yr ymgynghorwyr tirwedd. Felly, mae dau is-opsiwn yn cael eu cynnig: 

Opsiwn B.1 adnoddau mewnol ac allanol yn cael eu defnyddio. Byddai angen tynnu 
cronfeydd wrth gefn y Cyngor i lawr i dalu am ymgynghorwyr tirwedd allanol. 

Opsiwn B.2 Dim ond adnoddau mewnol sy’n cael eu defnyddio. Byddai asesiad o'r 
effeithiau ar y dirwedd ac effeithiau gweledol yn seiliedig ar farn y Swyddog yn 
hytrach nag asesiad pensaer tirwedd proffesiynol. 

Opsiwn C: Nid yw'r Cyngor yn ymrwymo i GPC, ac nid yw'n cymryd rhan yn y 
broses. 

Mae'r Cyngor yn gwrthod cymryd rhan yn y broses. 

 

 

Tudalen 289



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



  

 
Adroddiad i’r:   Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:  10 Rhagfyr 2014 
 
Swyddog Arweiniol:  Graham Boase 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Ian Weaver 
 
Teitl:   Protocol ar gyfer Paneli Archwilio Safle 
 

 
 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

 
I ystyried adroddiad gan y Rheolwr Datblygu (isod) yn cynnwys protocol 
diwygiedig ar gyfer cynnal Paneli Archwilio Safle. 
 
Mae'r adroddiad yn cynnwys cyfres ddiwygiedig o ganllawiau ar gyfer cynnal 
Paneli Archwilio Safle i'w mabwysiadu gan y Pwyllgor. 

 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio'r adroddiad hwn?  

 
Cafodd canllawiau presennol Paneli Archwilio Safle eu diwygio ym mis 
Mehefin 2014. 
 
Mae swyddogion wedi ystyried yr adborth gan yr Aelodau ers hynny, ar eiriad y 
protocol. 
 
Bydd yr Aelodau'n ymwybodol bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn adolygu agweddau 
ar swyddogaeth gynllunio Awdurdod Lleol, a rhagwelir bod argymhellion ar 
gyfer newid aelodaeth y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a phrosesau cysylltiedig ar fin 
digwydd. Am y rheswm hwn, mae Swyddogion yn teimlo y byddai'n briodol 
awgrymu mabwysiadu'r canllawiau panel safle diwygiedig am gyfnod prawf 
pellach o 6 mis, hyd nes y ceir datblygiadau. 

 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 

 Bod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio yn penderfynu mabwysiadu'r canllawiau diwygiedig 
am gyfnod pellach o 6 mis. 

 

Tudalen 291

Eitem Agenda 20



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
 

CYNLLUNIO A GWARCHOD Y CYHOEDD 
 

TÎM RHEOLI DATBLYGU A CHYDYMFFURFIO 

 

PROTOCOL PANEL ARCHWILIO SAFLE  
 
Mae'r protocol hwn yn nodi'r ffordd y dylai ymweliadau safle ddigwydd. 
 

 
1. Diben y paneli archwilio safle 

 
1.1. Galluogi panel o Aelodau a chynrychiolydd Cyngor Tref / 

Cymuned i archwilio cais cynllunio yng nghyd-destun ymweliad 
safle cyn ystyriaeth yn y Pwyllgor Cynllunio, lle na all gwybodaeth, 
neu le na fyddai gwybodaeth yn debygol o gael ei chasglu o 
adroddiad Pwyllgor y Swyddog Cynllunio, a gwybodaeth ategol, 
gan gynnwys arddangosfeydd gweledol y Pwyllgor. 
 

1.2. Diben Paneli Archwilio Safle yw casglu ffeithiau yn unig, nid oes 
ganddynt bwerau i wneud unrhyw benderfyniad ac ni fyddant yn 
gwneud unrhyw argymhelliad i'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio ar gais. 
 

2. Penodi paneli archwilio safle 
 
2.1. Mae unrhyw Aelod o'r Cyngor Sir a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor â’r 

grym i ofyn i Banel Archwilio Safle ymweld â safle sy'n destun 
adroddiad ar y rhaglen, i'w benderfynu gan y Pwyllgor Cynllunio.  
 

2.2. Bydd gofyn i Aelodau roi arwydd clir yn ysgrifenedig (e-bost neu 
lythyr) o'r seiliau cynllunio dros ofyn am Banel Archwilio Safle, ym 
mhob achos. 
 

2.3. Fel arfer, bydd Paneli Archwilio Safle yn cael eu cynnal ar ddydd 
Iau neu ddydd Gwener yn yr wythnos yn union cyn y dydd 
Mercher y mae'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio yn cyfarfod ac yn ystyried 
cais. 
 

3. Cyfansoddiad y paneli archwilio safle 
 
3.1. Bydd yr aelodaeth yn cynnwys Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd y 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio ynghyd ag Aelod(au) Lleol ar gyfer rhanbarth 
etholiadol safle'r cais, cynrychiolydd o bob grŵp gwleidyddol, a 
chynrychiolydd o'r Cyngor Tref / Cymuned lleol. Mewn 
amgylchiadau eithriadol, a chyda cytundeb y Cadeirydd, gellir 

Tudalen 293



anfon gwahoddiadau at bob Aelod o'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio a'r 
Aelod(au) Lleol. 
 

3.2. Fel arfer, bydd Swyddog Achos Adain Gynllunio, y Rheolwr 
Datblygu neu’r Pen Swyddog Cynllunio’n bresennol mewn 
cyfarfod panel Archwilio Safle.  Efallai y gofynnir i Swyddogion 
eraill fod yn bresennol lle bydd angen cyngor arbenigol ar eitem. 
 

3.3. Mewn amgylchiadau lle nad yw’r Cadeirydd, yr Is-gadeirydd neu'r 
Aelod(au) Lleol yn gallu bod yn bresennol, neu lle mae gwrthdaro 
buddiannau, gall ef / hi enwebu Aelod arall i fod yn bresennol 
gyda chytundeb y Cadeirydd. 
 

4. Gweithdrefnau i'w dilyn wrth benodi paneli archwilio safle cyn y pwyllgor 
 
4.1. Fel arfer, bydd Paneli Archwilio Safle yn cael eu penodi cyn y 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio yr ystyrir y cais.  
 

4.2. Dylai cais am Banel Archwilio Safle gael ei wneud trwy e-bost neu 
lythyr gan Aelod i’r Rheolwr Datblygu a'r Rheolwr Tîm Cefnogi o 
leiaf 5 diwrnod gwaith cyn y dyddiad a bennwyd ar gyfer Paneli 
Archwilio Safle h.y. erbyn diwedd y dydd Gwener yr wythnos cyn y 
gwneir yr archwiliadau safle ar y dydd Gwener canlynol. Dylai cais 
ddod ar ôl cyhoeddi'r rhestr o eitemau posibl ar gyfer y Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio a ddosberthir 3 wythnos cyn y Pwyllgor, neu'r mynegai 
gwirioneddol o eitemau ar y Pwyllgor a ddosbarthwyd ar y dydd 
Gwener 10 diwrnod gwaith cyn y Pwyllgor. 
 

4.3. Dylai unrhyw gais am banel Archwiliad Safle gynnwys sail 
gynllunio glir ar gyfer cynnal cyfarfod. 
 

4.4. Bydd y Rheolwr Datblygu yn ymgynghori â Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio cyn y gwneir penderfyniad ynghylch a ddylid bwrw 
ymlaen ag ymweliad safle. 
 

4.5. Bydd yr Aelod sy’n gofyn am gyfarfod Panel Archwilio Safle yn 
cael gwybod am y penderfyniad yn (4.4) a'r rhesymau. 
 

4.6. Bydd swyddogion yn gwneud y trefniadau ar gyfer cyfarfodydd y 
Panel Archwilio Safle a bydd yn rhoi gwybod i'r Aelodau yn unol â 
hynny. 
 

5. Gweithdrefnau mewn cyfarfodydd panel archwilio safle 
 
5.1. Bydd yr Archwiliad Safle yn cychwyn ar yr amser penodedig. 

 
5.2. Os yw Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor yn absennol, dylai’r Aelodau gytuno 

ar y Cadeirydd dros dro (caiff hwn fod yr Is-gadeirydd os yw'n 
bresennol). 
 

Tudalen 294



5.3. Bydd y Cadeirydd yn agor y cyfarfod yn ffurfiol. 
 

5.4. Bydd y Swyddog Cynllunio yn cael ei wahodd i amlinellu'r cais a'r 
prif faterion ac awgrymu a oes nodweddion penodol y dylai 
Aelodau arsylwi arno, gan ystyried y rhesymau dros benodi'r 
panel.  Bydd y Swyddog yn cynghori'r Panel a allai fod yn briodol 
gweld y cynnig o dir /eiddo cyfagos ac unrhyw geisiadau gan 
ddeiliaid cyfagos i weld y safle oddi ar eu tir / eiddo nhw. 
 

5.5. Bydd y Panel Archwilio Safle yn edrych ar y safle, yr adeiladau 
perthnasol a'r ardal gyfagos yn ôl yr angen. 
 

5.6. Bydd yr Aelodau yn cael y cyfle i holi cwestiynau neu ofyn am 
eglurhad o bwyntiau o ffeithiau gyda'r Swyddog Cynllunio a/neu 
aelod(au) lleol a/neu gynrychiolydd y Cyngor Tref/Cymuned. 
 

5.7. Bydd yr Aelod(au) Lleol a chynrychiolydd o'r Cyngor 
Tref/Cymuned yn cael y cyfle i roi sylwadau ar y cynnig. 
 

5.8. Bydd Aelodau o'r Panel Archwilio Safle yn cael y cyfle i roi 
sylwadau ar y cynnig ac i drafod materion. 
 

5.9. Bydd y Cadeirydd yn cyhoeddi’n ffurfiol pan fydd y cyfarfod wedi 
dod i ben. 
 

5.10. Bydd y Swyddog Cynllunio yn gyfrifol am baratoi nodyn ffeithiol 
byr o’r cyfarfod i'w gynnwys yn y taflenni sylwadau hwyr i'w 
cylchredeg yn y Pwyllgor. Bydd y nodiadau hyn yn cynnwys y 
rhesymau dros benodi'r panel, cofnod o'r rhai sy'n bresennol, ac 
amlinelliad o'r hyn a welwyd ac a ystyriwyd. Ni fydd unrhyw farn 
yn cael eu mynegi ar rinweddau'r cais yn y nodiadau. 
 

5.11. Aelodau eraill – Mae Aelodau ar wahân i'r rhai a benodwyd ar y 
Panel Archwilio Safle yn cael caniatâd i fynychu Panel Archwilio 
Safle fel arsylwyr, ond ni chaniateir iddynt siarad. 
 

5.12. Y Cyhoedd / Ymgeiswyr / Asiantau – Ni chaiff unrhyw aelod o'r 
cyhoedd, ymgeiswyr neu eu hasiantau, gael caniatâd i fod yn 
bresennol, i annerch neu arsylwi unrhyw gyfarfod o’r Panel 
Archwilio Safle.  Mewn amgylchiadau eithriadol, lle bo angen i 
Banel Archwilio Safle arolygu / fynd i adeiladau neu dir ym 
mhresenoldeb y perchennog / ymgeisydd / deiliad cyfagos, bydd y 
person hwnnw yn cael eu cynghori ar gychwyn y cyfarfod nad yw 
ef / hi yn gallu cymryd rhan mewn unrhyw weithdrefn yn y 
cyfarfod, ac eithrio i ateb unrhyw gwestiynau ffeithiol a roddir i’r 
Cadeirydd. Gofynnir i'r perchennog / ymgeisydd / deiliad cyfagos 
adael presenoldeb y Panel Archwilio Safle cyn unrhyw sylwadau 
neu ddadl ar gynnig. 
 

5.13. Lletygarwch - Ni ddylai Aelodau o’r Panel Archwilio Safle 

Tudalen 295



dderbyn unrhyw fath o letygarwch yr ystyrir iddo ddylanwadu ar y 
broses o wneud penderfyniadau. 
 

5.14. Iechyd a Diogelwch - Disgwylir i Aelodau gydymffurfio â rheolau 
a rheoliadau cyffredinol safle a threfniadau iechyd a diogelwch ar 
bob ymweliad â safle. Gall hyn gynnwys gwisgo Cyfarpar Diogelu 
Personol a bydd trefniadau'n cael eu gwneud i sicrhau bod offer 
Cyfarpar Diogelu Personol yn cael eu rhoi lle bo hynny'n briodol.  
Y Cadeirydd (neu ei ddirprwy enwebedig) a fydd yn penderfynu a 
yw unrhyw Aelod o'r Panel Archwilio Safle yn rhoi eu hunain 
mewn perygl oherwydd eu hiechyd neu gyflwr corfforol, gan 
gymryd cyngor y Swyddog i ystyriaeth. 
 

5.15. Mewn perthynas ag unrhyw faterion gweithdrefnol sy'n codi mewn 
perthynas â threfniadaeth neu ymddygiad Panel Archwilio Safle 
nad ydynt yn dod o dan y protocol hwn, y Cadeirydd sydd i 
benderfynu ar y camau i'w cymryd (neu'r Is-gadeirydd yn 
absenoldeb y Cadeirydd) mewn ymgynghoriad â'r Rheolwr 
Datblygu neu Ben Swyddog Cynllunio perthnasol. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Awdur:  Paul Mead Dyddiad: 10 Rhagfyr 2014 

Cyswllt: Paul Mead Fersiwn : V3  

 Dyddiad i'w adolygu : Mehefin 2015 

  
 

Tudalen 296


	Rhaglen
	1 YMDDIHEURIADAU
	VOTING SHEET

	2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD
	4 COFNODION
	5 RHIF CAIS: 01/2013/1599/PF – THE FORUM, 27-29 STRYD FAWR, DINBYCH
	ITEM 5 - APPENDIX

	6 RHIF CAIS: 01/2013/1601/PF – THE FORUM, 27-29 STRYD FAWR, DINBYCH
	ITEM 6 - APPENDIX

	7 RHIF CAIS: 08/2014/1139/PF -  TIR GER TRELARS IFOR WILLIAMS CYF, CYNWYD, CORWEN
	ITEM 7 - APPENDIX

	8 RHIF CAIS: 18/2014/1133/PS - TIR Y TU ÔL I’R GOLDEN LION INN, LLANDYRNOG, DINBYCH
	ITEM 8 - APPENDIX

	9 RHIF CAIS: 31/2013/1079/PFHY  - TIR YN ELWY MEADOWS, FFORDD ISAF DINBYCH, LLANELWY
	ITEM 9 - APPENDIX

	10 RHIF CAIS: 41/2014/0757/PF - YEW TREE, BODFARI, DINBYCH
	ITEM 10 - APPENDIX

	11 RHIF CAIS: 43/2014/0905/PF - ICELAND FOODS A BEVANS HOMEWARES, FFORDD LLYS NANT, PRESTATYN
	ITEM 11 - APPENDIX

	12 RHIF CAIS: 44/2014/0830/PC -  CIET (UK) LTD., YR HEN WAITH DŴR, FFORDD ABERGELE, RHUDDLAN, Y RHYL
	ITEM 12 - APPENDIX

	13 RHIF CAIS: 44/2014/0953/PF - 6, GROVE TERRACE, FFORDD Y TYWYSOG, RHUDDLAN, Y RHYL
	ITEM 13 - APPENDIX

	14 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0388/PF - SAFLE’R GRANGE HOTEL, 41-42 EAST PARADE, Y RHYL
	ITEM 14 - APPENDIX

	15 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0389/LB - SAFLE’R GRANGE HOTEL, 41-42 EAST PARADE, Y RHYL
	ITEM 15 - APPENDIX

	16 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0875/PF - 56 ST. MARGARETS DRIVE, Y RHYL
	ITEM 16 - APPENDIX

	17 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/0908/PF – LLE CHWARAE ODDI AR FFORDD CILGANT/GORDON AVENUE, Y RHYL
	ITEM 17 - APPENDIX

	18 RHIF CAIS: 45/2014/1132/PF - 11-33 ABBEY STREET, Y RHYL
	ITEM 18 - APPENDIX

	19 PROSIECT ISADEILEDD MAWR CYSYLLTIADAU FFERMYDD GWYNT GOGLEDD CYMRU - CYMRYD RHAN YN Y BROSES GYNLLUNIO
	20 PROTOCOL AR GYFER PANELI ARCHWILIO SAFLE
	SITE VISIT PROTOCOL - APPENDIX




